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March 9, 2000
Via Hand-Delivery

K. David Waddell

Executive Secretary

Tennessee Regulatory Authority
460 James Robertson Parkway
Nashville, Tennessee 37219

Re: Application of Memphis Networx, LL.C for a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity to Provide Intrastate Telecommunication
Services and Joint Petition of Memphis Light Gas & Water Division, a
Division of the City of Memphis, Tennessee (“MLGW”) and A&L
Networks-Tennessee, LLC (“A&L") for Approval for Agreement
Between MLGW and A&L regarding Joint Ownership of Memphis
Networx, LLC: Docket No0.99-00909 - Responses to Discovery
Requests

Dear Mr. Waddell:

Enclosed you will find a copy of the responses to the discovery requests to
Memphis Networx, LLC, MLGW and A&L from the Tennessee Cable Telecommunications
Association and NEXTLINK-Tennessee, Inc. Some of the responses are confidential and
filed under seal pursuant to the protective agreement/Protective Order filed in this docket.
Due to the volume of documents involved, we will file additional copies if needed.

Sincerely,

5Bl e

D. Billye Sanders
DBS:Imb
Enclosures

cc: Parties of Record
Richard Collier, Esq.
John Knox Walkup, Esq.
J. Maxwell Williams, Esq.
Ward Huddleston, Esq.
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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY 777 =

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

IN RE: APPLICATION OF MEMPHIS NETWORX, LEC EOR Al g§ 4

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

TO PROVIDE INTRASTATE TELECOMMUNICATION ... -
SERVICES AND JOINT PETITION OF MEMPHIS LIGHT GAS. . i/:0

& WATER DIVISION, A DIVISION OF THE CITY OF MEMPHIS,
TENNESSEE (“MLG&W”) AND A&L NETWORKS-TENNESSEE,
LLC (“A&L”) FOR APPROVAL FOR AMENDMENT BETWEEN
MLG&W AND A&L REGARDING JOINT OWNERSHIP OF
MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC e e
DOCKET NO. 99-00909 N

RESPONSES OF MEMPHIS NETWORX. LL.C, i o

MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS & WATER DIVISION AND .=
A & L, NETWORKS-TENNESSEE, LLC TO

DISCOVERY REQUEST OF NEXTLINK TENNESSEE INC:

<

COME NOW, Applicant, Memphis Networx, LLC (“Memphls Netwgrx ) and

Joint Petitioners, Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division (“MLG&W”) and A&L
Networks-Tennessee, LLC (“‘A&L”) and respond to the interrogatories of

NEXTLINK Tennessee Inc. “NEXTLINK”).

Interrogatories and Responses

1. Provide copies of all documents concerning MLG&W’s decision to enter

the telecommunications business, to partner with A&L, and to form Memphis

Networx.

Response:

MLG&W objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is
overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it may call for the
production of privileged documents. MLG&W further objects to
NextLink’s characterization of A&L as MLG&W’s “partner” in the
legal sense of that word. Subject to and without waiver of the
foregoing objections, MLG&W has attached as Attachment 1 a

525018.4 1
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briefing which was presented to the MLG&W Board of
Commissioners prior to the approval of the resolutions that are
attached as Exhibit D to the application in this docket.

2. Provide a copy of Memphis Networx’s business plan.

Response:

Memphis Networx objects to the provision of its business plan in
that the information sought is beyond the scope of information
typically requested by the TRA for approval of applications of
competing local exchange carriers (CLECs) and is cumulative and
duplicative of the information previously filed in this docket in
support of this application. Subject to and without waiver of the
foregoing, Confidential Attachment 2 is attached pursuant to the
protective agreement filed in this docket.

3. Please indicate the applicable section of the charter of MLG&W which
authorizes MLG&W to offer telecommunications service throughout Tennessee.
Response:

Please see the response to Request No. 27 of Tennessee Cable
Telecommunication Association’s (TCTA’s) Data Requests in this
proceeding.

4. Please identify all existing sources of financing for Memphis Networx,
including all amounts currently raised or committed.

Response:

For its response, MLG&W states that its existing source of
financing for its interest in Memphis Networx is the $20,000,000
inter-division loan that the MLG&W Board of Commissioners has
authorized, subject to all necessary regulatory approvals.

As contemplated by the Umbrella Agreement, (i) MLG&W and A&L
currently incur Subsequent Costs and Interim Contributions on
behalf or for the benefit of Memphis Networx, and (ii) within
seventy-five (75) days after the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
issues a final order granting in all material respects the relief
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requested in the Application and Joint Petition, A&L is obligated to
contribute to Memphis Networx $4,666,200, less its Prior Costs,
Subsequent Costs and Interim Contributions, and MLG&W is
obligated to contribute to Memphis Networx $5,332,800 less its
Prior Costs, Subsequent Costs and Interim Contributions.

Memphis Networx expects to obtain additional financing through
borrowings from third parties.

5. Please describe the source of the funds which MLG&W has invested or

intends to invest in Memphis Networx .

(a)  Explain how those funds are now being used by MLG&W.

(b) Explain whether and how MLG&W will be able to recoup those
funds should Memphis Networx fail.
Response:

The source of funds for the $20,000,000 inter-division loan is
working capital of the MLG&W Electric Division. In response to
Request No. 5(a), these funds are now classified as cash reserves of
the Electric Division and some funds are held in cash, while others
are invested in commercial paper and federal agency securities. In
response to Request No. 5(b), MLG&W objects on the grounds that
this Request seeks information that is irrelevant to this proceeding
and is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Subject to the foregoing, please see the
provisions of Article 10 of the Memphis Networx Operating
Agreement, which mitigate MLG&W'’s capital risk.

6. Please describe in full the accounting procedures that MLG&W has
adopted to insure compliance with T.C.A. §§7-52-402 and 7-52-103(d) and/or to
prevent cross-subsidization of Memphis Networx.

Response:

Please see the responses to TCTA’s Request Nos. 2, 4 and 14.
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7. Provide a copy of any accounting rules, including any cost allocation

manual, adopted by MLG&W or Memphis Networx for the purpose of compliance

with T.C.A. §§7-52-103(d) and 7-52-402, and/or to prevent cross-subsidization of

Memphis Networx.

Response:

Please see the Response to Request No. 6.

8. Do MLG&W and Memphis Networx intend to abide by the FCC's

affiliate transaction rules (47 C.F.R. § 32.27)? If not, please explain.

Response:

The provisions of 47 CFR §32.27 do not apply to Memphis Networx
and MLG&W. While adhering to their position that they are under
no legal obligation to do so, Memphis Networx and MLG&W intend
to voluntarily put into place procedures that are consistent with
those provisions.

9. Will Memphis Networx and MLG&W comply with the structural

separation provisions described in 47 U.S.C. 272(b)? If not, why not?

525018.4

Response:

The provisions of 47 CFR §32.27 do not apply to Memphis Networx
and MLG&W. While adhering to their position that they are under
no legal obligation to do so, Memphis Networx and MLG&W intend
to voluntarily put into place structural separations that are
consistent with those provisions, except that members of the Board
of Governors are officers of the member entities. There will be
separate operations, separate books, separate officers and Memphis
Networx will not obtain credit that upon default would allow a
creditor to have recourse against the assets of MLG&W, and will
conduct all transactions at arm’s length.




10. Do MLG&W and Memphis Networx intend to abide by the accounting
safeguards approved by the TRA for Chattanooga Electric Power Board (Docket No.

97-07488)? If not, please explain.

Response:

MLG&W and Memphis Networx state that the accounting
safeguards approved in Docket No. 97-07488 address a significantly
different organizational structure than is present in this
Application and Joint Petition such that many of those safeguards
do not readily translate to the relationship between MLG&W and
Memphis Networx. As MLG&W'’s responses to Requests Nos. 6 and
7 show, however, MLG&W intends to develop safeguards that will
be consistent with those adopted in Docket No. 97-07488, to the
extent applicable.

11. Please provide copies of all requests for information you have received
from the TRA since filing the application and joint petition and copies of all
information you have provided the TRA since filing the petition and application.

Response:

This information was provided to intervenor’s counsel by e-mail of
February 15, 2000. A copy of that document is attached as
Attachment 11. The only other information provided the TRA was
contained in the application and joint petition of November 24, 1999
and its supplement of January 11, 2000.

12. Provide a roster of all current, full-time employees of Memphis
Networx and a brief description of each one’s qualifications.

Response:

Attached as Attachment 12. See also more detailed information in
the pre-filed testimony and Application and Joint Petition
previously filed.

525018.4 5




13. Provide a copy of all contracts between MLG&W and any other party
concerning this petition and joint application.
Response:

MLG&W objects to this Request on the ground that the Request is
vague and unclear in that the term “concerning” is undefined.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, MLG&W states that
the only contracts between MLG&W and other parties to the Joint
Petition and Application are the Operating Agreement and the
“umbrella agreement” filed as Exhibits in this proceeding.

14. Provide a copy of all contracts between Memphis Networx and any
other party concerning this petition and joint application.

Response:

Memphis Networx objects to this Request on the ground that the
Request is vague and unclear in that the term “concerning” 1s
undefined. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing,
Memphis Networx states that there are no contracts between

Memphis Networx and other parties to the Joint Petition and
Application.

15. Provide a copy of all contracts between A&L and any other party
concerning this petition and joint application.

Response:

A&L objects to this Request on the ground that the Request is

vague and unclear in that the term “concerning” is undefined.

Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, A&L states that the

only contracts between A&L and other parties to the Joint Petition

and Application are the Operating Agreement and the “umbrella
agreement” filed as Exhibits in this proceeding.

16. Regarding A&L, please provide the following information:

(a) A copy of A&L’s authorization to conduct business in Tennessee.

525018.4 6
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(b)

(©

(d)

Response:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

A&L’s articles of organization, charter, or other comparable
document.

List all the members of A&L. If any member is an LLC or
corporation, identify the members of that LLC or the
stockholders of that corporation.

For each LLC or corporation listed above, provide a recent
financial statement and three-year projected financials.

The Certificate of Authority issued to A&L by the
Tennessee Secretary of State was filed as Exhibit L to the
January 11, 2000 Supplement to the Application and
Joint Petition.

The Articles of Organization of A&L were filed as
Exhibit C to the Application and Joint Petition.

The only member of A&L is Aptus Networks, LLC, a
Kansas limited liability company. The only member of
Aptus Networks, LLC is the Lowe Children Family
Limited Partnership, a Kansas limited partnership.

A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it is
overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it may call
for the production of privileged documents. Subject to and
without waiver of the foregoing objections, A&L states
that it has attached as Confidential Attachment 16(d)
unaudited balance sheets for Aptus Networks, LLC and
A&L Networks - Tennessee prepared as of February 29,
2000, and that Aptus and A&L Networks - Tennessee
have not prepared financial projections apart from the
projections for Memphis Networx.




17. Will Memphis Networx obtain any support services from MLG&W? If
so, please describe in detail the accounting treatment of those services by Memphis
Networx and by MLG&W?

Response:

No.

18. Will Memphis Networx, through advertising, company logo, or other
public information be identified as being affiliated, directly or indirectly with
MLG&W?

Response:

Memphis Networx has a logo that has no identification as being
affiliated in any way with MGLW. Ownership of Memphis Networx
will be freely disclosed in public information and advertising.

525018.4 8




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, D. Billye Sanders, hereby certify that on this f"”"day of March, 2000, a
true and correct copy of the foregoing was delivered by hand delivery, facsimile or

U.S. Mail postage pre-paid to the Counsel of Record listed below.

Henry Walker, Esq.

Boult Cummings Conners &
Berry, PLC

414 Union Street, Suite 1600
P. O. Box 198062

Nashville, TN 37219

Attorney for NEXTLINK, Tennessee,
Inc.

Charles B. Welch, Jr., Esq.

Farris, Mathews, Branan, Bobango
& Hellen, P.L.C.

618 Church Street

Suite 300

Nashville, TN 37219

Attorney for Time Warner of the

Mid-South L.P., Time Warner
Communications of the Mid-South, L.P.,
and the Tennessee Cable
Telecommunications Association

525018.4
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D. Billye Sanders, Esq.

Guy Hicks, Esq.

Patrick Turner, Esq.

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
333 Commerce Street

Suite 2101

Nashville, TN 37201-3300

Attorneys for BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc.

John Knox Walkup, Esq.
Wyatt Tarrant & Combs
511 Union Street,

Suite 1500

Nashville, TN 37219-1750
615-244-0200

Attorney for A&L Networks -
Tennessee, LLC and Memphis Networx,
LLC
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NEXTLINK — Attachment 1
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Arthur D Little

MLGW Network Services
(MNet) Board Briefing

Presentation to MLGW'’s
Board of Commissioners
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August 19, 1999

Arthur D. Litlle, Inc.

Four Embarcadero Center
Suite 600

San Francisco, California
94111-4173

Internet: www.arthurdlittie.com
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MLGW Board Briefing Meeting  Objectives

There are two primary objectives for today’s briefing with the
MLGW Board of Directors

B Review the agreement between MLGW and A&L Networks

B Understand benefits to the City of Memphis and its citizens

Arthur D Little
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Agenda

MLGWIASL
Partnership

M.O_Q of Memphis
- and its Citizens

Arthur D Little

4> & ¢ 5

Ownership Structure
Governance
Risk Allocation

Third Party Minority
Participation

> & ¢

City of Memphis Revenues
Memphis Housing Authority
Rate Payer Benefits
Economic Development
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Partnership

City of Memphi
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Arthur D Little

¢ Ownership Structure
4+ Governance
+ Risk Allocation

4 Third Party Minority
Participation
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Introduction Premier Multi-Utility

To position MLGW as a premier multi-utility, a full service “carrier’s
carrier” next generation network (NGN) infrastructure will be developed

in partnership with A&L Networks.

Incumbent Local

. . Exchange
Fiber Optic Carriers (ILECs)
Network
Competitive Local
Exchange
Carriers (CLECs)
“.ast Mile”
Access Interchange
MLGW B, o Carriers (IXCs)

Network

/
/
\ .mo_.Somm
\

~——————Jp Cable Companies

/ Internet Service

Providers (ISPs)

MLGW Existing
Infrastructure

A&L Networks
and Consortium

Partners Other Large

Vendors

MLGW Network Services will provide a level playing field for all
competing service providers in Memphis to promote competition and
achieve greater value for the “owners” of MLGW.

Arthur D Little
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MLGW/AS&L Partnership Ownership Structure

MLGW and A&L Networks have reached an equitable agreement to own and
operate MLGW Network Services for the purposes of providing
communications services to Memphis and Shelby County.

Memphis Light Gas & Water Division A&L Networks, LLC

Electric Gas Water Vermont Florida Tennessee

“Telecommunications

Division
MLGW Network Services, LLC (MNet)
« 50 percent ownership « 50 percent ownership
« 53 percent capital + 47 percent capital
contribution (~$16 million) contribution (~$14 million)
« 53 percent net revenue » 47 percent net revenue
allocation allocation

Arthur D Little
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MLGW/A&L Partnership

Relationship With A&L Networks

Operating Agreement

The MNet operating agreement addresses three primary areas of
concern: governance, risk allocation and third-party minority

nm&nimzo:.

N

Risk Allocation

Third-party Minority
Partcipation

Vo gl

. Five-member Board of
Directors with the fifth member
rotated annually between
MLGW and A&L

— MLGW will designate the
fifth member for the first
year

« For MLGW, the Board will
include the CEO, CFO and
General Counsel

« A&L's Board members will be
designated by Chairman of
A&L, Inc.

« The Board will unanimously
choose and annually vote to
retain CEO

« A&L's capital account will
absorb initial losses up to $14
million, and then losses will be
absorbed by MLGW

- Any losses absorbed by
MLGW will be reimbursed
prior to losses incurred by
A&L

« All expenses incurred prior to
approval by the TRA will be
shared equally between
MLGW and A&L

- MNet will be receptive to a
qualified minority partner

« Partner must bring both
capital and expertise

» MNet will develop minority
participation guidelines in
keeping with TRA requirement

» MNet will provide access to
pre-determined MHA
developments

+ 1% of MNet annual net
revenues will endow a
community
telecommunications
investment fund up to $1
million annually

Arthur D Little



MLGWI/A&L Partnership MNet Timeline _

MNet must quickly be established to capture the market opportunities
assumed in the business case.

1999 | | | 2000

Phase 1 construction
Arthur D. Little of the communications
A&L Networks completes the network begins
~selected as the business case
strategic partner development

MLGW Network
Services is fully
operational

Board approval sought;
Board approves the MLGW Network

funds for final business Services is formed
case development, and
analysis and company

formation of MLGW MLGW Network Services
Network Services files for state regulatory
approval

¢£e00 L1
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Agenda
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City of
Memphis and its
Citizens

Arthur D Little

City of Memphis Revenues
Memphis Housing Authority
Rate Payer Benefits
Economic Development




ge00 L1

City of Memphis and its Citizens Financial Implications

The City of Memphis will receive substantial revenue streams from MNet.

o_E o.“ _smzis_m mm<m:=m Streams

ey «.iv

MLGW

Network Services LLC

]
~MLGW

Electric Division
[]

a.x. .: lieu of .mx vms:osn from _sres_.m ao:_os o*
MLGW - o ; -~ net revenues .

‘Telecom Division

>..n—=.. U —.-n—._o
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City of Memphis and its Citizens Memphis Housing Authority

MNet will provide telecommunications backbone access to four MHA
developments while working with telecommunications retailers to provision
services to residents.

» .
‘asennt

st

. . “Barry Homes
. .+* 255 Lauderdale Greenlaw - Manassas
Development

Telecom Retailer

MNet Facilities Eacilities

In addition, MNet will set aside a 1% of annual net revenues to endow a
community telecommunications investment fund up to $1million annually.

Arthur D Little 10



City of Memphis and its Citizens Rate Payers Benefits

All net revenues accrued to MLGW from MNet will benefit the Electric
Division ratepayers. |

B Repayment of initial investment from telecommunications
revenues

B Maintain stable rates of the Electric Division through
enhanced revenue stream from MNet

B Offer enhanced services and achieve operational efficiencies
| through technologies that rely on an advanced
- communications network

v Automatic meter reading
v Automatic outage notification
v Power quality monitoring

J Platform for additional energy management services

Lg00 11

Arthur D Little
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City of Memphis and its Citizens Economic Development

MNet's state of the art next generation network will facilitate
substantial economic development in the Memphis and Shelby County

community.

B New electronic infrastructure to support future residential,
business and government communications requirements

v Memphis as a premier city for next generation services
v “Work at home” and telecommuting applications

7 Improve government service delivery and contain costs
v Provide improved education infrastructure

v Promotes expansion of existing business and industry

B New businesses locating to Memphis will enhance the
existing tax base

v New, higher wage technology jobs
v Companies with heavy telecom usage requirements

B New competitors will enter the market to provide the
community with enhanced services and competitive prices

Arthur D Little
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City of Memphis and its Citizens Economic Development

Mnet's communications infrastructure will result in improved
availability, increased choice, and higher quality services for all
citizens of Memphis and Shelby County.

MW Positively impact opportunities for minority, women and local
small businesses

v Ownership
v Vendor participation
v Employment

.\.?mi:@_macom:o:msa moommmﬁomaaﬁmmmﬁ:m._Dﬁzm_
Divide” o

v Entrepreneurial opportunities

B New competitors will enter the market to provide the
community with enhanced services and competitive prices

Arthur D Little

13
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Appendix MLGW/A&L Partnership

Cash .Ios\m

MNet offers potential substantial returns to its owners.

MLGW Network Services
Years 1999-2008 (000s)

MLGW Equity Contribution 53%

MLGW Net Revenue Split 53%

MLGW In lieu of tax payment to City of Memphis 4%

(TN NoEE RS EN Y BB 1099 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,233 | 16,248 | 19,201

Equity Contribution (11,660) | (4,240) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

In Lieu of Tax Payment to City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C TR !

- Total Cash Flow {(11,660) | (4,240} 0 0 0 0 0 5,024 | 15,598 | 18,433

NPV a{ e Fow at 5%

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,641 | 14,409 | 17,027

Equity Contribution (10,340) { (3,760) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Cash Flow (10,340) | (3,760) 0 0 0 0 0 4,641 | 14,409 | 17,027
£ NPY of Gash Flow. at 20% RRi:31.8%, «

MNet Long Term Debt 0 5,000 mm.o.oo 75.000 | 70,000 | 55,000 | 30,000 0 0 0

Arthur D Little
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RESPONSE TO:

NEXTLINK — Attachment 2 Confidential (filed under seal)
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%KNOXWALKUP ~Memphis Nefworx responses to data requests, including pre-filed testimony ~ Paget

From: Billye Sanders <DBS@wallerlaw.com>

To: "hwalker@bccb.com™ <hwalker@bccb.com>

Date: Tue, Feb 15, 2000 12:00 PM

Subject: Memphis Networx responses to data requests, including pre-filed testiimony

Pursuant to your request, attached are responses to data requests to

Memphis Networx, which include the pre-filed testimony of Memphis Networx

and MLGW which were filed with the TRA on Feb. 4.

<<DBS MLGW Responses to Data Request. DOC>> <<DBS MLGW Pre-Filed Testimony
of J. Maxwell Williams.DOC>> <<KMC MLGW Huddleston testimony.DOC>>

CC: "kwalkup@wyattfirm.com™ <kwalkup@wyattfirm.com>
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RESPONSES TO DATA REQUEST FROM THE
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY PURSUANT
TO APPLICATION OF MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC
DOCKET NO. 99-00909

FEBRUARY 4, 2000

1. Sworn Pre-Filed Testimony.

Response:

Attached is the sworn pre-filed testimony of Ward Huddleston, Jr. on behalf of
Memphis Networx, LLC and J. Maxwell Williams on behalf of Memphis Light Gas &

Water Division (MLGW).
2. Please provide an organizational chart of corporate structure.
Response:
MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
Memphis Light Gas & Water A&L Networks-Tennessee
Division, a Member LLC, a Member
Memphis Networx, LLC
3. We need the toll free number to be provided as a repair and maintenance

(customer service) number as soon as you have it in place.

Response:

Memphis Networx will establish a toll-free repair and maintenance number prior

to beginning service. Prior to that time, any inquiries can be directed to Memphis
Networx at (901) 213-5112.

4, Please explain in detail the equipment to be used and the method of
deployment.
Response:

516544.3



_FKNOX WALKUP - DBS MLGW Responses to Data Request.DOC - —  Page2’

Memphis Networx will deploy a Class 5 carrier grade central office switch from
among Nortel, Lucent and Cisco in its network operations center. The selected vendor
will be engaged to engineer, furnish and install the equipment through its Professional
Services Group under the supervision of Memphis Networx's engineering and
construction management. The switch will be comprised of components that are
Bellcore Network Equipment Building Standards (NEBS) compliant and meet all
industry standards.

The fiber optic cable selected by Memphis Networx will be single mode fiber with
144 strands capable of supporting the delivery of DS1, DS3, OC3, OC12, 0C4s,
0OC192 as well as Dense Wave Divisional Multiplexing equipment.

The installation of the backbone cable will be contracted to qualified contractors
consistent with the Small and Minority-Owned Telecommunications Business
Participation Plan filed with the Authority and under the supervision of Memphis
Networx's engineering and construction management. The backbone will be largely
aerial with some underground deployment. The detailed design is being developed
under the supervision of Memphis Networx's engineering and construction
management. It is anticipated the backbone will initially consist of OC48 transmission
equipment which will be engineered, furnished and installed by the vendor under the
supervision of Memphis Networx's engineering and construction management.
Memphis Networx anticipates locating the transmission
equipment in 14 BellSouth central offices in Shelby County as well as up to 22
customer access points. From the customer access points, direct connections down to
the DSO level will be provided.

Digital subscriber line access modes (DSLAM) will also be located in the
BeliSouth central offices for the provision of DSL type services to carriers and end
users. The deployment of the DSLAMs will be consistent with the previous
methodology.

OC3 equipment will be installed at carrier and large end user sites by Memphis
Networx's engineering and construction management personnel. The deployment of
hybrid fiber coaxial cable (HFC) to end users will be through qualified contractors under
the supervision of Memphis Networx's engineering and construction management.

The timing of the deployment of the network is projected in Exhibit H to the
application. It is anticipated the backbone and switching equipment will be deployed in
2000 and 2001 with the access to the end users being primarily in 2001, 2002 and
2003.

516544.3
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_Pagel

IN RE:
NETWORX, LLC FOR A CERTIFICATE OF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE INTRASTATE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES
AND JOINT PETITION OF MEMPHIS
LIGHT GAS AND WATER DIVISION,

A DIVISION OF THE CITY OF MEMPHIS,
TENNESSEE ("MLGW") AND A&L
NETWORKS-TENNESSEE, LLC ("A&L")
FOR APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MLGW AND A&L REGARDING
JOINT OWNERSHIP OF MEMPHIS
NETWORX, LLC

513958.5

BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

APPLICATION OF MEMPHIS

DOCKET NO. 99-00909

e N S et e e e N Nt M Nt S Nt Nouw

PRE-FILED TESTIMONY OF J. MAXWELL WILLIAMS
ON BEHALF OF MLGW

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT, TITLE AND
BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is J. Maxwell Williams. | am Vice President and General Counsel for
Memphis Light Gas & Water Division, a Division of the City of Memphis,
Tennessee. My business address is Memphis Light Gas & Water Division, 220
South Main Street, Memphis, Tennessee 38103.

WHAT IS MLGW SEEKING IN THIS PROCEEDING?

MLGW seeks approval of the Operating Agreement of Memphis Networx, LLC
pursuant to T.C.A. § 7-52-103(d). The Operating Agreement, which is dated
November 8, 1999, is between MLGW and A&L Networks-Tennessee, LLC. Of
course, as one of the owners of Memphis Networx, MLGW also supports
approval of the application.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?
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The purpose of my testimony is to summarize the terms of the Operating
Agreement and to comment on the concern mentioned by NEXTLINK in its
petition for intervention regarding its pole attachment agreement with MLGW.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE TERMS OF THE OPERATING AGREEMENT.

MLGW and A&L have agreed to make initial combined capital contributions to
Memphis Networx of approximately $10 million and contemplate making capital
contributions up to an aggregate amount of approximately $30 million within the
next three years. It is anticipated that in the first year MGLW will contribute
approximately $ 5.3 million and A&L will contribute approximately $ 4.7 million.
The sharing ratio for net profits is 53% for MLGW and 47% for A&L. There is a
formula in Article 10 of the Operating Agreement that sets forth in detail the
sharing of profits and losses including the losses incurred during the start up
phase of the company. Each member will have a 50% voting interest in Memphis
Networx. The LLC will be managed by a board of governors.

DO YOU ANTICIPATE THAT OTHER MEMBERS WILL BE ADMITTED TO
THE LLC?

Additional members will only be admitted with the consent of all members. In the
Operating Agreement, MLGW and A&L have agreed to negotiate in good faith to
sell a portion of their financial rights to one or more minority owned businesses
within four (4) years from the date of approval of Memphis Networx Application
by the TRA. This provision is contained in Article 3.4 of the Operating
Agreement. Memphis Networx has also made reference to this provision in its
Small and Minority-Owned Telecommunications Business Participation Plan.

WHO WILL SELECT THE GOVERNORS OF MEMPHIS NETWORX?

The Operating Agreement provides that there shall be five (5) governors, two (2)
elected by MLGW and two (2) elected by an A&L, the fifth (5") will be elected
alternately by MLGW and A&L. ‘Initially, the fifth governor will be elected by
MLGW. (See Article 5.3 of the Operating Agreement).

WHAT IS THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THE AGREEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 8,
1999 BETWEEN MLGW AND A&L WHICH WAS FILED IN A SUPPLEMENTAL
FILING WITH THE TRA IN THIS DOCKET?

This Agreement is what we refer to as the “Umbrella Agreement” which deals
with sharing of start up costs incurred prior to the formation of the LLC and costs
incurred prior to approval of the application and operating agreement by the
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TRA. This Agreement is not an agreement for the provision of “related services”
(i.e., telecommunications services) which requires approval pursuant to T.C.A.

Section 7-52-103. This Agreement was provided to the TRA for informational
purposes only.

HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE PETITION FOR INTERVENTION FILED BY
NEXTLINK, TENNESSEE, INC. IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes.

IN THE PETITION, NEXTLINK SAID THAT IT IS CONCERNED ABOUT THE
USE, IF ANY, BY THE PETITIONER OF FIBER OPTIC LINES PROVIDED BY
NEXTLINK TO MLGW UNDER A POLE ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MLGW AND NEXTLINK. DOES MLGW PLAN TO ALLOW
MEMPHIS NETWORX TO USE FIBER OPTIC LINES PROVIDED BY

NEXTLINK THAT ARE SUBJECT TO THIS POLE ATTACHMENT
AGREEMENT?

No. The Pole Attachment Agreement between NEXTLINK and MLGW provides
that MLGW may use the fiber optic lines only for MLGW’s internal purposes.
MLGW has no intention of allowing Memphis Networx to use those lines in
violation of that Agreement.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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VERIFICATION

I, J. Maxwell Williams, declare under penalty of perjury that | am
authorized by Memphis Light Gas & Water Division to testify on its behalf, that | have
caused the foregoing written testimony to be prepared on my behalf, that | have read
the foregoing testimony and that the statements contained therein are true and correct

to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

J. Maxwell Williams
Vice President and General Counsel
Memphis Light Gas Water Division

STATE OF TENNESSEE )

)
COUNTY OF SHELBY )

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of

2000.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

513958.5
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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

IN RE: APPLICATION OF MEMPHIS
NETWORX, LLC FOR A CERTIFICATE OF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE INTRASTATE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES
AND JOINT PETITION OF MEMPHIS
LIGHT GAS AND WATER DIVISION,

A DIVISION OF THE CITY OF MEMPHIS,
TENNESSEE (“MLGW”) AND A&L
NETWORKS-TENNESSEE, LLC (“A&L")
FOR APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MLGW AND A&L REGARDING
JOINT OWNERSHIP OF MEMPHIS
NETWORX, LLC

DOCKET NO. 99-00909

et St N N N N N N N e N g t? “®

PRE-FILED TESTIMONY OF WARD HUDDLESTON, JR.
ON BEHALF OF MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC

Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

A. My name is Ward Huddleston, Jr. My business address is 7555 Appling Center
Drive, Memphis, Tennessee 38133-5069.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR CURRENT POSITION AT MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC?

A. I am the Chief Manager of Memphis Networx, LLC. As Chief Manager, | will be
responsible for overall operations of the company.

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF MEMPHIS
NETWORX.

A. Memphis Networx is a Tennessee limited liability company. Memphis Networx is
board-managed. The two members of Memphis Networx are Memphis Light
Gas & Water (“MLGW?") and A&L Networks-Tennessee, LLC (“A&L"). MLGW,
which was established in 1939 by private act, currently operates a municipal
electric system in Shelby County, and also provides municipal gas and water
distribution services in the county. A&L is a Kansas limited liability company and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Aptus Networks, LLC, formerly known as A&L
Networks, LLC, also a Kansas limited liability company. Aptus is in the business
of partnering with municipal electric utilities for the provision of next generation

513776.14
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network services in the local exchange.

DID A&L NETWORK, LLC CHANGE ITS NAME AFTER THE MEMPHIS
NETWORX APPLICATION WAS FILED WITH THE AUTHORITY?

Yes. On January 31, 2000, A&L Networks, LLC changed its name to Aptus
Networks, LLC.

DID A&L NETWORK -TENNESSEE, LLC ALSO CHANGE ITS NAME?

No.

WHAT DOES MEMPHIS NETWORX SEEK THROUGH ITS APPLICATION
AND TESTIMONY?

Memphis Networx is seeking approval of its application for a certificate of public
convenience and necessity to provide intrastate telecommunications services in
Tennessee. Memphis Networx is acting pursuant to a new state law which
allows MLGW, a municipal electric utility, to jointly establish a
telecommunications provider with a private entity, in this case A&L.

WHAT DO MLGW AND A&L SEEK THROUGH THEIR JOINT PETITION?

MLGW and A&L are seeking approval of the Operating Agreement of Memphis
Networx, which allows joint ownership of a telecommunications provider by
MLGW and A&L. Such approval is required by state law.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE RANGE OF SERVICES THAT MEMPHIS NETWORX
PROPOSES TO OFFER IN TENNESSEE.

As stated in our application, Memphis Networx will initially be offering services in
Shelby County, but will expand those services throughout the state, where
authorized under state law. Memphis Networx intends to provide wholesale local
exchange telecommunications services to carriers, and retail local exchange
telecommunications services to end users. Memphis Networx will also resell
intraLATA local exchange and interLATA exchange services in the state.

Examples of the proposed services include digital signaling zero (voice grade
and digital grade); dedicated DS1 and DS3; optical carrier (OC) 3 and OC 12; toll
free dialing, custom calling features, digital subscriber line (DSL); cable modem
services (high speed data and voice services via coaxial cable); centrex
services; voice and data over packet based switches; metropolitan area network
services; collocation services in the Memphis Networx network operations
center; 911 and E911 emergency services; white page directory listings and
directory assistance; consumer access to and support for the Tennessee Relay
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Center; free blocking for 900, 976 type services; Lifeline and Link-up to qualifying
citizens; and educational discounts consistent with TRA policy.

WILL MEMPHIS NETWORX REQUIRE CUSTOMERS TO PURCHASE CPE
THAT IS NOT COMPATIBLE WITH THE SYSTEMS OF INCUMBENT LOCAL
EXCHANGE CARRIERS (“ILECs”)

No. Memphis Networx will not require its customers to purchase customer
premise equipment (“CPE") which is not compatible with ILEC systems.

IS MEMPHIS NETWORX AUTHORIZED TO PROVIDE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES OR HAS IT SOUGHT
AUTHORIZATION TO PROVIDE SERVICES IN ANY OTHER STATE?

No. Memphis Networx has not sought approval to offer telecommunications
services in any other state.

HOW WILL MEMPHIS NETWORX MONITOR ITS FACILITIES?

Memphis Networx will maintain a toll-free number for repairs/maintenance
service twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. A similar toll-free number
will also be established for customer service.

DOES MEMPHIS NETWORX POSSESS SUFFICIENT MANAGERIAL,

FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL ABILITIES TO PROVIDE ITS PROPOSED
SERVICES?

Yes.

PLEASE DESCRIBE MEMPHIS NETWORX’S MANAGERIAL
QUALIFICATIONS.

| will serve as the Chief Manager of Memphis Networx. | have over 24 years of
professional  experience including 16 years working for major
telecommunications providers, including Sprint, United Telecommunications, and
United Telephone-Southeast, and have also supervised several start-up
projects.

In addition, David Ori will serve as Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of

Memphis Networx. Mr. Ori has over 20 years financial and operational
experience.

Initially, Memphis Networx will also utilize consultants from Arthur D. Little, Inc.
(“ADL"), one of the world's premier consulting firms with offices in over 50
locations worldwide. The core team of consultants from ADL that will be

513776.14
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assigned to the Memphis Networx project include Joel Halvorson, Jerry Freeman
and Barbara LaRue all of whom have extensive telecommunications experience.

PLEASE DESCRIBE MEMPHIS NETWORX’S TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS.

Randy McDaniel will serve as the Manager of Engineering for Memphis Networx.
Mr. McDaniel has over 27 years of telecommunications technological
experience. ADL consultants Roger Hay and Pat White will also be available to
provide additional technical assistance. Major telecommunications network
equipment vendors such as Nortel, Lucent and Cisco will provide the necessary
equipment for implementation of the network. All network equipment installed
and operated by Memphis Networx will comply with applicable industry
standards in the Belicore Network Equipment Building Standards (NEBS).
Nortel Professional Services Group has been engaged to provide a full-time
project manager to Memphis Networx. In addition, Contactica, Inc., a subsidiary
of ADL, has also agreed to provide design, engineering and construction
assistance. Frank Wye of Contactica serves as the consulting engineer on this
project. Mr. Wye's resume was included in the exhibits to the application.

IS MEMPHIS NETWORX FINANCIALLY QUALIFIED TO OFFER ITS
PROPOSED SERVICES IN TENNESSEE?

Yes. MLGW and A&L, the two members of Memphis Networx, have agreed to
provide equity funding as described in Article 9 of the Operating Agreement.
The pro formas and capital budget provided to the Authority as confidential
exhibits also show the type of equipment to be used and its cost.

Upon approval of this application by the TRA, MLGW will provide initial funding,
in the approximate amount of $5.3 million, through an inter-division loan from the
Electric Division of MLGW to the Telecommunications Division of MLGW that will
make an equity investment of approximately $5.3 million in Memphis Networx.
This loan is to be paid over a period of 6 years, at a rate of interest that is not
less than the highest rate earned on invested electric system funds. Such loan
has already been approved by the Comptroller of the State of Tennessee and
the Tennessee Valley Authority.

Also upon TRA approval, A&L will provide initial funding, in the approximate
amount of $4.7 million. These funds are being raised for A&L through private
offerings by a financial investment firm located in Memphis.

PLEASE DESCRIBE MEMPHIS NETWORX'S SMALL AND MINORITY-
OWNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PLAN.

Memphis Networx has designated Carlotta Maclin as the Diversity Officer who is
in charge of implementing the Plan. As part of her duties, Ms. Maclin will identify
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and develop lists of small and minority-owned businesses who may be potential
suppliers and contractors for Memphis Networx; educate these businesses on
the opportunities to work with Memphis Networx; invite and solicit bids from
qualified entities; provide advice to the company on small and minority-owned
business concerns; establish and maintain records of bid solicitations and
awards; and ensure that contracts are paid in a timely manner. In addition, the
members of Memphis Networx have agreed to negotiate in good faith to sell a
portion of the financial rights in Memphis Networx to one or more minority
businesses within 4 years of the approval date of the application by the TRA.

HAS MEMPHIS NETWORX FILED AN INTRALATA TOLL DIALING PARITY
PLAN?

Yes. This Plan was attached to the original Application filed in November, 1999.

HAS MEMPHIS NETWORX ENTERED INTO AN INTERCONNECTION
AGREEMENT WITH BELLSOUTH?

No. Memphis Networx intends to negotiate the terms of such an interconnection
agreement and will submit it to the Authority for approval upon the receipt of its
certificate of convenience and necessity from the TRA.

HAS MEMPHIS NETWORX OBTAINED ANY FRANCHISES FROM LOCAL
GOVERNMENTS?

Memphis Networx has applied for franchises in Memphis and in Shelby County.
When approval is obtained, Memphis Networx will seek approval of the
franchises from the TRA. Memphis Networx will seek additional franchises as
needed as it expands its services.

WHAT MEASURES HAS MEMPHIS NETWORX TAKEN TO PREVENT
CROSS- SUBSIDIZATION FROM MLGW?

Memphis Networx is a separate legal entity from MLGW. It will have no
common employees with MLGW and all of its transactions with MLGW will be at
arms length. For example, if Memphis Networx leases pole attachments from
MLGW, Memphis Networx will pay the highest rate that any pole attachment
customer of MLGW pays. Also if MLGW purchases telecommunications services
from Memphis Networx, it will pay the same rate that similarly situated customers
will pay, either through the tariff or special contract. All tariffs and/or special
contracts would be subject to approval the Authority. Consequently, we believe
we have created the company in such a manner and put into place adequate
measures so as to prevent cross-subsidization.

IS APPROVAL OF MEMPHIS NETWORX’S APPLICATION IN THE PUBLIC
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INTEREST?

Yes. Approval of this application and joint petition will help create greater
competition in the intrastate telecommunications market by providing an open
access network that can be used by various telecommunications providers and
end users. Approval will also meet the specific intent of the General Assembly
that recently passed legislation authorizing such projects.

WILL MEMPHIS NETWORX ADHERE TO ALL APPLICABLE POLICIES,
RULES AND ORDERS OF THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY?

Yes. Memphis Networx will comply with all policies, rules and orders of the
Authority.

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW MEMPHIS NETWORX WILL KEEP ITS BOOKS.

Memphis Networx will keep its books in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). Ermnst & Young, a big five accounting firm with
significant telecommunications experience, has been engaged as the external
auditor to ensure the financial books and records of Memphis Networx will be
kept consistently with the applicable guidelines.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.

513776.14
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VERIFICATION

[, Ward Huddleston, Jr. declare under penalty of perjury that | am
authorized by Memphis Networx, LLC to testify on its behalf, that | have caused the
foregoing written testimony to be prepared on my behalf, that | have read the foregoing
testimony and that the statements contained therein are true and correct to the best of

my knowledge, information and belief.

Ward Huddleston, Jr.
Chief Manager
Memphis Networx, LLC

STATE OF TENNESSEE )

)
COUNTY OF SHELBY )

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of

2000.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

7 .
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Emplovee Summary of Qualifications:

Ward Huddleston, CEO Memphis Networx, LLC:

a Extensive professional experience gained over the last 24 years
16 years in telecommunications operations
] Strategic planning

Project management

Marketing experience

Legal and regulatory expertise.

B.S. Degree from East Tennessee State University

Doctor of Jurisprudence Degree from the University of Tennessee

Masters of Science in Business from Bristol University

Leadership Challenge Program offered by United Telecommunications, Inc.,

a Advanced Telecommunications Management Program at the University of Southern
California
a Strategy for Finance and Marketing Program offered by Wharton.

David Ori, CFO Memphis Networx, LLC:

] Financial executive

20 years of operational and Telecommunications experience

Start up implementation, initial public offerings and acquisition activities experience
Strong financial team building and leadership qualifications
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Functional areas include manufacturing, systems integration, program management, systems
deployment, inventory control, purchasing & CFO activities.

Bachelor of Science in Finance from the University of Illinois

MBA from Northwestern University

Randy McDaniel, Director of Engineering, Memphis Networx, LLC

8] 28 years telecommunication experience

Experienced in fiber optic splicing, installation and training

Designed fiber optic and copper network for data and voice applications
Experienced in cellular technologies

Coordinated and designed power and telephone facilities for cellular telephone cites
Experienced project manager

Installed and provided maintenance for residence and business telephone systems
Graduated Byars High School

Carlotta Maclin, Director of Operations, Memphis Networx, LLC

a 21 years telecommunication experience

Customer service experience including 15 years management experience
Total quality management, process analysis and problem solving skills
Employee development, training, coaching and team building experience
Experienced in sales, training, and budgeting

Experienced in Utility order entry and billing

Call Center management experience

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from Columbia College
MBA from Christian Brothers University

Kim Covington Facilities Manger, Memphis Networx, LLC

a Experienced in the coordination of special events and proposals
Experienced in the coordination of travel arrangements

Accounts receivable and payroll experience

Financial Analysis experience

a Bachelor Degree in Marketing from the University of Memphis

Peggy Autry Manager of Network Design, Memphis Networx, LLC

a 36 years Telecommunications experience

10 years Experience in engineering drafting and design
Marketing, cashier, order typist and order writer experience
Graduated from Yorkville High School
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Dennis James Construction Manager Memphis Networx, LLC

] 8 years telecommunication construction experience

Trained in specialized in highly classified Communication Equipment

Managed start up implementation in electrical/ fiber optic expansion

Coordinated large manufacturing project and production runs

Analyzed construction projects/developed problem resolutions in high-output production
environment :

Graduated from Ashland High School
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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

IN RE:

APPLICATION OF MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE
AND NECESSITY TO PROVIDE INTRASTATE
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES AND JOINT
PETITION OF MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS & WATER
DIVISION, A DIVISION OF THE CITY OF
MEMPHIS, TENNESSEE (“MLGW”) AND A&L
NETWORKS-TENNESSEE, LLC (“A&L”) FOR
APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN MLGW
AND A&L REGARDING JOINT OWNERSHIP OF
MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC

DOCKET NO. 99-00909

RESPONSES OF MEMPHIS NETWORX, LLC, MLGW AND A&L TO
DATA REQUESTS OF THE TENNESSEE CABLE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS ASSOCIATION

COME NOW, Applicant, Memphis Networx, LLC (“Memphis Networx”), and
the Joint Petitioners, Memphis Light, Gas & Water Division (“MLG&W”) and A&L
Networks — Tennessee, L.L.C. (“A&L”) and respond to the data requests of

intervenor, Tennessee Cable Telecommunications Association (“TCTA”).

DATA REQUESTS AND REPSONSES

Request No. 1.  Please Identify and provide a detailed chart of accounts or

any and all related Documents for Memphis Networx, (1.e. controlling and
subsidiary accounts) including an identification and description of the type of

financial activity recorded to each account as of March 1, 2000.

Response: Attached is an unaudited balance sheet through December 31, 1999.
An audited report through December 31, 1999 is in the process of being prepared,
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and a year to date unaudited balance sheet will be available by March 15th. Chart
of accounts is reflected in the balance sheet and Statement of Operations. It is
attached as Confidential Appendix 1 filed pursuant to the protective agreement in
this docket.

Request No. 2. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

regarding accounting directives, memorandums, and/or policies with respect to the
affiliate transactions of MLG&W, and the allocation of revenues, expenses, and
investment among its divisions.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to
the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, MLGW has attached a
copy of its most recent administrative and general expense, rent and transportation
studies, and its charge code distribution accounting policy. These documents are
attached as Appendix 2.

Request No. 3. If not provided in the Response to Question 2, please

Identify and provide Documents showing the bases for the allocation of indirect

costs and joint costs among the divisions of MLG&W.

Response: Please see MLGW'’s response to Request No. 2.
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Request No. 4. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

regarding the amount of joint and common costs incurred by MLG&W during FY

1998, FY 1999, and for the first two months of 2000.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to
the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections and responding only to its
Telecommunications Division, MLGW states that the Telecommunications Division
was not formed until August of 1999 and that joint and common costs will be
allocated, consistent with the methodology contained in the documents submitted in
response to Response No. 2, to the Telecommunications Division upon receipt of
regulatory approval. Please also see Response No. 14.

Request No. 5. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

showing the dollar amount of joint and common costs allocated to each division of

MLG&W during FY 1998, FY 1999, and the first two months of 2000.

Response: Please see MLGW’s response to Request No. 4.

Request No. 6. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

showing the balance of all organizational expenses incurred by or on behalf of

Memphis Networx through March 1, 2000.

Response: It is attached as Confidential Appendix 6 which is filed pursuant to the
protective agreement in this docket.
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Request No. 7. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

showing the total payments made to managerial consultants, technical consultants,
and legal counsel by or on behalf of Memphis Networx as of March 1, 2000. Identify
the account to which these expenditures have been or will be classified.

Response: Memphis Networx, MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the
grounds that the request is overly broad. Subject to and without waiver of the

foregoing, please see Confidential Appendix 7 which is filed pursuant to the
protective agreement in this docket.

Request No. 8.  Please provide a complete list of all municipalities with
which A&L has entered into business relationships to provide services. Identify and

provide any and all proposed or executed contracts.

Response: A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to
the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, A&L states that (i) it has
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding dated November 22, 1999, with the
City of Burlington, Vermont, a Vermont municipal corporation acting through its
Burlington Electric District (‘BED”), and Aptus Networks, LLC (“Aptus”), a Kansas
limited liability company, and (ii) BED and Aptus are in the process of negotiating
additional contracts, which have not been finalized or executed. See attached
Appendix 8.
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Request No. 9. Please Identify the external financial statement auditor

retained by MLG&W.

Response: Deloitte Touche, Suite 600, 50 North Front Street, Memphis,
Tennessee 38103, is MLGW’s external financial statement auditor.

Request No. 10. Please indicate whether Memphis Networx will rely on

the billing system and services of MLG&W.

Response: No.

Request No. 11. Please describe and provide a copy of any and all

Documents showing any and all restrictions regarding the inclusion of Memphis
Networx’s advertising and other promotional material in the monthly subscriber

bills submitted by divisions of MLG&W.

Response: MLGW'’s current policies restricting the placement of advertising and
promotional inserts in MLGW’s monthly bills are attached as Appendix 11.

Request No. 12. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

indicating the terms of the joint use pole agreements entered into between MLG&W

and requesting parties which requires payment per pole or per attachment. Please
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explain whether the rental rate is contingent upon the number of feet of pole space

assigned to the requesting party.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to
the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, copies of MLGW’s two
current joint use agreements are attached as Appendix 12. MLGW further objects
to the second part of this Request on the grounds that it calls for information that is
irrelevant and not likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, since
Memphis Networx does not plan to own any utility poles and, therefore, would not
be eligible to enter into a joint use agreement with MLGW.

Request No. 13. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

containing the terms of the joint use pole agreement entered into between MLG&W

and Memphis Networx.

Response: MLGW has not entered into a joint use agreement with Memphis
Networx.

Request No. 14. Identify all MLG&W staff, plant equipment, and all other

resources used to date in the electric division that assisted the telecom division.
Describe the level of and the extent to which they were involved. Describe the
allocation of costs from other divisions to the telecom division.

Response: Please see Response No. 4 with respect to cost allocation to the
Telecommunications Division. With respect to staff involvement relating to the

Telecommunications Division, MLGW provides the following listing of personnel, a
portion of whose time since the formation of the Telecommunications Division will
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be allocated to the Telecommunications Division following regulatory approval,
along with a current estimate of the time that those activities have occupied from
August 19, 1999 to date:

- Herman Morris, Jr., President and CEQ: Less than 5% of Mr. Morris’ time has
been devoted to review of the telecommunications project, evaluation and approval
to proceed in the formation of Memphis Networx, negotiation of the operating
agreement, and serving on the Memphis Networx Board of Governors.

- W.L. Thompson, Senior Vice President, Operations: Less than 5% of Mr.
Thompson’s time has been devoted to review of the telecommunications project,
evaluation and approval to proceed in the formation of Memphis Networx,
negotiation of the operating agreement, and representing MLGW’s interests in
subsequent matters.

- Wade Stinson, Vice President, Construction and Maintenance: Approximately
15% of Mr. Stinson’s time has been devoted to review of the telecommunications
project, input in decision to proceed in the formation of Memphis Networx,
negotiation of the operating agreement, and representing MLGW’s interests in
subsequent matters.

- Michael Whitten, General Auditor: Approximately 15% of Mr. Whitten’s time has
been devoted to financial analysis of the telecommunications project, input in
decision to proceed in the formation of Memphis Networx, negotiation of the
operating agreement, and representing MLGW’s interests in subsequent matters.

- John McCullough, Vice President, Finance: Less 5% of Mr. McCullough’s time has
been devoted to financial analysis of the telecommunications project, input in
decision to proceed in the formation of Memphis Networx, negotiation of the
operating agreement, and serving on the Memphis Networx Board of Governors.

- J. Maxwell Williams, General Counsel: Approximately 15% of Mr. Williams’ time
has been devoted to legal aspects associated with the analysis of the
telecommunications project, negotiation of the operating agreement and related
1ssues, formation of Memphis Networx, seeking regulatory approvals, and related
legal matters and to serving on the Memphis Networx Board of Governors.

- Charlotte Knight Griffin, Attorney Level IV, Litigation Coordinator:
Approximately 15% of Ms. Knight Griffin’s time has been devoted to legal aspects
associated with the analysis of the telecommunications project, negotiation of the
operating agreement and related issues, formation of Memphis Networx, seeking
regulatory approvals, and related legal matters.
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- Sheryl Radicioni, Executive Secretary: Approximately 5% of Ms. Radicioni’s time
has been devoted to administrative support for the Memphis Networx project.

MLGW further states that three other employees, Ronnie Sappington, Michael
Kissell, and Gene Crawford have been involved primarily with Electric Division
issues related to coordination of third party use of MLGW infrastructure. Any of
their work for the benefit of the Telecommunications Division or Memphis Networx
has been minimal.

With respect to MLGW’s out of pocket expenses for the telecommunications project,
please see the itemized expense listing attached as Exhibit C to Supplemental
Exhibit M to the Application of Memphis Networx, LLC, filed in this docket, which
includes expenses incurred prior to the formation of the MLGW
Telecommunications Division in August of 1999 and therefore did not “[assist] the
telecom division.” MLGW has attached as Appendix 14 a listing of out of pocket
expenses incurred since that time.

Request No. 15. Please indicate whether Memphis Networx has executed

or intends to execute an agreement with MLG&W to secure space in MLG&W’s
underground facilities. Identify any compensation being paid for the use of space in

the rights of way. Please provide a copy of any proposed or executed agreement.

Response: No such agreement has been entered into by Memphis Networx and
MLGW or proposed at this time. No rights of way are being used. If the parties
ever enter into an agreement, then it would be based on the same terms and
conditions as comparable agreements regarding third party access.
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Request No. 16. Please Identify any and all former employees of MLG&W

and A&L Networks that are current employees of Memphis Networx. Please

provide the name, address and job title for each employee.

Response: Memphis Networx, MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the
grounds that the Request is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the
discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing
objection, Dennis James, construction manager, worked for MLGW over twenty
years ago. His work address is 7555 Appling Center Drive, Memphis, Tennessee.

Request No. 17. Please describe in detail the hiring procedures for current

and future Memphis Networx’s employees, contractors and any other person

promoting the entity’s interests.

Response: Memphis Networx, MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the
grounds that the Request is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the
discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing
objection, attached as Appendix 17 is the hiring procedures document developed by
Ward Huddleston, CEO of Memphis Networx. Committees will consist of Memphis
Networx employees only.

Request No. 18. Please Identify the location or proposed location of the

Memphis Networx operations’ center.

Response: There is no operations center at this time. The proposed location is at
the current business office of Memphis Networx identified in the Application and
Joint Petition as:

7555 Appling Center Drive
Memphis, Tennessee 38133-5069
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Request No. 19. Please Identify the facilities, including general support

assets, that will be shared or jointly used between Memphis Networx and the

divisions of MLG&W.

Response: There are no plans to share or Jointly use facilities including general
support assets. Memphis Networx may enter into agreements to utilize MLGW
facilities and any agreements would be at arm’s length just as with any other
providers.

Request No. 20. Please indicate whether “Gross Asset Value” (as the term

1s defined in the proposed Operating Agreement) contributed by A&L Networks or
MLG&W is different from the gross fair market value of the asset. If a difference

exists, please provide an explanation for all differences.

Response: Not applicable, since all of the contributions by A&L Networks-
Tennessee, LLC and MLGW to Memphis Networx, LLC have been in cash.
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Request No. 21. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

pertaining to any and all loan applications which have been approved by the
Comptroller of the State of Tennessee and the Tennessee Valley Authority that are

in any way related to the application subject to this proceeding.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the
production of documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to
the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, MLGW has attached as
Appendix 21 copies of all correspondence between MLGW and the State Director of
Local Finance and between MLGW and TVA, relating to the inter-division loan
between MLGW'’s Electric Division and the Telecommunications Division of the
Electric Division.

Request No. 22. Identify any and all business entities in which MLG&W

holds an interest as of March 1, 2000. Describe the nature of the business,
MLG&W’s percentage ownership or interests in the entity, and the entity’s business

structure.

Response: To the extent that this Request calls for information relating to the
MGLW retirement system or the MLGW Post Retirement Medical Benefit Fund,
MLGW objects on the grounds that this Request calls for information that is
irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objection, MLGW states
that Memphis Networx is the only separate business entity that is responsive to
this Request and that its ownership and business structure is as set forth in the
Exhibits to the Application of Memphis Networx, LLC filed in this docket.
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Request No. 23. List all pursuits in which MLG&W is currently engaged

to increase its non-traditional revenue, i.e. income generated from sources other

than the delivery of electric, gas and water services.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that the Request is
vague and unclear, because the terms “pursuits” and “non-traditional revenue” are
not defined and because the example given for “non-traditional revenue” may not
accurately describe MLGW’s current or historic operations. Subject to and without
waiver of the foregoing, MLGW interprets this Request to require MLGW to identify
any additional current lines of business of MLGW that are not related to its electric,
gas or water operations, and MLGW directs TCTA to MLGW’s response to Request
No. 22.

Request No. 24. List the MLG&W construction projects started within the
past five (5) years, requiring the deployment of telecommunications facilities on
behalf of the electric, gas, and water divisions. Indicate whether Memphis Networx
will lease or have access to any of these facilities, including the terms of the

arrangement.

Response: Attached as Appendix 24 is a list of MLGW’s capital expenditures for
its telecommunications equipment and facilities from 1995-99. MLGW states that
there is no agreement for Memphis Networx to lease or have access to any of this
equipment or facilities. If MLGW and Memphis Networx enter into a future
agreement, then it would be consistent with all legal and regulatory requirements.
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Request No. 25. Indicate whether the operations of Memphis Networx will

be self-insured under MLG&W’s current program.

Response: No.

Request No. 26. Please Identify and provide any and all Documents

describing the process used to acquire the necessary managerial and technical
expertise, including, without limitation, the release of a Request for Proposal to
targeted entities or individuals; the number of Responses; the evaluation of
candidates; and the ultimate selection of consultants, employees, and network

equipment vendors.

Response: The response to Request No. 17 is responsive to this request. Memphis
Networx retained ADL because that firm was familiar with the project and had
substantial expertise in the area.

Request No. 27. Please Identify with particularity any and all charter

provisions, ordinances, resolutions, rules or regulations which authorize MLG&W to
enter into the proposed business relationship with A&L Networks to organize
Memphis Networx and/or provide the telecommunications services described in the

Application subject to this proceeding.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it seeks the mental
impressions, conclusions, opinions or legal theories of counsel or other
representatives concerning this regulatory proceeding or seeks information that is
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otherwise privileged, and that the Request calls for a legal conclusion. Subject to
and without waiver of the foregoing objections, MLGW states that it principally
relies upon Chapter 381 of the Private Acts of 1939, as amended, and codified as
Article 65 of the Charter and Related Laws of the City of Memphis, certain
Resolutions of the MLGW Board of Commissioners dated March 4, 1999, August 19,
1999, and October 21, 1999, and the provisions of Title 7, Chapter 52 of Tennessee
Code Annotated.

Request No. 28. Please provide a detailed description of the network
facilities that Memphis Networx has constructed or will be constructing, or has or
will be constructed for its use, for the purpose of providing the telecommunications
services described in the Application subject to this proceeding. Include in your
answer: (a) the location of the network facilities; (b) the name and address of the
contractor; (c) the date the construction was completed and/or the scheduled date of

completion; and (d) an itemization of the construction costs.

Response: No facilities have been constructed. No construction has taken place.
A Notice to Contractors of a pre-bid meeting has been released and is attached as
Appendix 28.
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Request No. 29. Please describe the relationship between the MLG&W

Division and the City of Memphis. Include in your answer: (a) an identification of
all enabling legislation enacted which is or was applicable to the creation,
organization and operation of MLG&W; (b) a description of the organizational
structure or an organizational chart of MLG&W; and (c) identification of the

owner(s) of MLG&W.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it seeks in part the
mental impressions, conclusions, opinions or legal theories of counsel or other
representatives concerning this regulatory proceeding or seeks information that is
otherwise privileged, and that the Request calls in part for a legal conclusion.
MLGW further objects to part (a) of this Request on the grounds that it is overly
broad, vague and unduly burdensome, in that numerous provisions of numerous
Titles of the Tennessee Code alone apply to the operation of MLGW, and that the
Request seeks information that is irrelevant and not likely to lead to the discovery
of admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections,
and 1n response to the various parts as follows: (a) Chapter 381 of the Private Acts
of 1939, as amended, and codified as Article 65 of the Charter and Related Laws of
the City of Memphis is the enabling legislation of MLGW, assuming that the term
“enabling legislation” means the legislation that originally created or “enabled”
MLGW and provided for its organization and operation, since the term “enabling
legislation” is not defined in this Request; MLGW has not identified in this
Response the numerous other statutes or other legal authorizations that could
“enable” some aspect of MLGW’s operations; (b) An organizational chart of MLGW
is attached as Appendix 29; (c) MLGW does not have “owners” in the traditional
sense and refers TCTA to the enabling legislation referred to in subpart (a) for this
legal issue.

Request No. 30. Identify and Provide any and all correspondence,

memoranda, notes, contracts, or other related Documents pertaining to the entity,
East 46th Street Partners. Describe the relationship between East 46th Street

Partners and Memphis Networx, A&L, and/or MLG&W. Describe any existing or
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proposed transactions, deals, ventures, or other related revenue-generating plans
with East 46th Street Partners, and Identify any agent, affiliate, employee, person,

or other party that may have knowledge relating to that relationship.

Response: MLGW, A&L and Memphis Networx object to this Request on the
grounds that it calls for the production of documents that are irrelevant and not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is
overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it may call for the production of
privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections,
MLGW directs TCTA to the documents produced in December of 1999 to John
Farris in response to his public records request, which apparently have been
furnished to TCTA. When used elsewhere in these Responses, the term “December
Public Records Response,” refers to this Response. For its response regarding
MLGW?’s relationship with East 46th Street, MLGW states that East 46th Street was
an unsuccessful bidder for participation in MLGW’s telecommunications project and
that MLGW has no continuing relationship with East 46th Street for
telecommunications projects. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing
objections, A&L states that it has no relationship with, and no documents
pertaining to, East 46th Street Partners. Subject to and without waiver of the
foregoing objections, Memphis Networx states that it has no documents pertaining
to, and no relationship with, East 46th Street Partners.

Request No. 31. Identify the actual rate of interest charged to the

telecommunication division of MLG&W pursuant to the twenty million dollar
(320,000,000.00) Revolving Line of Credit Note, and include the resource data and
related Documents used to calculate that rate of interest. (See document identified

as Attachment “A.”)
Response: In accordance with the approval of the State Director of Local Finance,
the inter-division loan of MLGW is subject to the Authority’s approval of the

Application of Memphis Networx. Therefore, the inter-division loan has not yet
been funded and no actual rate of interest has been charged.
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Request No. 32. Describe any collateral or any other security received by

MLG&W from Memphis Networx or A&L with respect to the twenty million dollar

($20,000,000.00) revolving line of credit.

Response: None. The inter-division loan is between MLGW’s Electric Division
and its Telecommunications Division, and MLGW’s Telecommunications Division
will receive a membership interest in Memphis Networx in exchange for its
subsequent capital contribution. Neither Memphis Networx nor A&L receive any
funds under the inter-division loan, and therefore neither Memphis Networx nor
A&L pledge any collateral or other security for the inter-division loan.

Request No. 33. Identify and Provide any and all pre-1999 correspondence,

memoranda, notes, contracts, or any other related Documents pertaining to the

Author D. Little, Inc. written by A&L and/or MLG&W.

Response: MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the grounds that the
Request is vague and unclear and may call for the production of privileged
documents. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, please see the
December Public Records Response. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, A&L has attached correspondence dated prior to January 1, 1999,
involving A&L and Arthur D. Little, Inc. It is attached as Confidential Appendix
33.
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Request No. 34. Describe the relationship between Arthur D. Little, Inc.

and A&L, and/or MLG&W, prior to 1999.

Response: MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the grounds that this
Request calls for information that is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to
lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents.
Subject to and without wavier of the foregoing, for its response, MLGW states that
it had become acquainted with certain Arthur D. Little consultants prior to 1999 in
their capacity as telecommunications consultants to A&L, but that it had not
engaged Arthur D. Little prior to 1999 in any capacity. Subject to and without
waiver of the foregoing objections, A&L states that prior to 1999, Arthur D. Little,
Inc. provided consulting services to A&L.

Request No. 85. Describe in detail the business case developed by
Memphis Networx and its strategic partner, MLG&W, finding that market
conditions  supported Memphis Networx’s entry into the telecommunication
services industry. Include any and all assumptions, data analysis, and any other
related Documents.

Response No. 35. MLGW objects to the characterization of MLGW as the

“strategic partner” of Memphis Networx on the basis that this description does not
properly describe the legal relationship between MLGW and Memphis Networx.

Memphis Networx objects to the provision of its detailed business case that market
conditions support entry into the telecommunications industry in that the
information sought is beyond the scope of information typically required by the TRA
for approval of CLEC applications and is unreasonable, cumulative and duplicative
of the information previously filed in this docket in support of the application. In
addition, Memphis Networx objects to this Request on the grounds that this
Request calls for information that is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to
lead to the discovery of admissible evidence and may call for the production of
privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, please see
the December Public Records Response.
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Request No. 36. In an August 23, 1999 e-mail that Alex Lowe of A&L
Underground sent to personnel at MLG&W, Mr. Lowe advised that A&L and
MLG&W should inventory their Documents to “prevent disclosure of sensitive
information if they get aggressive.” Mr. Lowe advised, moreover, that once this
information is identified and listed, it should “be moved to A&L (or Mnet? Ask
Rickie or Max) to keep it out of the line of fire.” Identify and produce both the list to
which Mr. Lowe refers, as well all the “sensitive documents.” Furthermore, Identify
the people who received this communication, the people specifically named in the e-
mail, and any other person who had knowledge of the e-mail’s existence. (See

document identified as Attachment “B.”)

Response: MLGW and A&L object to this Request on the grounds that this
Request calls for information that is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to
lead to the discovery of admissible evidence and that this Request is overly broad
and unduly burdensome to the extent that it requires MLGW and A&L to ascertain
each and every person “who had knowledge of the e-mail’s existence.” Subject to
and without waiver of the foregoing objections, for its response, MLGW states that
to its knowledge no such list was ever created; MLGW notes that the term
“sensitive documents” does not appear in the e-mail, dated August 23, 1999, from
Mr. Lowe, but avers that no documents containing the “sensitive information”
referred to in Mr. Lowe’s e-mail were identified and moved from MLGW. MLGW
and A&L state that the addressees on the e-mail from Alex Lowe (A&L) are Wade
Stinson (MLGW), Ed Powell (A&L), Ward Huddleston, Joel Halvorson (Arthur D.
Little), Jerry Freeman (Arthur D. Little), Erik Wetmore (Arthur D. Little), Mike
Whitten (MLGW), Mark Heuberger (MLGW), and Larry Thompson (MLGW).
MLGW and A&L further state that the references to “Jerry”, “Eric”, “Rickie” and
“Max” presumably relate to Jerry Freeman, Erik Wetmore, Ricky Wilkins (counsel
for A&L) and Max Williams (General Counsel for MLGW), and MLGW states that
neither Mr. Williams nor MLGW'’s other legal counsel were aware of this e-mail
until their review of documents in responding to the December Public Records
Response. A&L states that Mr. Wilkins was not aware of this e-mail until this data
request was made.
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Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, A&L does not know of a
list of sensitive documents, or of any documents which were moved from MLGW to
A&L or Memphis Networx to “prevent disclosure of sensitive information.”

It should be noted that the e-mail in question was given to John Farris (attorney
with the law firm of Farris, Mathews, Branan, Bobango & Hellen, counsel for TCTA
and Time Warner in this proceeding) by MLGW in response to the December Public
Records Response.

Request No. 37. Identify and describe any provisions, plans, or alternative

measures that will be utilized or implemented regarding the infrastructure
presently in place or other improvements already made in the event that the TRA

does not approve Memphis Networx’s Application for CCN.

Response:

There is no infrastructure in place.

Request No. 38. Describe Aptus and its relationship to A&L. Identify and

list Aptus’ board of directors (or the people who manage the business and its affairs,

if not organized as a traditional corporation).

Response:

Aptus is a Kansas limited liability company which is the sole member of A&L
Networks — Tennessee. George A. Lowe, II is the sole manager of Aptus.
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Request No. 39. Identify and provide a list of A&L shareholders (or

comparable investors if not organized as a traditional corporation), including, but

not limited to A&L Construction, A&L Underground, and A&L-Tennessee, L.L.C.

Response:

A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the production of
documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery
of admissible evidence, that it its overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it
may call for the production of privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver
of the foregoing objection, A&L states:

@) Aptus is the sole member of A&L Networks — Tennessee. The Lowe
Children Family Limited Partnership, a Kansas limited partnership , is the
sole member of Aptus. Lowe Holdings, LLC, a Kansas limited liability
company, is the sole general partner of, and owns a 1% interest in the profits
and losses of, the Lowe Children Family Limited Partnership, and an
irrevocable trust created by George A. Lowe, II for the benefit of his children
(the “1988 Irrevocable Children’s Trust”) is the sole limited partner of, and
owns a 99% interest in the profits and losses of, the Lowe Children Family

Limited Partnership. George A Lowe, II is the sole manager of Lowe
Holding, LLC.

(i)  A&L Underground, Inc. has issued and outstanding 50 shares of Class
A Voting Stock, owned by the 1996 revocable trust created by George A.
Lowe, II, and 450 shares of Class B Non-Voting Stock, owned by Lowe
Drilling, L.P., a Kansas limited partnership. George A. Lowe, II owns a .9%
general partnership interest and an 83% limited partnership interest in Lowe
Drilling, L.P.; Dan Lowe owns a .1% general partnership interest in Lowe
Drilling, L.P.; and the 1988 Irrevocable Children’s Trust owns a 16% limited
partnership interest in Lowe Drilling, L.P.

(1)) The A&L entities do not include an entity called A&L Construction.

Request No. 40. Identify and provide a list of A&L’s board of directors (or

the people who manage the business and its affairs, if not organized as a traditional
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corporation) including, but not limited to A&L Construction, A&L Underground,

and A&L-Tennessee, L.L.C.

Response:

See response to Request Number 39.

Request No. 41. Provide A&L Underground’s audited and unaudited 1998

financial records.

Response:

A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the production of
documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery
of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it
may call for the production of privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver
of the foregoing objection, A&L has attached its audited financial statements
prepared as of and for the twelve months ended October 31, 1998, as Confidential
Appendix 41 pursuant to the protective agreement in the docket.

Request No. 42. Provide A&L Networks-Tennessee, L.L.C.s operating

agreement.

Response:
See attached Confidential Appendix 42.
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Request No. 43. Identify, describe and document any loan commitments

from third parties to MLG&W, A&L, or Memphis Networx. Identify the lender and

the terms. If applicable, please provide a copy of the Document.

Response: MLGW, A&L and Memphis Networx have not received any loan
commitments from third parties for the Memphis Networx project.

Request No. 44. Identify the percentage of long-term debt projected to be

outstanding in Year 4 according to the Memphis Networx Pro Forma Balance Sheet
(Exhibit H) that will be in the form of a loan from MLG&W and the percentage that
will be guaranteed by MLG&W. Please provide the percentage of Year 4 long-term
debt that will be secured from parties other than stakeholders in the Memphis

Networx LLC.

Response: For its response, MLGW states that it has no plans to make any loan
to Memphis Networx nor to guarantee any third party loan to Memphis Networx.
In addition, see response of Memphis Networx in Confidential Appendix 44.

Request No. 45. Provide a percentage breakdown of the Year 1 start-up

costs projected to be incurred by Memphis Networx according to the Pro Forma
financial statements (Exhibit H) by major category of expenditure (e.g. managerial

consultants, technical consultants, etc.)

Response:

See Confidential Response in Appendix 45 filed pursuant to the protective
agreement in this docket.
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Request No. 46. Identify, describe and provide any and all Documents
Memphis Networx, A&L, and/or MLG&W may have prepared indicating the

economic viability of the Memphis Networx venture.

Response: MLGW, A&L and Memphis Networx object to this Request on the
grounds that it is overly broad and unduly burdensome, that it is vague and unclear
in that the term “economic viability” is not defined, and that it may call for the
production of privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing,
MGLW states please see the December Public Records Response. Subject to and
without waiver of the foregoing, A&L and Memphis Networx state that they have
not prepared, and have relied upon consultants for the preparation of, economic
analyses.

Request No. 47. Identify, describe and provide any and all Documents

Memphis Networx, A&L, and/or MLG&W may have prepared showing the
circumstances under which MLG&W, A&L, and/or Memphis Networx would lose

money, or that the venture was not an economically viable or feasible arrangement.

Response: MLGW, A&L and Memphis Networx object to this Request on the
grounds that it is overly broad and unduly burdensome, that it is vague and unclear
in that the terms “lose money” and “economically viable” and “feasible” are not
defined, and that it may call for the production of privileged documents. Subject to
and without waiver of the foregoing, MLGW states please see the December Public
Records Response. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, A&L and
Memphis Networx state that they have not prepared, and have relied upon
consultants for the preparation of, economic analyses.
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Request No. 48. Provide the date, amount, and purpose of any investment,

cash or otherwise, by A&L for Memphis Networx.

Response:

Pursuant to Section 9.1(a) of the Operating Agreement dated November 8, 1999,
entered into between MLGW and A&L Networks — Tennessee, A&L made an initial
capital contribution to Memphis Networx of $467. In addition, A&L has incurred
certain Prior Costs, Subsequent Costs and Interim Contributions as contemplated
by that certain Agreement dated November 8, 1999, between MLGW and A&L
Networks — Tennessee (the “Umbrella Agreement”). Within 75 days after the
Tennessee Regulatory Authority issues a final order granting in all material
respects the relief requested in the Application and Joint Petition, A&L Networks —
Tennessee is obligated to contribute $4,666,200 to Memphis Networx, less A&L
Networks — Tennessee’s Prior Costs, Subsequent Costs and Interim Contributions.

See attached confidential Appendix 48.

Request No. 49. Identify and produce any contract or related arrangement
with a minority-owned, minority-involved or small business entity wherein said

entity will provide services or goods to Memphis Networx.

Response:

Memphis Networx objects to this Request on the grounds that it is irrelevant and
not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to
and without waiver of the foregoing objection, Memphis Networx states that it has
contracted and engaged minority-owned businesses to provide goods and services.

See Confidential Response in Appendix 49 filed pursuant to the protective
agreement in this docket.
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Request No. 50. Provide a chart describing the ethnic and/or gender

diversity of A&L’s workforce.

Response:

A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it is irrelevant and not reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without
waiver of the foregoing objection, A&L states that currently, A&L has only seven
employees, four men, and three women.

Request No. 51. Identify and describe any current or potential minority-

owned investor in Memphis Networx.

Response:

None have been identified.

Request No. 52. Identify and provide any and all Documents relating to

MLG&W’s, Memphis Networx’s, or A&L’s relationship with Entergy.

Response: MLGW, A&L and Memphis Networx object to this Request on the
grounds that it calls for the production of documents that are irrelevant and not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, that it is
overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it may call for the production of
privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing objections,
MLGW has no formal relationship with any of the Entergy companies, but MLGW
interprets this Request to refer to discussions between MLGW and Entergy
Technology Company that were mentioned in certain documents furnished in the
December Public Records Response; MLGW’s most recent discussion draft
Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement between MLGW and Entergy Technology
Company is attached as Appendix 52.
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A&L and Memphis Networx have no relationship with Entergy.

Request No. 53. Describe any monetary advances made against any inter-

divisional loan made to date from the MLG&W’s electric division to the telecom

division.

Response: Please see MLGW’s response to Request No. 31.

Request No. 54. Describe the changes, if any, to the business plan and

equity investments described in the November 19, 1999 letter to John McCullough
from David Bowling, the Acting Director for the Comptroller of the Treasury.
Please provide copies of both the original and revised plans. (See document

identified as Attachment “C.”)

Response: Please see ML.GW’s response to Request No. 21. A comparison of these
documents will identify any changes made to the Memphis Networx business plan.
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Request No. 55. Describe any other public utility that has proposed to

enter into, has declined to enter into, or has actually entered into the
telecommunications industry, either directly or indirectly, within the past five (5)
years that MLG&W either reviewed and/or relied upon during its decision to

provide the proposed services.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for
information that is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery
of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that the
Request inaccurately describes MLGW as a “public utility” in the legal sense of that
word. Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing, MLGW states that it
primarily considered the Chattanooga Electric Power Board, along with the
expertise of Arthur D. Little. MLGW further states that several members of its
management team attended wutility conferences where the topic of
telecommunications was addressed and the experiences of several utilities were
presented.

Request No. 56. List all the cities and describe projects where A&L is

currently operating a similar telecommunications service network.

Response:

A&L objects to this Request on the grounds that it calls for the production of
documents that are irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery
of admissible evidence, that it is overly broad and unduly burdensome, and that it
may call for the production of privileged documents. Subject to and without waiver
of the foregoing objections, A&L states that it is not currently operating a similar
telecommunications service network.
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Request No. 57. Provide the Income Statement for A&L-Tennessee, LLC.

Response:

To date, A&L Networks — Tennessee has not prepared an income statement,
because it has not had any income, and most of its expenditures have been
capitalized.

Request No. 58. With the exception of differences incidental to the types of
services it provides, is MLG&W organized or managed any differently than any
other department or division of the government of the City of Memphis? If so,

please specifically describe any and all differences.

Response: MLGW objects to this Request on the following grounds: (1) that it is
irrelevant and not likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence because
MLGW is organized and managed separately and apart from the City of Memphis
general government; (2) that it seeks in part the mental impressions, conclusions,
opinions or legal theories of counsel or other representatives concerning this
litigation or seeks information that is otherwise privileged, and that the Request
calls in part for a legal conclusion; (3) that it is overly broad and unduly
burdensome to the extent that it requires MLGW to identify each and every
difference between the organization or management of MLGW and the organization
and management of the departments or divisions of the City of Memphis general
government, since MLGW has insufficient knowledge regarding the internal
organization and management of said departments or divisions of the City of
Memphis general government.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

&

I, D. Billye Sanders, hereby certify that on this / day of March, 2000, a
true and correct copy of the foregoing was delivered by hand delivery, facsimile or
U.S. Mail postage pre-paid to the Counsel of Record listed below.

Henry Walker, Esq.

Boult Cummings Conners &
Berry, PLC

414 Union Street, Suite 1600
P. O. Box 198062

Nashville, TN 37219

Attorney for NEXTLINK, Tennessee,

Inc.

Charles B. Welch, Jr., Esq.

Farris, Mathews, Branan, Bobango
& Hellen, P.L.C.

618 Church Street

Suite 300

Nashville, TN 37219

Attorney for Time Warner of the
Mid-South L.P., Time Warner
Communications of the Mid-South,
L.P., and the Tennessee Cable

Telecommunications Association
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D. Billye Sar'{ders, Esq.

Guy Hicks, Esq.

Patrick Turner, Esq.

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
333 Commerce Street

Suite 2101

Nashville, TN 37201-3300

Attorneys for BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc.

John Knox Walkup, Esq.
Wyatt Tarrant & Combs
511 Union Street,

Suite 1500

Nashville, TN 37219-1750
615-244-0200

Attorney for A&L Networx —
Tennessee, LLC and Memphis
Networx



RESPONSE TO:

TCTA — Appendix 1 Confidential (filed under seal)



RESPONSE TO:

TCTA — Appendix 2
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: : ! H § H ! ! ¢ H
! : : ! H H : ! to !
! + : H | 1 H i } H I
i ! H H ! : J H I i
! I t H ! H { o H
: i ! ! H | ! i i1 :
: H I ! ¢ ! ! ! LR H
! ! ! ! ! ! ! t Pt 4
! : ! | ; ! { ! It :
! H H i ! i 1 ! H ! '
! | : H ! H ' H i1 t
! ! H ! i ! ! i i |
¢ ! ! ! 1 ! ! ! o r :
H : H H ! i H i ! H
!

ToreL 15034 150.34

PREPARED BY APCRINED BY APPAQNED BY




PAGE @5

MLGW

9815284991

83/08/2008 15:97

COANIEATIIN EOUIPRENT
PLANT ACCOLNT DEP. ACCDUMT
ZHB-3 Y3970
ACCOUNT BRLANLE
1195192.97
TRY RATE
I1'8 530 8 2,158 8 9557 CITY
10 .55 9 2.15¢ 8 9557 CoUNTY
INT, &are
b3
EF. RATE
S¥
0% HYRAIE
ELECTRIC 4,90
EfS 12.00 v
WATER 13,00
WL PLANY O, RANTMBUS AL INTEREST  DEPRECIATIDM  CIPY Couwry D3®  WNTDEP.,TAT MONTHLY
M5IS  WLIES  IEPREL. ALTYM, SIS ENPENSE EXPENSE TAK A% EAPENSE Gt N EIPENSE
thCTINL) S DEFREC. 1591 ENPENSE  EWPENSE 1o By
BY U USABE
ELECTRIC 100 43299042 MSUL.75 49717658 0717%.66 2435083 J1629.52 30504 375,02 0.00 SEAT.0  ER3RAP
3 100 NBEB.04  STHLY  WMLL07  1R14Ds.07 954380 1224440 215,18 201,89 .00 0.0 2250.00
Wt L9 I 5Nt Hyr.s Yo nnan o 138 9153 0.0 16935.01 ML
1014 JICT033.98 20938372 798650.28  796450.26 RVA SISSE. 67 .47 1290.70 000 110005 40834
N f
RENT DI 65 FER WONTN ¢ROM:
e AT, 2EMT CREDIT
Ho1-9510 57849
201-10
301-9310 nm.zs
1400-0400
2000-040¢ 13034
340¢-0400
1ot NS MM




PAGE 86

MLGW

9815284931

63/98/2888 15:97

! JOURNAL VOLCHER H LB DIVISIN !
fewmmaenns Cemmmmmemem e el i-- !
IJOURNAL VIUDIER INTERDEPT. RENTS-LARORATORY RRQLE EQUIP, (DMMED By ELECTRIC) ¢ JORNL VUOER # !
JOURMAL VOUCHER Tvpe S Offset Biv 1 Trans Flag ___ Sourcer IV H :
' TRANGACT 10N DATE: 7-30-92 ! e !
SFAGE: BATCH COWTROL TOTAE 5,2 : H
'LINES FER PAGE:_____ : :
i = =323 !
! Line iFerfors iChargeiPequest IMork Feq 2 FERC ! ODEBIT ! CREDIT  IMLCL ¢ H
iNusber ! Ares ! Code ! frea ! Nusber I Nomber ! AMENT ! RONT (e ! DEECRIPTION H
! ==}
{ ! ! ! ! : ' H H ! !
P L00 (988BER (4900 BABAR . T 240193t0! 2006 ¢ ' {RENTS-NISC. LAB. & RADID EQUIP.-BRS !
' 2.00 '96R891 4902 :9e0PER 1 34019310, 138,94 ! ! {FEMNTSHISC. 1AB. % RADID EQUIP.-WRTER !
1 3.00 1959999 19004 1959499 + 13000400; ! ..ﬁamn ! {RENT REVEME FROM ELECTRIC FROPERTY !
! ! ! ! ! H ! ! e !
! : ' : : ! H ! H H H
! ! H ! ! H H : ! ! i
H ! : ' : ! ! H ! ' |
H H H ! H ; H H ! : !
! ' : ! H H ! t ! 1 |
| H H ! H | ! i ! : H
! ! b H H I ! { ! : :
H ! H ! : i ! ! ! ' '
! ! ! ! ¢ ! ! i H ! :
' ! ! ! ! H ! H : | H
] ! ! H i i : 4 H ! !
H i ! ! ! ! H : ! H H
N : H : H ! ! i H : H
¥ H H H H ! ! ! H H H
! H H H ! i } ! ! 1 ’ H
! t ! i LIS ! H H : H !

!

FREPARED BY AFPSOVED BY




PAGE @7

MLGW

9915284991

83/08/2000 15:07

LARORATIRY & RADID EQURFMENT

PLANT ACCOLIE DEFREC. ACCOUNT
18-85 LILF-2950
AECIUNT Rex ANCE

1237304

M ke

(1 0.55 9 2,151 ¢ .97 Ciny
IT 9 .55 3 2,687 1 9557 coonpy

[T, RAIE
oX
DEF. RATE
ax
0 & ¥ IRATE
ELECTRIC .00
BAS 12,00 »
MTER 1300
SPLLT FEANT ACCLM.  PLANT HIMS AL INTEREST DEFREC. Wiy ] ComTY &N INT,DEF TA2  mOWTMLY
BASIS ViLUE BY DEPREE, ACTIN, M5IS EIPENsE ETPENSE Tex TAX EPOEE % Bt m EXPENSE
taLt USABE DEFREC, I EXPENE  Exponst 101 »
BY SABE ISAGE
ELECTRIC 0.81 TG B 65848.02 952%.79  %5%.79 e, 34 8399 107,66 18,22 0.00 srz.2 551.08
GRS [ !} N . JB.25  3Mp.25 1687.1} 286,16 42,34 SN .00 285247 221.0¢
WATER .13 18455, 6) 16102, U285 1265 7.3 1479.85 26.47 . 4% 8.00 1457,92 138,44
T0TAL 100 117,40 102619.71  15817.89 15617, 89 750,89 17,50 3.3 0.00 1105260 24.07

RENT [ME ELECTRIC FER AONTH FRON
W RCLT. & DepLT DReanT

1401-9310
2401-5310 1%
01-9310 138,14

1400-0400 3n
24000400 .
J400-0k0n

ToraL IN.22 =2

503, 99




PAGE @8

MLGW

9815284991

03/08/2088 15:07

INERDEPT. REMIS-LAPORATORY ERUTPHENT 10MED BY B45

IR YOUDHER N

FaRE:
‘LINS

FER FiGEs

Dtdset biv b

JORNAL VOUCHER

MLGN DIVISHON

Trang Flag___ Source: W

JORNYL. VIVDHER ¢

TARKSACT 10N DATE:
FATDH OONTADL 10TAL

7-30-92

$442.43

8
|
!
{

i Line Ferfore iCharge! Request {Mork Req | FERC ¢
{ Ares iCode! feps 1

ey

i dymber ¢ Nusber

DEBJ ¥
AN

+  CREDIT
)

-
Ea

TS,

DESCRIPT EOW

1.0
P00
? Lo
i
1

'SREBIR 4500
<790858 4902
INE m2

e me wm ee

I
g

78e868
785098
799978

! H
i 140193100
< JWI%310;
! 24000400}

= = 2 e

IRENIS - NISC. LAD. EQUIP,-ELECIRIC.
$RENIS ~ NISC. LAB, EQUIP.~WATER
*RENT REVEMLE FROM 6 PROPERTY

H

{

1

_— L] "

H ! H H ! 1 ! H
i H ! H H H : ! H

H H H H H ! H i i H
: H i : : ! H ! ! !
! ! ! ¢ H H H l ] !
: H | ! : ! i H H \
¢ H : | f H ! H ! H
i ! ! H H H i : H i
! H H ! ! ! ! 1 ! H
! H : ! ' 1 | H H :
: H H ! ; : ! ! | !
H ! 3 | I } ‘ | i !
} H i H ! 1 H ! b i
! H 1 ! : H H H ! !
. H H ! H : H [ i f
! | ! H H H H ! H ! r
: ! ! ? ! ! ! : } i
| ' ! H ! H H ! ! :
: ! H ! L i ! ! i H
i i 7 i ? H H ! i !
' ! ! i ! H i ; ! :
H H : H ! H ! ! I H

TOTAL

FREPARED BY

AFFRIVED BY

482,83

8§
z

|

!

.-—I..h—-----_—-—------§‘______“.-__-._‘.-__--.‘

TT AW Su me o= el 4 o ae am ey ys




PAGE 83

MLGW

9915284991

83/88/2080 15:07

PLART ACCOINT DEPREC. ACDOUNT
JUB-Y 2U13-3350
ACCOUNT BALANCE

i118.08

TAY RATE
U2 55t 1 2,150 0 9557 CITY
118,557 ¢ 2,950 ¢ %557 emmTy

LASORATORY EWUIFHENT

INT, RAIE
N
DEF, RATE
8
O%&NYRAIE
ELELTRIC 6,00 )
5 17.00 -
WATER 13,0
ST FLANT ACCIM.  PLANT MING 34K INTEREST  DEFRECIATION  CITY DOUNTY OkA INT, DEP,TAY MONTHLY
SIS VALLE By DEPREC.  ACOM, Mty ETPENSE EWPEIE Tax AL EYPENSE RN | EIPENSE
hEB USAGE DEPREC. 1991 EXPENSE  EXPENSE AL o
BY USHEE LISAGE
ELECTRIE 6.51 BINSR  1928.40  WERL.L0 19e8).14 $M4.05 iuxRn 22448 300.97 0,00 5049,47 W37
GRS .24 IS0 5.0 w200 7208 .10 123, % 8,40 118,41 0.00 1128. 51 .4
NATER 0.15 WA 4732 490800 48, B0 2444 W3.37 B8 Mol 0. 1143.07 0B
oTAL 1.0 .08 JSTL1I0 31,98 3259198 K.k w3 0.00 Je0.44 87504

RENT DUE 645 PER WONTH £ROM:

v oo A DERIT ed Iy
1401-9310 387,37
2404-%310
3401-9310 5.2
1400-0400
2400-0400 482,483
3400-0400

10T 92.53 482,43

5129.13 8.3




PAGE 180

MLGW

9915284991

03/08/20008 15:97

JOURNAL VOUCHER MLEW HYISIDe H

JRURNAL VOUCIER MUE  INTERDEPT, RENTS-STORES EQUIFYENT (DWED BY @4S) JORWL VDR Y ¢

JORNY. YOLLHER Type 5 Di4set Diy I Trans Flag____ Sowrcer v !
! TROWGECTIIN DATE: 7-30-92 KEED _
HOEE; MTCH DONTRTE. TOTAL $1,170.54
LLES FOR FOGE:__
1asTens= g =
i Line iFerfors i(hargeifequest tMork Reg ¢ FERC ! [EBIT ¢ CREDIT  IFLOL | ;
Norber ! fAres | Code ! Area ! Musber ! Musber : aMONT i OHNONT ot BESCRIPTION !
.. ] d ] : ! ! ! L !
1 1.00 ;988080 14900 1965886 | I LITE 1T TR 3 : iRENTS - #i5C. STORES EUIP,-ELECTRIC, !
| 2.00 (98888 4507 509338 ! { Moiesto! 231,91 ! IRENTS - NISC, STORES ERUIP,-ELECTRIC. |
P60 195999 1821 (w99 | 1 24000400 R ¥ X T {RENT REVEME FROM BAS PROPERTY !
d ] ! ! ! : 1 ! PO ! H
! 1 ! : H ! : : v !
H ! ! ! H ! ! t i !
: : : i ! : H ! HE !
: : ] ! ] : i ] N !
: ! ] H : ! ! ! [ !
: ! ! ! ' ! : : i 1 :
! : i ' : ! I H ! :
] H ! ] ! H ! : L !
] : ' ] ] ! ! 1 | ] !
! : ! ! ! : ] H H ! !
' ! ! H ! } i H I !
H H ] ! : ! ! ¢ I '
| ! 1 | ! H ! | ! ! !
] : : ! ! ! ! ! ! ] ]
! : : ! : ! ] ! ] ! !

r

: ] ! : ! 1 | H N :
! ] ! ! ! ! 1 !

Tote 117094 120,94

FREPARED BY HPPROVED BY APFRIVED BY




PAGE 11

MLGW

9915284991

83/98/2008 15:07

STORES EQUIFMEN!
FLANT ATCOUMT DEPREC. ALDUME
18T TB-R
ALCOUNT RaLanct
472,39
1A% RAE

655 02058 ¢ 55 0oy
U1 B 2ISE L LRSS LTy

T, AT
3%
ME. RME
2
B ¥ N2 RAE
ELECIRIC 4,00
B 17.00 o
WfER 1300
S FLANT ACDUN,  FLANT MINUS TAX INTREST  DEPRECIATION  CiTv CONTY O¥#  INT,DEP,IAY, MONTALY
BASIS WLEJY  DePrEL. AT, BsrS ESFENSE €IFENSE m TR EXPENSE o EXPENSE
A% Bl VA UEPREC. 1M EIFENSE  EXPENGE ToraL By
BY USARE usese
ELECTRIC 0.6l WIS I¥TS e 49380, 58 niR.04 W54 7808 1050.31 0.0 na.m ¥39.83
6AS 024 B 5105027 21874 A 1364.87 350,64 8. 49 HiN Q.00 W sm
WTER 0.15 HWLA  HW0.B0 1705087 1705087 B304 MR 15 172,81 28.27 e.00 any mn
TaraL LM 38070 21748 113739.15 113739.15 S6H6. 3 T sy 1oL 0.00 1g4g0. & 1540.79

£

RENT DUE BAS  FER AONTH FRON:

wNae ACT. DEBIT [REDIY
101-910 .6
2401-9310
3901-9310 L1
19800-DA00
200-0400 1170.54
Jo0-0%00

fara nres  1HONH




PAGE 02

MLGW

9815284991

83/88/20008 15:11

JOURKL VQUCHER AEW DIVISION i
10Ul VOUCHER NYE INTERCEFT. HENTS-SIDRES EQUIP. (owned by electric) JOURNAL VOUCIER 9 ;
HOBWL VOUCHER Type S Offset Biv B Trans Flag____ Sowce: JV
H FRARSALTION DATE: 7-30-%2 KEVED :
iPAGE; BATOH CONTRAL TOTAL $62.85 !
ILINES PER PAGE: !
! Line !Parforu !Charge!Request (Nork Req ! FEAC | DEBIT | CREDIY iPifY ! H
(Musber{ Area : Code | Area § Nusher ! Musher | MAF | ADINT ! (Cd ! DESCRIPTION :
! = :
i H ' H ! ! 4 H ! ' !
| 10D (969888 4901 ;'88838 ! i 2401930 .89 ¢ i iRENTS - STORES EQUIP. -61S H
{2.00 1998088 14502 :9BdMa8 ! i H019319¢ .18 ! i {FENTS - STORES EQUIP. -MATER !
1 3.00 1999999 18204 199 ! § 180004003 : &2.85 | {RENT REVEMUE FRON ELECTRIC PROPERTY '
' H ! H H H ' H ! H H
: ! ! : ] ! ! O ! !
H ! ! 1 | ! H : H !
! H H ! H H ! H ! i
| : H H H H H | ' | H
| ! H H H H H ! ! :
H | H H i H i ! H | H
: ! | H H | H | 1 H !
H H ! H | ! ! H H H !
H i ] ! I ! ! : i H '
| : H ! ! H ! ! ! H [
! ! H ! H i H i i H
H ! H H H H : I ! H }
1 i i H ! : ! 1 H H !
H ! H ! ! H ! 1 H H H
H i H H | ! ! H H H F
3 H H ! H ! i ! i H H
! : £ ! H H : ! ! H '
| H 4 ! H 4 H H i [ |

!
TOTAL 42,84 62,8

PREFARED BY AFPROVED BY APPROVED BY




PAGE 83

MLGW

9815284991

83/88/2008 15:11

STORES EDUIPPENT
FLANT AOCDUNT DEFREC.  ACCOLMF ~
t101-3938 1108-3956

ACLRINT BLACE
ESy W |

TAX RATE
.55 2,
i1e .55 02,
1/, RATE
2

15 ¢ .§597 CETY
5-.838.!.:.

DEF. RAIE
14

DY Nn2XRTE
ELECTRIC 6.00
BAS 17.00
WIER  13.00° a

LT T ACDM.  PLANT NEMS  TAY INIEREST  DEPRECIATION  ClTY LONTY OkN INT,DEP,YAK  MONTHLY

BASIS VALLE BY JEFREE.  DEPREL. ME[S EXFENSE EIPENSE ThX TA% TaX aan EXPENSE
A & 6 USAGE BY USAGE 191 EXPENSE  ENPEME  ENPENSE Lot By
USAEE
ELECTRIC 0.8t W47L3E 1474085 493086 4930.45 344,53 .14 78.32 104,92 0.00 nm.n 98.33
BAS 024 B2 S.e MR Th.m 136.34 N.n 3,82 1.2 0.00 "5 .6
WATER 0.15 BB/.0 BT 1L 10828 K. 159.87 1%.28 2350 .00 2%0.18 .18
TR 1.00 35526.74  MB65.00 1135074 1136!,T4 546, 7 1065, 80 wmm...e 172.00 2.00 1934.29 kat.1e

-
‘

RENT LUE EYFETRIC PER MOMGH FRON:

PN | ACLT. ¥ BN CREDIT
1801-9310
2404-9310 .47
JAL-5310 .18
1500-0400 82.85
24000400
J400-0400

TOTA, 42.5& 62,8




PAGE &4

MLGW

9815284991

93/98/2008 15:11

JOURWAL VDUDER ! 54 HVISION H
H -- H -1
HJOURNAL VOUCHER WOHE INYERDEFT. RENTSFFICE FURNITURE (OWMED BY 643) | JOURNAL VOUDIER 4 H
JJOLRMAL VIUICHER TWPE S Di{set Div I3 Trans Flag____ Sowrcer v ! i
: TRANSCT N DATE: 1-30-92 ! YEED !
\FAGE: UCH CONTROL. TOTAL 31, 156,32 : H
'LINES FER PEEs ! !
! Line tPerform IChargeiRequest ihork Req | FERC ! DEBIT | EREBIT  IPLLL ¢ !
iNusber! fArex ! Qode ! frea | Mumber | Musber ! WIOIKT ! AMOUNT ! H DESCHAIPTION !
m ! ! H ' ! o H ! ! H m
o 1.00 ;996838 (€909 908088 | TMHOITII0 2H5015.23 ¢ +RENTS - NISC. BLDGS. EIPENSE -ELECTRIC!
} 2.00 1595808 {4502 !9BGRBE ¢ ¢ 0153108 &(51.29 ¢ ot RENTS -~ MISC, BLDGS. EJPENGE -WATER !
! 3,00 I1SA5999  IB23A 9VERYT | ¢ 240004003 31652 ... \RENT REVEME FRON BRS PROPERTY H
! | { H H 1 | | tA | !
! ! ! 14 H H H ! ! ! !
i ! H H H 1 H ! i ! H
H ! ' H H H ! H ! !
H ! H : ! H ! H : i H
! | H ] H H H | H H !
H ! ! H i H | ! ! H H
H H H H H 1 | H 4 |
H ! I H H t ! ! ! : !
i i H H ! H H H i H
H L ! H ! H i | ! 1 !
H H H H ! ! H | | 1 H
H 3 | ! ! ! ! | ! ! !
v H ! { ! ! ! } 1 f H
i t ! 4 H H ! ! H } 3
! : P ! : ! { b ) :
! | { H | H ! H | | |
H ! H : ' H H ' { | !

004 168,52 1.5
FREPARED RY APEROVED BY NFFRIVED BY



PAGE 05

MLGW

9815284991

03/88/2008 15:11

UFFICE FURMITURE § FIITIRES

PUANT ACCOUN] PEFREC. ACLONT
THE-3910 2119-3910
AEONT RALANCE
TN 28
1RA FATE
18 .55 9 2,157 ¢ 5957 CITY
10,55 ¢ 2.(52 1,595 COUNTY
INT. RAIE
A 5%
[EF, RATE
a
0 kN LRATE
ELECTRIC 8,06 .
6 7.0 V.
MR 13.00
FLI PLA ACDM.  PLANT KINS TR INTEREST  DEPRECIATION EETY  COMIY O kM DNT,DEP,TAK. MONTHLY
BSIS  WALE BY  DEPREC. SO BA31S EFENE  EIPOEE 0] W OEPME  U¥M EPDEE
WVE)  USheE DEPREL. 1991 EFENE  EXPENSE WA -]
BY LS6E USAeE
ELECTRIC 0.51  SATHOF5.00 167616674 202X5.06 200209.05  100110.45  LAFI5.03  22620.27 J030.02 0.00 3001827 2501523
Y] 0.2 1MMN.DZ EWSH WA TETSLYN  NRLTT O SRONEY w3 1.5 0.0 1101470 98020
WATER 015 F051B.84  M2D215  49ZMAAY  ATZMGE  MSILE B0 TM.08 MIX.A 0.00  TIBIS.M 6ISL2Y
1070L LO WMI4.28 2470132 JAZNT.H LRRNH  GIST BIOLT SORLE NG 0.00  472002.%1 4100850

REM! DE BAS  FER MINTH FRON;

R ALCT. A DERIT CREDIT
1461-9310 2015. 23
2401-931¢
3101-9310 L
1400040
2400-0800 31166.52
HOP-0190

i k.2 J11Ek.S2

4



PAGE 06

MLGW

9815284991

83/08/2000 15:11

JOURAL VIRICHER

MLOW DIVISIEN

AL VILCHER NAE

TNTERDEPT. RENTS-TOOLS SHOP AND GARAGE EQUIF.
Trans Fiag__ Source: W

JOURNAL WOUCHER 1

IRNAL Fype S Difset Div ¢l

FABE:

TRANSACTION DATE:

+30-92 - KEYED

BATCH CONTRX. TDTAL 97,834, 79 —

ILIMES FER PAGE:___
¢ Line iPerfoea iCharge!Request iMork Req ¢ FERC ¢ DEBIT |  DRENNT (PO !
iMber! frea !Code ! Mrea !Musber $ Maber ! AONT ! AOINT !Cd ! PESCALPIION
4
: ! 1 i t H { ] ] :
! L.OD I0B6BR %0 960868 ! | 019310 490,06 | {RENTS ~ TOOLS SHOP & GAA. EOUIP-ELEC, !
! 2.00 ivBeBSA M902 !36806B ! | 301930 146,24 ¢ | RENTY ~ TOOLS SHOP & GAR. EQUIP-ELET. |
:3.00 1999997 18234 099699 ! ! 24000400 P76 LRENT REVEME FACN GAS PROPERTY !
: 1 H i : ] : ! Voot

! ! ! ] ! PR
! ' ! : ! ! ! -
! ! i t { : i i FR
! ! ! ] I ! : ! to
H ! i ! ! ; : | o
' : ! ! 1 f : ! (R
! : : ! ! ' ! ! T i
t : ! H ! ) 1 :
! H ! : i ! ! ! LI :
! : ] t ! ! i ! Voot :
! ! ! ! 1 ! : ! | ]
! | J ! i ! f b ;
: ! 1 ! : 1 ! ! !
v “ m b m
! ' : 1 ! !
] : : ! !

TOTAL mR®.79 783879

PREPORED BY FPPRONED BY FERIVED BY




PAGE @7

MLGW

39815284991

B3/08/2088 15:11

TS SHOP AND GARAGE EQUIFMENT

PLANT ACCOLNT DEPREC. ACCOUNT
2118-3%%0 2119-3740
ACCOUNT BALANCE

1319572.47
TAX RATE

(0 ¢ .55t 9 2,158 ¢ .9557 CITY
it ) .55 9 2.882 ¢ 9957 DOLNTY

INT, RATE
5t
DEP. RATE
Bt
Dk T RATE
ELECTRIC 8.00
®5 1.0
WTER  13.00 :
FT FUWT  WOM. PUNTNMS & INIREST  DEPRECIATION  €ITY  COINTY Q4 # INT,DEP,TAT  MONTHY
BASIS  VALLE BY  DEFREC.  AOIUM.  BYGIS EPENSE  EXPENSE Tax TR ESPEMSE DM DPENE
MEE U DFREL. 1991 EENSE  EIPRICE A BY
BY USHEE US%6E
ELEEIC 051  JATF.21 SSINS5.07 UL MSZLI TEL2L M. LM 219582 0.00  THELI0  £290.05
BAS 0.24  3l6097.39 25963872 SASG.M8  SMSLEE 25073 ST oG BLTY 000 294732 ANM.76
WATER 005 IUNI.ET BZM.20 TLET  TUALET  DB3.08 MM 4@ 5.6 .00 I65H0.6T 154,74
TOIAL L0 ISIYIZAY ARIBT.FE ZITIMAY TS HBET.ZZ  10S565.80  A06T 350904 0.00 ZFH.E 103157

RENT [LE BAS  PER MONTH FROML:

wi ACCT. 8 eary CREDIT

1401-9310
2001-9310
01-1319
1800-0404
2000400
30400

4290.06
154.7%

7B36. 77

TOTAL 889 19367V



PAGE 88

: JOURNAL VOLDIER H 16 DIVISIon

—

0D VIRCHER NAHE INTERDEPT. RENFS-STORES EDUIFMENT (OMAED BY WATER) | JORMAL VOLCHER ¢
LIOUREL Type 5 OFiset Div 1 Trans Flig____ Sowrce: Jv H
F,

!
! RSACTIN ATEr 7-30-W2 ! KEVED
IPAGE+ GATOM COMTROL TOTAL 84235 ! .
ILINES FER PAGE; I
{ Line iPerfora iCharge!Request Mok Req § FERC 1 DEBIT | [RED)T {ALQL |
sberl Ared !fode ! Ara iMuaber Maber ! MO § WONT fCd ¢ GESCRIPTION
' : : ! ! : : : o
! 1.00 I99B388 4900 !56RGBQ { 1 14019310! 3.4 ! RENTS - MISC, STORES EQUIP,-ELECTRIC.
1 2,00 i988888 (4901 i93BEB * 1 24019310} 13.30 ! ! IRENTS - NISC. BTORES EQMP.-@ATER
1 3.00 1599999 (8250 (9999 ¢ 3 34000400} ! 41151 (RENT REVENCE FRIM WAIER PROPERTY
I ' T : : ! ! o ,
b oo : ; : [ .
b oo ! t H ! o
= : ! ! : ! ' : TR
9 : ! ! ! ! ! ! ! P
= ' T ! ; ! ! bt
! : 1 ! i ! i o
! ! ! : ! ! : o
i I t : ! : ! i 1
! ' : ) ! ! ! ! T
: ! : ! ; ' ! : T
L r ! ! ! : t ot
: : ! : | ' ! : P
' 1 : ! ! ! 1 i oo
t ! : 1 { ' ! ! b
! 1 P ! ; : ! o
- ! ! : ! ! : ! P
an
& T0TAL 7.5 .15
[a1]
N
5 e
= PREPARED BY PFROVED BY FEPROVED BY
(a2}

83/08/2088 15:11

ST ST %M TE 86 46 we aw we me wE WK ee ..



PAGE @9

MLGW

39815284991
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2
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X
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FUT ARG AOR PUNTNMS  TAY  IWIEREST DEPRECIARON  TAY DB M INTDEPTAC  PONILY
WSS VALE BY  MPREC. AN WIS EIRNE  DWENE  EIPENE  ENPENSE DN ENPENSE
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{200 :Y0BEIE N2 (%peEm | ! 34019310 7.5 ! ! 1RENTS - MIST, GIGRES EQUIP.-MATER |
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4
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nm
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k% B USREE IEPREC 1991 EFENGE  EXPENSE TOAL By USHGE
By USnee
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5.0 | H H . i : : H 3 H
.00} ! : H H } ! H ! !
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HEN T H ! H H ! 1 { i . |
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12100 ! H ! 4 H H ! ' H H
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INTERFEFARTMENTAL FENTS
8L N ESIENRTS S el YN

Tae ks
E 1100551000, 215180, 7257
13 L1008, 5504 (1, 958 N6, 5557
| L)
E 2
G X
N X
INF RATE b
iy comry OEFR
U] In/Es IHXES PUAKT INT. EF. MY €39, OFERATING MAIKFERSCE  UTILITIES ma
MBI ER 1991 PLANT LMD EXFENSE EXPENSE E¥PENSE EXFENSES
BEALE ST. L. E IM9.36  87578.48 %4 a5t . 0.00  3B5374.38
TRAINING CENTZR £ 9%.47 848,54 .00 278,33 0.00 1418158
ELCCHIT RF. £ 1912597 Z3345.%0 QU344 12 BaLI9.5S 0.9 0.00 0.40 D00 0975, 54
C0L SF.L MY E OJI3.BT 25749.8% N30 508,50 NS 0.00 4.00 0.00 179841, ES
0.00
STy SER, £ 1540, 38 206147 4869.58 t817. 74 0,00 0.00  15512.41
’- o~
EENE ST, IM. 6 913, 10600.22 16386.28 33011, 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.0 AWLLI3
AtV -[FFICE 6 8082458  [B270.02 I9T902.6  320M33.17  I7170.08 0.00 ¢.00 0.00 744102.50
CREDIT aMIe 6 212,91 a8 7820 387 404400 6.0 1710609
BS ST LAR 6 Toi9.40  10236.91 0.09 0.00  3HT5 ¢.00 0.00  S1740.B4
N B j R 43551, 55 15776.87 1503325 9.0 8,00 0.m 0.00  34779.51
noee s 3 134,19 3347 812,19 570430 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 1837997
BOE 3 & 9.4 6L 4519.26 1B 0.00 0.0 0.00 0,00 Tobd. 57
BlDG &5 B MR 500,23 LIEM.81 1571334 0.0 0,00 0.0 .00 IM50.%4
RS K g T11.45 12092 52615 032.5% .00 9.00 0.00 9.00  13691.08
RiG §7 B 852,43 873.55 193,58 280554 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 8347.52
&6 19 ] J5R67.08  21254.51 Sises5.m 70201 1S 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00  158069. 44
06 95 1 50,34 12713, ¢1 /R $4. 82 0.00 0.2 6.00 0.0¢ 882,25
BLDG 410 /RADID & [8.3% M. £34.58 8. 0. 00 0.00 0.0 0,00 25007
ELIG 411 /G0 6 IM4.31 24.35 4.5 995,13 0.00 0.0¢ 0.90 0.00 1860, 24
OTHER £3C [ Y551 17:L.N 019.88  #0728.%0 D, o,m .00 0.0%  B2IN.89
HIDDRy HIL B 0391 29282 HNT.08 @262.97 544095 0,00 6.00 0.00  180529.13
faprzice [ 5.0 241085 WaTe a8 39N 125655 9,00 0,60 0.5 158ESE.12
5S¢4 57 & g3 AT TRYILL I §3768.2% 11825848 2B.80 0.20 0.0 0.00 2673479 7n
Khil. O¥Flle & 40,1 85i=.02 T CT I (O B X LR LY .0 0.00 0.0 43265.21
N. [N, FFIE G M HOL. 2 a)af. 1o 13070.75 $502. 466 6.0 0,00 0.60  28405.40
S. (0. OFFIE B ML 1065758 381.52  um2.4 ¥10.15 2.0 0,00 .00 SRS
U. TDM1. GFFICE B I 1259822 19990.88  ISMTXN 492335 0.0n 0.90 oed 7887345
TRA[NITE CEMTER B o0 510754 11188785 0.0 0.0 0.0 oy 1827450
{atal 28, AUANLIE TIMIR. TS 138079123 15965713 n.m o.m 9.00 434,27
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Purpose

¢ Examine the MLGW Accounting Policy for allocating
costs 1o the three divisions and continue to ensure:

= Results of operations and changes in financial
position of each division are presented fairly and
consistently from year to year

=~  Cost allocation methods are utilized consistentty
throughout the Division

=  Adherence to the regulations of:
- GAAP FERC GASB
- FASB NARUC
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Purpose
(cont'd)

¢ Review the existing charge code conversions and

recommend changes, if necessary, to conform with the
revised Accounting Policy

¢ Review Mission 2000 account re-distribution requests
and make final determination based on policy
developed

¢ Document the revised MLGW accounting policy and
guidelines for handling exceptions

[
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Policy & Guidelines

¢ Costs must be allocated to the three divisions in a
manner which ensures:

- Results of operations and changes in financial
position of each division are presented fairly and
consistently from year to year

= Allocation methods are reasonable and cost
effective to maintain

- Reasonable number of split formulas
- Significant dollars are impacted by the mu__ﬁ
(5% or greater impact)
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 Policy & Guidelines

(cont'd)

- Adherence to GAAP, FASB, GASB, FERC, &
NARUC reguiations

¢ Charge codes in a supervisor's area will be split to the

three divisions based on the function of the area {not
based on individual employee activities)

¢ Manager area charge codes will be on an A&G split, or,
if practical and material, on a pro-rata basis based on
the functions of the supervisor areas in the department

L
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Policy & Guidelines
(cont'd)

¢ Charge codes for the areas of Vice-Presidents and
above will be distributed on the A&G split

¢ Contracted services for the exclusive benefit of a
particular division will be charged direct to the
appropriate division. Contracts which supplement the
normal functions of an area will be allocated to the
three Esm,o:.m based on the function of the area
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Policy & Guidelines

(cont'd)

& The Stores Clearing >ooo§w.§|=;om_w include expenses

which are directly attributable to the facilities and
employees the storerooms

-~ Costs Included:
- Employee labor and benefits
- Insurance and Utilities of storeroom buildings

- Lost and unaccounted for inventory

- etc. ._
= Costs Not Included:
- Purchasing/Contracts Management

- Accounting
- Information Services

- elc. ﬂ
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~ Policy & Guidelines

{cont'd)

¢ The ..‘qmmmlmmmw:m:- Q.m_m._.z:m bmmmcra_.ﬂa_l accumulate
all costs of owning, using and maintaining vehicles and
equipment

= Costs Included:
- Transportation labor and benefits
- Insurance and Utilities buildings
- Depreciation, interest and taxes on vehicles
and equipment
- elc.
- (Costs Not Included:
- Purchasing/Contracts Management
- Accounting
- Information Services .

- efc.

e e et 1 = e et A T L Tsimm s e s g —
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Policy & O___Qm.-_,_mmw

(cont'd)

consist of depreciation, interest, and in-lieu-of-tax
payments only

¢ Rental of commonly used facilities and property will

¢ Expenses related to commonly used facilities and

property will be allocated to the three divisions as

incurred (property insurance, utilities, housekeeping,

security, building maintenance, etc.)

¢ Supervisors may not enter changes to the fixed time
distribution of their employees. Requests for changes

will be coordinated by Budget, Plant & Rates

e e e e

e
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Policy & Guidelines

(cont'd)

¢ Exceptions to area splits will be considered if:

- The activity is outside the normal area function (ice

storm)

= There is a need to collect specific costs for
reimbursement {claims, job orders)

- There is a material financial impact
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Policy & Guidelines

{cont'd)

Area personnel are expected to use correct charge
codes for functions performed, and should not
manipulate the cost allocation process by using
improper charge codes

Budget, Plant and Rates will be responsible for routine

maintenance of charge code allocations based upon
the MLGW Accounting Policy

The General Auditor, and the Managers of General

Accounting, and Budget, Plant & Rates will review the

MLGW Accounting Policy at least every five years
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* Actions Taken

¢ Examined and revised the MLGW Accounting Policy for
allocating costs to the three divisions

¢ Assigned allocation methods to each area based on
area function

¢ Eliminated charge codes not used in 24 months

¢ Reviewed charge code distributions and MISSION
2000 requests for each area

¢ Made changes as necessary to area charge code
conversions to comply with Policy

12
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Standard Allocation Methods

¢ Customer 43%-E 32%-G 25%-W
¢ Customer Service 43%-E 39%-G 18%-W
¢ Commercial Customer  49%-E 26%G 25%-W
¢ Administrative & General 57%-E 27%-G 16%-W

51.6%-E 25.6%-G 17.0%-W

¢ Regular Payroll $
2.1%-St 3.7%-Tr
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Standard Allocation Methods

(con't)

4 Const. & Maintenance 62%-E 22%-G 16%-W
¢ C&M Gas Distribution 15%-E 85%-G 0%-W

¢ C&M Water Distribution 2.5%-E 5.5%-G 92%-W

¢ Custom Splits Used O:_< in Rare Circumstances

14
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Examples
ELECTRIC ENGINEERING

¢ ALLOCATE ALL COSTS 100% TO ELECTRIC

DIVISION

- Labor

= Accrued Vacation

= Military Leave .

= United Way

= Office Expenses

- eic...

15
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Examples
SYSTEM OPERATIONS

¢ Manager's Office - Gustomer Split
¢ Systems Control, Electric - 100% Electric

¢ Systems Control, Gas & Wtr - 56% Gas 44% Water*

* Pro-rata Gas & Water portion of Customer Split

83/08/2000 15:19
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Examples
CUSTOMER SERVICE

¢ Manager's Office - Customer Split
¢ Service Dispatching - Customer Spilit
¢ Information Center - Customer Split

¢ Customer Service = - Customer Service Split*

*Based on Number of E, G & W Calis Worked

7
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Examples
WORK CENTERS

¢ ALLOCATED BASED ON 3-Yr. AVG. CHARGES BY
WORK CENTER AREAS

- Managers' Offices - 62%-E 22%-G 16%-W

= FElectric Distribution -100%-E

= Gas Distribution - 15%-E 85% -G

= Water Distribution - 2.5%-E 5.5%-G 92% -W

" = Storerooms - 100% To Stores Loading

- Customer Engineering - Customer Split

18
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¢ VARIOUS METHODS DUE TO THE DIVERSITY OF

Examples
DISTRIBUTION SUPPORT

FUNCTIONS PERFORMED AND THE HIGH DOLLAR
IMPACT

= Manager's Office & Staff - Const & Maint Split
(Same as Work Genter Mgrs) |

= Compost Plant -100% Electric

= Tree Trimming . -100% Electric

= General Construction - A&G Split

= Const. & Maint. Support - Const & Maint Split

- Facilities Locators - Customer Spilit
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Results of Implementing Revised Standard
Allocation Methods
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Results of _Bv_mam:%@ Revised Standard
Allocation Methods

Electric O&M L} $1.6 Million

Gas O&M 1} 1.2 million
O -
Water Q&M |] $2.2 Million
Capitalized Costs  {] $0.6 Million
Net Effect $0.0

— SN e
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Allocation Methods

(In Thousands of Dollars}

| mmmczm 2 ._J.U_mB,m:ﬁ_zu | _umsmmm, @m:am&. |

Division Electric Gas Water
President [{} 8444 |{J 328 [{Js41.6
General n

Counsel $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
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Results of Revised Standard Allocation

9815284991

Methods
____(InThousands of Dollars) o

. Electric Waiter
Division O&M Gas O&M O&M
Sr. VP -
Admin & $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
Support

VP -
Support $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
Services

VP - Human

Resource 1$782 [1$173.1 | {]$94.9
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Allocation Methods

(In Thousands of Dollars)

| ital

Division| Electric Gas Water _Wwﬂwwm
VP -

Pub.ATf & | {1$150.2[{]} $224.2 |{1$296.5 [} $670.9
Procur.

Cus aamxdﬁmm.w 1 $72.7 Us7202|  $0.0

Service
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nmm::m oﬁ-__Bo_maoam:@ Revised Standard
Allocation Methods

{In Thousands of Dollars)

Division| Electric Gas| Water Wﬂﬂﬁm
Sr. VP -
Oper & $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
Sec/Treas
VP - I
. 100.9
Engineer Is117.0 /Izwf_ $1213 s
VP -
- : 1. 0.3
Operation @awmd 7 Qmmmom mem 9 @ $
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Results of Implementing Revised Standard

Allocation Methods

(In Thousands of Dollars)

Cap/

Division| Electric Gas Water Loading
VP -

Finance | & $111:9|{} $76.3 {} $35.6]  $0.0
VP -

Gonst. & | [} $500.1|{] $379.2| {} $40.6({} $80.3
Maint. |
Non- .

Deptmntl. | [} $104.4 [[1§1,991.111 $751.7|{}1,343.8

Charges
Totals | [$1,590.0 [l§1,225.9 (2,163.9 | {}$652.0
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_Bu_m_:mam:o: Plan

¢ Implement Charge Code Changes for Actual Use
beginning July 1, 1996

¢ Update MLGW Strategic Plan to reflect the revised
Accounting Policy

¢ Implement Charge Code Changes for the 1997 Budget
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~ Implementation Plan

¢ Broaden the scope of existing financial report review
meetings to incorporate discussion of significant
accounting issues affecting financial policy and
reporling

¢ Perform periodic internal audits to ensure compliance
with the MLGW accounting policy
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

THIS AGREEMENT made this 22 day of November, 1999, by and between City of Burlington,
Vermont, a Vermont municipal corporation acting through its Burlington Electric Department
(“BED"), and A&L Networks, LLC, 2 limited liability company incorporated under the laws of
the State of Kansas, with a principal place of business in Olathe, Kansas (“A & L"). (

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to its mission and charter, BED is interested in providing
telecommunications services for the benefit of BED, the City of Burlington, its residents and
businesses, and these benefits are expected to include a combination of new and enhanced

services, better service quality, and lower rates;

WHEREAS, A&L is interested in evaluating and developing a strategy for eotering into a
telecommunications business and subsequently forming and jointly owning such a business in

equity parmership with BED, consistent with A & L’s business goals and expertise; and

WHEREAS. hased upon proposals made by A&L to BED dated April 26, 1999 and May 27,
1999, and subsequent discussions between the parties, BED and A&L have agreed joiatly to
retain Arthur D. Little, Inc, (“ADL") to create a business plan for the development of & strategic
telecommunications partnership between BED and A & L for providing facilities-based and
resale based services as appropriate between BED and A & L, the purpose of which planisto
provide the parties with the specific knowledge required for them to make their respective

“go/no-go" decisions on such a venture.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, the parties agree as follows: ‘

L. Reteation of ADL,

BED and A&L agree jointly to retain ADL to create a complete business plan for the
development of a strategic telecommunications partnership consistent with the proposal by ADL
to A&L dated October 15, 1999 (hercinafter “ADL study™). The parties understand that their
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agreement with ADL shall contain a *not-to-exceed” figure of Three Hundred Seventy-five
Thousand (§375,000.00) Dollars, including all ADL professional expenses, and shall be upon

such other terms and conditiops as agreed by the parties.

2. Funding of Study.

BED and A&L shall share equally in the costs of the ADL study, with the understanding that
cach party’s share of the expenses outlined above shall not exceed One Hundred Eighty-seven
Thousand, Five Hundred ($187,500.00) Dollars. Each party shall be individually responsible for
its own professional service fees (counsel! fees and all other fees not agreed to by both parties)
incurred by each in connection with the ADL study.

3. “Go/No-Go” Declsions,

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final deliverables from ADL, cach party shall determine
within its sole discretion whether to pursue a jointly owned telecommunications business within
the City of Burlington, Vermont. If both partics agree to develop such a telecommunications
business, the parties intend on entering into a de:ailed agreement setting forth the terms and
conditions under which the parties will move forward to create a limited liability company or
other appropriate business form to design, construct, operate and market a jointly-owned
telecommunications network business. The intent to reach such agreement will not bind either

party to reach agreement.
4. Non-Disclosure,

Except as provided in this Section 4, and in Sections S and 6 below, each party shall have an
unlimited right to possess, own and use the ADL study. Each party shall hold the AbL study in
confidence, and neither party shall disclose the ADL study to third parties, excep that (i) cither
party may disclose the ADL study as reasonably necessary for such party or an affiliate of such
party to provide, or to decide whether and how to provide, telecom services, either by itself, or in
combination with third parties, and (ii) this Section 4 shall not limit the right of a party to
disclose portions of the ADL study which become publicly available, or which were known to
the party prior to the date the ADL study was commenced. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
disclosure of the ADL study by a party in response to a subpoena or other judicial process after
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notice to the other party shall not be a violation of this Section 4. For purposcs of this
Agreement, “affiliatc” means, with respect to a party, an entity under the Control of such party,
or an entity that Controls, or is under common Control over such party. *“Control* means dircct
or indirect ownership of at least 20% of the voting or economic interests of an entity. In
determining Control, an individual shall be deemed to own any voting and ¢conomic interest
owned by such individual’s spouse, ancestors and lineal descendants, or by trust for the benefit
of such individual or such individual’s spouse, ancestors and lineal descendants,

S. Non-Compete,

If BED and A&L do not participate together through a contractual, co-ownership or other
arrangement to provide tclecommunication services in or near Burlington, Vermont, then for a
period of eighteen (18) months from the date of this Agreement, neither party nor its affiliate, by
itsclf, or in combination with third parties, shall provide telecommunication services in or near
Burlington, Vermont unless (i) the other party gives its written consent, or (ii) thg party
providing telecommunications scrvices does not rely in material respects upon the ADL study,
and the telecommunications services are of a scope and type, and are provided in a manner,
which differs in material respects from the recommendations in the ADL study. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent a party from praviding non-facilities-based

telecommunication services.

6. Reimbursement of Costs,

Each party (the “Reimbursing Party”) shall reimburse the other party (the “Reimbursed Party™)
for its share of the costs of the ADL study if, within two (2) years from the date of this
Agreement, (i) the Reimbursing Party or its affiliatc has obtained regulatory approval to provide
facilities-based telecommunication services in or near Burlington, Vermont, and (ii) on or before
the date such approval is granted, the Reimbursed Party has not applied for or obtained approval
to provide facilities-based telecorumunication services in or near Burlington, Vermont. The
Reimbursing Party shall reimburse the Reimbursed Party in cash within thirty (30) days aficr the
Reimbursing Party obtains such regulatory approval, and, concurreatly, the Reimbursed Party
shall transfer and assign to the Reimbursing party all rights of the Reimbursed Party to use the
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ADL study in connection with providing, or deciding whether and how to provide,
telecommunications services in or near Burlington, Vermont

7. Project Management.

Both parties expect to play an active role in connection with the development of the ADL study.
Both BED and A&L shall designate one (1) person and one (1) altcmnate to serve as a steering
teamn. The steering team will deal dircctly with the project manager designated by ADL for this

- project.
LY
o’ IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics hereto have executed this Agreement the day and
year first above written.
In the presence of: CITY OF BURLINGTON, VERMONT

Duly Authorized (A gfnt

s / .
&L ORKS, LLC
Mk -l
Witnw ~ Duly Authonzed Agent

©
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EXCERPT
from
MINUTES OF MEETING
of
BOARD OF LIGHT, GAS AND WATER COMMISSIONERS
CITY OF MEMPHIS
held
December 18, 1997

REPHUBEBEBBAER AU R ERUERERAN

The Corporate Communications Officer presented for consideration of the Board the

attached policy covering bill mailers and postage and recommends adoption of same.

It was moved by Commissioner . Graves . seconded by
Commisaioner Jaenak

and ynanimously carried:

THAT, The attached policy covering bill mailers and postage is adopted.

vonereny Carthy that the toregoing k6 a trus copy ol
coTmEmr dcter oty thr Zoord ef (g, Gas and

vorLEal . ™
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Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
Policy Statement

SUBJECT: BILL MAILERS AND POSTAGE
I PURPOSE
To provide written guidelines for evaluating requests for inserts in utility bill mailers, to

assure faimess and uniformity in handling such requests, and to maintain economical postage
rates.

II. SCOPE
This policy applies to all requests for inserts in MLGW utility bill mailers.
. POLICY STATEMENT

It is the policy of MLGW to handle all requests for inserts in its bill mailers fairly using the
following uniform standards:

1. It is the policy of MLGW to encourage those who wish to include
information in its bill mailers to use the “Plus Coupon” program to benefit
MIFA. Bill inserts may not be used to solicit funds or donations of any kind,
ot to promote the sale of any product or service other than through the “Plus

Coupon” program.

2. No separate bill inserts will be accepted which are political or partisan in
bature.

3. No bill inserts will be accepted which result in an increase in postage.
IV.  PRQCEDURE
All requests to have information inserted in MLGW’s bill mailer must be submitted in

writing to MLGW 90 days prior to the distribution date, and submitted for approval to:
Manager, Communication Services, 220 South Main, Memphis, TN 38103.
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TEIS AGREEMENT, made as of the first day of January
19980 by and betWween _ Memphis Light, & Water Divi

a(n) ennessee corporation, hereinafter
referred to as the "Powar Distributer," and SOUTH CENTRAL
BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, a Georgia corporation, hereinafter
referred to as the "Telephone Company."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, in the areas in the State of _Tennegsee
served by both parties certain utility poles are presently
used jointly by the Power Distributor and the Telephone
Company, such joint use being maintained under the terms
of an Urban Joint Use Agreement dated June 15, 1967
betwaen the Powar Distributcr and Southern Bell Telephone
and Telegraph Company, predecessor of the Telephone
Company, and a Rural Joint Use Agreement dated

— Nnne , betwaan the Power Distributor
and Telephone Company: and

WHERFAS, the parties desire to continue such joint use and
to use other poles jointly in the future, when and where
such joint use will be of nutual advantage in meeting
their respective service requirements; and

WHEREAS, when the parties are making arrangements for the
joint usa of new poles and the party proposing to erect
the new poles already owns a majority of the pcles, the
parties shall take inte consideration the desirability of
having the new poles owned by the party owning the lesser
nuerber of joint use poles so as to progress toward a
Qivision of eownership of poles so that neither party shall
be recuired to pay annual rental paymants, giving due
regard to the aveidance of mixed ownership in linzs; and
WHEREAS, because of changed conditions and exparience
gained, and ta facilitate administration of joint use, the
parties desire to terminate the aforementioned Joint Use
Agreements dated June 15, 1967 , and enter
into a new Joint Use Agreement giving due recognition to
the fact that the comparative numbers of joint use poles
owned by the parties, the respective space allocated to or
used by the parties, the concern for the ability to
Provide reliable searvice, the relative positions ¢f the
parties on the poles all have a bearing on the
contribution to be made by the parties both as to
ownership and maintenance of joint use poles.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the
mutual cavenants herein centained, the parties hereto for

themselves, their sucrcassors and assigns do hereby
terminate the existing Urban Joint Usae Agreamant datad
June 15, 1967

» and the existing Rural
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Joint Use Ageement dated None

, and
do hereby covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this agreement, the following tezrms
when used herein shall have the folleowing meanings:

A. ATTACHMENTS is any wiras, cables, strands,
materials or apparatii affixed to a joint use pole
now or hereafter used by either party in the
construction, eperation or maintenance of its plant,

B. CHANGE IN _CHARACTER OF CIRCUITS shall mean any change
in either party's facilities which affects either
loading on the pola or clearance between the
facilities of the parties hereto.

€. CODE means the National Electrical Safety Code, as it
may be amended from time to time.

D. DAYS ag used herein shall mean calendar days.

E. INJURIES include death, personal injury and property
damage or destruction.

F. JOINT USE is maintaining or specifically reserving
space for the attachments of both pParties on the same
Pole at the same time.

G. JOINT USE POLE is a pole upen which space is provided
under this agreement for the attachmeants of both
parties, whether such space is actually eccupied by
attachments or resarved “herefore upon specific

recquast.

H. LICENSEE ias the party having the right under this
dgreemgnt to make attachments to a joint use pole
that the other party owns.

I. OWNER is the party owning the joint use pole.

J.

POLE OR POLES includes the singular and plural,

K. REARRANGING OF ATTACHMENTS is
attachments from one
use pole.

the moving of
position to another on a joint

L. RESERVED, as applied to Epace on & pole, neans
unoccupied space provided and maintained by Owner,
either for its own usa or expressly for Licenses's
exclusive usa at Licensee's request.

2
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M. RIGHT OF WAY is the legal right to use the property
- of another.

N. STANDARD JOINT USE POLE means a 40-foot, Clase 4
treated wood pole which meets the requirements of the
Code. The parties may agree to use a smaller than
Class Four pole; but under no candition shall the
standard joint use pole be less than the minimum
requirements of the Code.

0. STANDARD SPACE ALLOCATION means an allocation of
sufficient space on a joint use pole for the use of
each party taking into consideration requiraments of

. the Code, and is more particularly defined as
follows.

(1) For Power Distributer, the use of 8 feet of
space on 40-foot poles, and § 1/2 feet on 35-
- foot poles, measured downward from the top of
/ the pole; and
(2)

For Telaphone Company, the use of 2 feet of \
space on joint use poles, below the space of the
Power Distributar starting at the point that
gives adequata Code separation on the pole. If
under the terms of this Agreement the Telephone |
Company uses a portion of the Power
Distributor's allocated space as measured from
the top of the pole, the Telephone Company
agrees that its use is permissive and that the
Power Distributor shall have the undisputed use
of its allocated space mmasured frem the top.
Telephone Company agrees to move anyvy such
attacaments within this allocated space at its
ownl ¢ost upan demand of the Power Distributor.
Similarly, if the Power Distyributor uses a
portion ef the Telephone Company'ls 2-foot space,
the Power Distributor agreses that such use shall
be permissive. Power Distributor agrees to move
any such attachment within the 2-foot space.

(3) The foregoing definition of a "nermal joint use
pole"” is not intended to preclude the use of
joint poles shorter or taller or of different
strength than the normal joint use pele in
locations where it is mutually agreed such poles

will meet the requirements of the parties
hereto.

P. TRANSFERRING OF ATTACHMENTS is the removing of
attachments from ona pole and tlacing the
attachments upon another pole.
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ARTICLE II
TERRITORY AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall cover all poles of each of
the parties now existing in joint use and those
hereafter erected or acquired within the common
operating areas’ served by the parties excepting poles

which in the Owner's judgment are necessary for its
own sole use.

The Urban-Rural boundaries in existence at the time
of the execution of this agreement shall remain in
effect unti] removed in accordance with Article X (B)
of this agreement, or otherwise modified by mutual
agreement of the parties.

ARTICLE IIIX
PERMISSION FOR JOINT USE

Subject to the terms and conditions of this
agreement, each party hereby parmits joint use by the
other party of any &f its poles in accordance with
the standard space allocation defined in Article I
and the following:

(1) Allocated pole space may, without additional.
charge, be used by the party to which it js not
allocated for the purpose of installing and
maintaining street lighting, traffic signal
systems, and vertical attachments (such as but
not limited-to ground wires, gang cperated
switech control rods and underground risers) if
by the ternms cf the Code the proposed use is
auvthorizad and such use does not unreasonably
interferes with the use being made by the party
te which such space is allocated (such
determination will be made solely by the party
to which the space is allccated),

If Code provisions cannot subsequently be met
then billing for tle reguired modificatians will
be ag sat forth in Appendix A.

(2) As long as the provisions of the Code are met,
unallocated space may be used without additicnal
charge by the Power Distributor and/or Telephone
Cempany. If Coda provisions canneot subsacantly

ba met then killing for reguired modifications
will be as set forth in Appendix A.

(3) As long as the provigions of the Codae in effect
at the time the attachments were installed, have
beaen met, any joint usa pole now in place shall
be deemed satisfactory to both parties and
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adequate for its requirements whether or not the
space allocations made herein have been
observed.

(4) As long as the provisions of the Code are met,
any pole héreafter made joint use shall
thereupon be deemed satisfactory to Licensee anz
adequate for its requirements whether or not the

space allocations made herein have been
observed.

ARTICLE IV
SPECIFICATIONS

The joint use of poles covered by this Agreement
shall at all times be in conformity with all
applicable provisions of law and with the minimum
requirements of tha Code in effect at the time the
respective attachments are made, and with such
additional requirements as m3¥ be mutually approved
in writing by the- PRESIDEN of the
Power Distributer and General Manager-Network
Provisisning of the Telephone Company.

ARTICLE V
RIGHT-~-QF-WAY=AND LINE CLEARING

The Owner and Licensee will cooperate as far as may
be practicable in obtaining right-of-way for both
parties. When a written easement is secured it shall
be in sufficient detail for identification and
recording, and shall be subject to inspection by the
other party upon requsst. However, no guarantes is
given by the Owner of permission from property
owners, municipalities or cothers for the use of poles
by the Licensee, and if ubjection is made thersto and
the Licensee is unable to satisfactorily adjust the
matter within a reasonable time, the Owner may at any
time, upon notice in writing to the Licensee, require
the Licensee to remeove its attachments from the poles
invelved, and the Licensee shall, within ninety (30)
days after receipt of said notice, remove its
attachmants from such poles at its sole axpensa.
Should the Licensee fail to remcove its attachments as
herein provided, the Owner may remove them at the
Licensee's expensa, without any liability whatever
fer such remcval or the manner of making it, for
which expaense the Licensee shall reimburse the Owher

en demand. Owner shall provide a 20! right-of=way
whenever possible.
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Nothing gtated herein shall preclude the parties from
mutually sharing the cest of right-of-way acgquisition.

Line clearing and trimming will be performed as
follows:

(1) When constructing a new joint usa pele line the
- Owner shall cut, clear and trim a 20 right~of-
way, if possible. :

(2) In all other instances each party shall be
responsible for its own initial and recurring
trimning, clearing and cutting.

ARTICLE VI
PLACING, TRANSFERRING OR REARRANGING ATTACHMENTS

Either party desiring to reserve Space on any pole of
the other the ignated as a joint use e
shall make writfen applicarion e , specifying
the pole involved, the number and kind of its
attachments to be placed thereon and the character of
the circuits to be used. .Within ten (10) days after
the receipt of such application,.mOwner shall notiry
the applicant in writing whether it is excluding said
45 1 der tha provis ionm_
II. pon receipt of notice from Owner that said pole
is not excluded, and after completion of any required
transferring or rearranging of attachments on said
pole or any pole replacesment as provided in Article
VII the applicant shall have the right to use said
Pele as Licensee in accordance with the teras and
conditions of this Agreesment. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, atrtachments placed by either party on the
other's pols without such application ana approval
shall subjmct said pole to the ternms of this
Agreement. In such case, Owner shall havea the right
Lo require Licensee to remove within ninety (90) days
at its sole expense any such attachpents on poles
coming within the exceptions described in Article V.

Should Licensee fail to remove such attachments, such

failure shall constitute default according to Article
XIv.

Except as herein octherwise expressly provided, each
Party at its own expense shall place, maintain,
rearrange, transfer and remove its own attachments,
and shall at all times perform such work promptly and
in such a manner as not to interfare with work or
service being performed by the cther party. Upon
completion of work by the Owner which will
necassitate transfer of the Licensee's attachments,
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the Owner shall provide written notice to the

. Licensee that such transfer must be completed within

sixty (60) days. If such transfer of attachments is
not completed within sixty (60) days the old pole
shall hecome the property of the Licensee, and the
Licensee shall save harmless the former Owner of such
pole from all obligations, liabilities, danages,
Ccosts, expenses, or charges incurred thereafter
because of or arising cut of the presence, lccation
or condition of such pole or any attachment thereon,
whethar or not it is alleged that the former Owner
was negligent or otherwise. Licensee shal)} pay the
former Owner the prasent in-place value, as set forth
in Appendix A, for said pole.

When the Power Distributor desires to change the
primary voltage system to an amount above 34.5 kv
phase to phase on joint use lines, it shall give the
Telaphone Company sixty (60) days written notice of
such contemplated change. If the Telephone Company
agrees to joint use with such change, “joint use of
such poles shall he continued with such changes in
construction as may be required to meet the terms of
the Code at the expense of the Power Distributor. If
the Telephone Company .does not-agrae within thirty

(30) days from receipt of said notice to such change,
then:

(1) the parties hereto shall determine what circuits
shall be removed from existing points on the joint
use poles involved, and the net cost of establishing

a new position on said poles or in a lecation
elsevhere, those circuits or lines as may be necessary
to allow the other party to continue to furnish the

same service that existed at the time the change was
decided upon; and »

(2) the responsibility of the cost of establishing
such circuits in the new position or new location

2hall be mutually agreed upon between the parties
hereto.

ARTICLE VII
ERECTING, REPLACING OR RELOCATING POLES

Whenever any jointly used pole, or any pole

about to be so used under the Provisiens of this
agreenent, is insufficient in size or strength for
the existing attachmants and for the proposed

immediate additional attachments thereon, the Owner
shall within sixety (60) days replace such pole with a
naew pole of the necessary =ize and strangth, and make
such other changes in the existing pole line in which
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such pole is included, as may be made necsssary by
the replacement of such pole and the placing of the
Licensaae's circuits as PToposed. By mutual

agrgezent, the time paried may be.shortened or
extended.

>

The parties recognize and agree that there are
inherent dangers involved in the transmission and
distribution of electricity. The parties agreas that
unforeseeable emergency conditions will exist from
time to time. When due to accidents, storm damage,
etc., it is necessary for the Licensee to replace the
Cwner's pole immediately to restore service to its
customers or to eliminate a hazardous condition and
the Owner cannot perform the work in time to meet the
Licensee's requirements, Licensee may replace the
Owner's pole. Licensee will make all of its reguired
facility changes or transfers and will secure the old
pole to the new pola so the Owner may maka its
transfers when feasible. Licensee shall bill the
Owner the total cost of The new pole in accordance
with Appendix B. Owner shall continue to own the old
pole and shall ke responsible for its ramoval, and

the new pole will becoma.tha.property of the original
owner.

Whenever it is necessary to change the location of a
jointly used pole, by reason of any state, muniecipal
or other governmental requirement, or the
requirements of a property owner, the Owner shall,
before making such change in lecation, give notice
thereaf in writing (except in casas cf emergency) to
the Licensee, specifying in such notice the tima ¢f
Suca proposed relocatien, and the Licensee shall,

within sixty (6€0) days, transfer its atrachment €=
the pole at the new lecation.

In any case where the parties herets shall cenclude
arrangements for the joint use aof any new peles ts be
erected, the ownership of such poles shall be
determined by mutual agreement. In the event of
disagreement as to ownership, the party then owning
the lesser number of joint poles under this Agreanent
shall promptly erect the new joint pPoles and be the
owner thereof or if the party owning the lesser
number of poles cannot install the poles in time to
meet the service raquirements of the party owning the
greater number of poles, the party owning the greater

numbeyr of poles may set the poles and bill the other
party the total cost of setting said poles in
accordance with Appendix A.

The party owning the
lesser numbaer of poles shall ba the owner thereof.
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Whenever either party hereto is about to ereet new
poles, either as an additicnal pole line, as an
extensjion of an existing pole line, or as the
reconstruction of an existing pole.line, it shall
notify the other in writing at least thirty (30) days
befcre beginning the work (short notice, including
verbal notice subsequently confirmed in writing, may
be given in cases of emergency) and shall submit with
such notice its plan showing the proposed location
and size of the new poles, and circuits it will use
thereen. The other party shall, within fifteen (15)
days after the receipt of such notice, reply in
writing to the party erecting the new poles, stating
whether such other party does, or does not, desjire
space on the said poles, and if it does desire space
therecon, the ciaracter of the circuits it desires to
use and the amount of space it wishes to reserve.
This notice of desire to establish joint use should
include detail plans of any changes in the plans of
the other party which are desired in order to perzit
the establishment.of joint use. If such other party
requests space on the new poles and if the character
and number of circuits and attachments are such that
the Owner does not wish to exclude the poles from
Joint-use under the-provision-of:zArticle II, then
poles suitable for the-said 'joint-use shall be
erected in accordance with the provisions and the
payment of costs as provided in this agreement.

The costs of erecting joint poles coming under this
agreement, either as new pole lines, as extensions of
existing pele lines, or to replace existing poles,
either existing jointly used poles or poles not
pravicusly involved in joint use, shall be borne by
the parties as follows: -

(1) Whenever cperating and safety conditiens
prohibit Owner from replacing an existing pole
which needs to ke replaced, Licensea shail

replace the pole and bill Owner in accordance
with Appendix A times 1,25.

(2) A normal joeint pole, or a joint pole shorter
and/or smaller than the normal pole, shall be

erected at the sole expense of tha Owner, except
as provided in Section G of this Article.

(3) In the case of a pole taller and/or stronger
than the normal pole, the extra height and/or
strength of which is due wholly to the Owner's

requirements, shall be erected at the sole
avpenca of tha Owner.
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In the case of a2 new pole taller and/or stronger
than the normal pole, the extra height and/or
strength of which is due wholly to the
Licensee's requirements, .the Licensae shall pay
to the Owner the extra costs for the additicnal

height and/or strength as set forth in Appendix
A.

Where an existing jointly used pole is
prematurely replaced by a new one solely for the
benefit of the Licensee, the Licensee shall pay
the Owner the present in-place value of the
existing pole and costs of replacing or
transferring all attachments in accordance with
Appendix A and Appendix C, and the replaced pole
shall be removed and retained by the Owner.

In the case of 2 new pole taller and/or stronger
than the normal pole, the extra height and/er
strength of which i= due, to the requirements of
both parties, the Licensee shall pay to the
Owner a sum equal to one~half the excess height
and/or strength as set forth in Appendix A, the
rest of the cost of erecting such pole to be
borne by the Owner.

In the case of a new pole taller and/ar stronger
than the normal pole, where height and/or
strength in addition to that needed for the
purpose of either or both of the parties hereto
i=s necessary in order to meet the raguirements
of the coda, public authority or of property
ocwners, the excass cost of such pole due to such
requirements shall be borne by the Owner,

If Licensee only requires the addition of a pale
in an existing line because of span length or
terrain, the Owner will furnish and erect said
pole at the sole expense of the Licensee, and
Pele shall remain property of Qwner. The
charges shall be as set forth in Appendix A.

Where the Power Distributor has a line that
crosses & Telephone Company line and the
provisions &f the code are met and the Telephane
Company desires to set a pole in the Telephone
Company line and requests the Power Distributsr
to attach to said pole, the Telephone Company
shall bear all initial and recurring costs of
placing and maintaining said pole, except the
cost of making and transferring the Power

. Distributor attachments.

10
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In any case where a pole is erected hereunder to

. Teplace another pole solely because such other pole

is not tall enough, or of the .required strength, to
provide adeguately for.the Licensee's requirements,
or whare such poele, whether it has space reserved
for the Licensee's use or not, had at the time of its
erection been pronounced by the Licensee as
satisfactory and adequate for its regquirements, the
Licenssa shall, upon erection of the new pole, pay to
the Owner, in additien to any anmcunts payable by the
Licensge under paragraphs 3, 4, or § of Ssection F of
this Article, a sum equal to the present in-placea
value as set forth in Appendix A, for the pele which
is'replaced and the pole removed shall remain the
property of the Owner.

In any case where by mutual consent it is desjirable
to change the ownership of a pole and Licensee erscts
and owns a joint pole to replace an existing pole cf
the Owner (instead of the Ownar doing so as it is
contemplated by Section A of this Article) such
Licensee shall pay to the Owner of the replaced pole
a8 sum equal to the present in-place value, as set
forth in Appendix A,. for the.pole.which is replaced
and the pole removed shall ‘yremain the property of the
Owner and shall be rameved by the Owner. )

ARTICLE VIII
MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES

A. Owner shall, at its own expense, maintain its
joint use poles in a safe and serviceable condition
and shall undertake any appropriate safety measures,
including without limitation reascnable pole
inspections. The Owner's responsibility for
maintaining a safe and serviceable condition of its
Poles shall be in acecordance with the requirements of
the Code, and shall replace poles that become

defective, in accordance with the provisions of
Article vII.

The parties recognize and agreae that there are
inherent dangers involved in thae transmission and
distribution of electricity. The parties agree that
unforeseeable emergency conditions will exist frem
time ts time. When due to accidents, storm damage,
etc., it i= necessary for the Licensae to replace the
owner's pole immediately tc restore service to its
customers or to eliminate a hazardous condition and
the Qwner cannot perform the work in tine to meet the
Licensee's requirements, Licensee may replace the
Cwner's pole. Licensee will make all of its required

11



03/08/2008 14:17

9915284931 MLGW

D.

PAGE 13

4-18-50

facility changes or transfers and will secure the old
pole to the new pole =0 the Owner may make its
transfers whan feasible. Licensea shall bill the
Owner the total cost of the new pole in accordance
with Appendix B. Owner shall continue to own the old
pole and shall ke responsible for its removal.

Each party shall, at its own expense, at all times
maintain all of its attachments ip safe condition,
thorough repair, and in accordance with the
raquirements ¢f the Code.

The partjes hereby agree that a Cooperative appreach

will be taken in solving noise or inductance problens
that may eccur,

ARTICLE IX
ABANDONMENT OF JOINT USE FOLES

Anytime Owner dasires to abandon any joint use pole,
it shall give Licensee at least sixty (60) days
written notice. If, at the expiration of such
period, owner shall have no attachments on such paole
but Licensee shall not have removed all of its
attachments tharefrom, such Pele shall thereupon.
become the property of Licensee, Licansee shall save
harmless the former Owner from all obligations,
liabilities, damages, COSts, expenses, or charges
incurred thereafter because of or arising out of the
presence, location ar conditien of suceh pole or any
attachment thereon, whether cr not it is alleged that
the former Owner was negligent or ctherwise.

Licensee may at any time abandon 2 joint use pole by
removing therefream all of its attachnents, and giving

A

due notice theraof in writing to Ownex.

ARTICLE X
ADJUSTMENT PAYMENTS

It is understood and agreed that all existing urban
agreemants are reciprocal and mutual and shall remain
the same under the terms of thig Agreement. For
thosa agreements which shall remain reciprocal and
mutual, the payments per pole due f»sm the Licensae
Lo the Oumner shall be $13.25 as of the inception date
of the Agreement. Fer those poles in the "Rural®
areas, the Telephone Company as Licensse shall pay
$10.30 to the Power Distributor and the Powar
Distributor as Licensee shall Pay $13.00 to the
Telephone Company,

12
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Any time within five years from the exXecution date of
this agreement, Power Distributor shall have a cne
timeoptien, but not the requirement, to count all
poles on its system and classify those poles by
height. After a written request from the Power
Distributor for a pole count, the partiaes to this
Agreement agree to undertake a joint pole count,
which shall be completed within six months. The
Power Distributer shall have the ocption, at any time
within six months after completion ¢f the pole count,
to set the rates that each party pays at $13,25 for
Poles 40 feet and cver and, to pay the Telephone
Company $13.00 to attach to poles 35 feet and under
and have the Telephone Company Pay $10.30 to attach
Lo Power Distributor poles 35 feet and under.

Adjustment payments hereunder shall cover rentals
accruing during the calendar Year and shall be based
on the number of poles on which Space is occupied or
reserved on the first day of December of the year
inwhich the rentals accrue. Within thirty (30) days
following such date, or as soon as Practical
thereafter, each party shall submit a written
statement to the other party giving the number of
pPoles on which £pace.was .occupied by or reserved for
the other party as of such date.

The total adjustment payment due each party shall be
determined by multiplying the poles ocwned and
licensed by each Party, by the adjustment payment.

(1) The smaller total amount coverad above shall be
deducted from tha larger amount and the Power
Distributor ear the Telephone Company, which ever
shall owe tne larger amount, shall pay to the
other the differsnce between saigq two amounts as
the net adjustment payment due for the year
involved. wWithin thirty (30) days after the
first day of January next, or as scon as
practical thereafter, ensuing after the date of
this Agreement, and within thirty (30) days
after the first day of each January, or as soon
as practical thereafter, during the time this
Agreement shall be in effect, the party to which
said adjustment payment is owed as of said first
day e¢f January, shall submit a written statement
{the "Schedula aof Pole Rentals") to the other

party ¢giving the correct amount owed by tha
other party.

(2) The adjustment payment herein provided for shall
Be paid within thirty (30) days after the bill ha
been submitted, unless said party disputes the

13
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amoutit of such bill within ten (10) days from
receipt thereef., 1In case of such dispute,
Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days
after the bill hag.been submitted of the amount
that is admitted to be due; an agreement
concerning-the disputed amount shall be
attempted with all reasonable dispatch by
negotiation. Failing to reach any such
agreement by negotiation, either party may make
formal written demand on the other for the
amount claimed to be due; and if payment
thereof is not wade within thirty (30) days,
suit may be brought for the ameunt claimed.

The rates set forth in Paragraph A above shall ke
effective as of January 1, 1990, and shall remain in
effect through December 31, 1590 (the "Base Rata"),
The Base Rate shall be escalated, effactive January
1, 1991, and annually thereafter, based upon the
Previsus annual Telephona Plant Indey ("TPI") for
poles for the Bell South regicon. The Telephona
Company shall provide the Power Distributor with the
documentation supporting the index at the time of
submitting the Schedule.of_ Pole_Rentals referred to
in paragraph D (1) above.

ARTICLE XI
INVENTORY OF ATTACHMENTS

At intervals not exceeding five (5) years an actual
inventory of attachments shall be made by
representatives of the parties. If thera is any
difference in the number of attachments found by the
inventory and the number arrived at by tabulating
those repeorted, correction will be made by
retreactive billing for any attachments identified as
being responsible for the difference, and any
remaining difference will be spread evenly over the

Years since the last inventory and billing adjusted
accordingly.

Each party shall share equally the cost of making
such inventory of attachments.

ARTICLE XII
JOINT ANCHORS

The Owner where practicablie shall
Licensee, place anchars suitable for joint use upon
consideration of the joint load and guy lead
requirements. The cost of the anchor shall be
shared, and will be billed, as set forth in Appeandix
A. Each party shall install its own quy wires.

14
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ARTICLE XIIT
GROUNDING AND BONDING

Grounding and bonding will at all times meet the
recquirements of the Code.

ARTICLE XIV
DEFAULTS

If either party shall fail to discharge any of its
obligations under this Agreement and such failure
shall continua fer thirty (30) days after notice
thereof in writing from the other party, all rights
of -the party in default hereunder, pertaining te
making attachments to additional poles of the other,
ehall be suspended. If such default shall continue
for a period of ninety (90) days after such
suspension, the other party may forthwith tarminate
the right of the defaulting party to attach to
additional poles of the otheér party. Any such
termination cof the right to attach to such additional
poles of the other by reason of any such default
shall not abrogate .or terminate the.right of either
party to attach to existing joint.use poles or to
maintain existing attachments, and all such
attachments shall continue thereafter to be maintainec
pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, which Agreement ghall, so long as such
attachments are continued, remain in full force and
effect solely and only for the purpose of governing
and contreolling the rights and obligations of the
parties with respect to such attachments.

In the event either party should fail to parfor= its
obligations either during the term of this Agreement
oxr aftey termination made in accordance with the
terms of this Article or Article XIX or fail to
properly maintain or promptly replace joint use poles
thereto after sixty (60) days written notice from the
other, the other party shall have the right, but not
the ebligation, te majintain such poles or to replace
the same at the expense of the party so failing, and
ghall be fully indemnified for all expenses, cos:s

and damages whatever in taking such action or the
manner of taking it.

15
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ARTICLE XV
LIABILITY AND DAMAGES

Either party hereto, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, agrees ¢o and shall indemnify and helad
harmless the other Party from and against any and all
clains, damages, losses and expenses, including but
not limited to attorneys! fees, arising out of or
resulting from the joint use of tha poles, and or any
&Cts or omissions under this agreemant, Any
interpretations regarding this Agreement or any
activities arising hereunder shall be governed by
the laws of the state of Tennéssee

+

ARTICLE XVI
RIGHTS OF OTHER PARTIES

If either party has, prior te the exacution of this
Agreement, conferred upon others not parties to this
Agreement (outside parties), by contract or
otherwise, rights or privileges to attach to any of
its poles covered by this Agreement, nothing herein
contained shall be construed.as.affecting said rights
or privileges with respect to existing attachments of
such outside parties, which attachments shall
continue in accordance with the present practice; all
future attachments of such outside parties shall be
in accordance with the reguirements of Paragraph B
below, except where such ocutside parties have by
agreements entered into prior to the execution of
this Agreement acquired enforceakle rights or
Privileges to make attachments which de not meet such
space aliocations. Owner shall derive all of the
r'evenue accruing from such outside parties. Any
contractual rights or privileges of outside parties
recognized in this paragraph shall include renewals

of or extensions of the tarm (period) of such
contracts.

If either party hereto desires to eonfer upon others
not parties ta this Agreement (outside parties), by
contract or otherwisa, rights or privileges te attach
to any of its poles covered by this Agreement, it
shall have the right to do =g, provided all such
attachments of such outside parties are made in
accordance with the following: (a) such attachments
shall be maintained in conformity with the
Iequirements of the code, and (k) such attachments
Shall not be located within the space allocation of
Licensee, unless Licensse concurs in such occupancy.’
Such concurrence shall in no way wajve Licensee's

ls
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right to occupy its allecated Spaca in the future.

Cwner shall derive all of the revenue accruing rrem
such cutside parties.

-

ARTICLE XVII
NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES

Wherever in this Agreement notice is required ts be
given by either party hereto to the other, such
notice shall be in writing mailed or delivered to the

Vice President of Engineering of the Power Distributor at
its office at Mai h{ or to the

General Manager-Network Provisioning ef the
Talaphene Company at its office at Room 286, Green Hills
ffice Bldg., Nashville, TN 37215 + &8 the case may
be, or to such cther addresseg as either party may

from time to time designate in writing for that
purpose.

ARTICLE XVIII
TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall continue in full force and
effect until the 31st day of December, 1995. This
Agreement shall continue from Year to year thereafter
until terminated by either Party, giving to the other
Six months notice in writing of intention to
terminate this Agreement. At any time thereafter,
the adjustment payment rates applicable under this
Agreement shall ba subject to joint review and
revision upon the written request of either party.

In case of ravision of the edjustment payment rates
as herein provided, the hew adjustment payment rates
agreed upon shall apply, starting with the annual
bill next rendered and continue until again adjusted.

Revisions of the adjustment Payments shall be based
On é&xperience resulting from Previcus adnministration
of this Agresement. Any changes shall take into
account the original cost factors pertinent ts the
establishment of the pole facilities involved in all
joint usae existing under this Agreement at the time
©f the review, If, within 90.days after the receipt
of the request set forth in Article XVIII A above, by
eithar party from the ¢ther, the parties hereto fail
to agree upon a ravisien of Suchi rate, then the
adjustment payment pPer pole shall be established at
the then existing Base Rate, as escalated by the TPI

for a period of two Years. The adjustmant payment per
Pole for those systams on the reciprocal rate shall

17
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be an amount equal to one~half of the then average
annual total cost per pole of the party owning the
greater number of poles, based on average in-plant
cost factors of providing .and .maintaining the joint
poles covered by this Agreement. For these systems
not on the reciprocal rate, the adjustment payment
per pole shall be an amount egual to 56 percent (for
the power distributor) of the then average annual
total cost per pole based on the average in-plant
cest factoers of providng and maintaining the joint
Poles covered by this Agreement, and the adjustmant
payment per pole shall be an amount egual to 44
percent (fer the telephone company) of the then
average annual total ¢ost per pole basaed on the
average in-plant cost factors of providing and

maintaining the joint poles covered by this
Agreement.

ARTICLE XIX
ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
neither party hereto shall assign or otherwise
transfer this Agreement,.in whole_or in part, without
the written consent of the other party; provided that
either party shall have the right without such
consent to mortgage any or all of its property,
rights, privileges and franchises, or to lease or
transfer any of them to another corporation organized
for the purpose of conducting a business of the same
general character as that of such party, or to enter
into any merger or consolidation; and, in case of the
foreclosure of such mortgage, or in case of such
lease, transfer, merger or consalicdate its rights and
obligatiens hereunder shall pass to such successors
and assigns; and provided, further, that subject %o
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
either party may witheut such consent pernit any
corporation conducting a business of the same general
character as that of such party, with which it is
affillated by corporate structure, to exercise the

rights and privileges of this agreement in the
conduct of ites said business.

For the purposes of this Agreement, all attachments
maintained on any joint use pole by the permission of
either party hereto, as provided in Paragraph A
above, shall be considered the attachments of the
pParty granting such permission, and the rights,
obligations and liabilities of such party under this
Agreement, in respect to such attachments, shall be
the same as if it were the actual owner thereof.

1s
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C. . The attachments of sach Party herete or of others
permitted by this Agreement shal)] at all times be and
remain its or their Property, with the rull right of
removal, and shall not become subject to any liens
against the other party.

ARTICLE XX
WAIVER OF TERMS OF CONDITIONS

The failurs of either pParty to enfeorce or insist upon
compliance with any of the terms or conditions or this
Agreement shall not censtituta & general waiver or
relinquishment of any such terms or conditions, but the

sane shall be and remain at all times in full force angd
effact.

ARTICLE XXI
EXISTING AGREEMENTS

Any existing agreament between the parties hereto for the
Jeint use of woeod poles upon a rental.basis within the
territory covered by this agreement is, by mutual caonsent,
hereby abrogated and annulled. The urban~rural boundaries
established under the Agreements shall remain in effect

and shall be mutually agreed upon by the parties upon
execution of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXII
- NO EFFECT ON FRANCHISE RIGHTS

Netwithstanding anything elsewhere hergir provided,
nothing contained in this agreement shall abrogate, limit
or affect any obligation of either party under any
franchise granted to either party by the City(ies) of

Memphis, County of Shelby
State of Tennesgee

er by any of its predecessor municipal corporations.

1s
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‘ARTICLE XXIII
SOURCE OF PAYMENTS

The obligations of the Power Distributor hereunder shall
be payable sclely from the funds of the PowaerDistributor
of Memphls, Tennessee - Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division

ARTICLE XXIV
SUPPLEMENTAL ROUTINES AND PRAGCTICES

Nothing in the foregoing shall preclude the parties to
this agreement from preparing such supplemental operating
routines oxr working practices as they mutually agree to be
necessary or desirable to effectively administer the
provisicns of this Agreement. Any such supplemental
operating routines or working practice must be authorized
and approved by the management level officer or enployee
executing or authorized to execute this contract.

ARTICLE XXV
NO JOINT OWNERSHIP

The Licensee aof a joint use pole shall acquire no
ownership of or interest in such a pele, the Licensee's
rights therein being limited to the right to compliance
with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVI
AGREEMENT AFFECTS ONLY PARTIES HERETO

Excapt only insefar as the express terms of this agreement
make the rights hereundér available to the successors or
assigns of the parties hereto, the provisions of this
agreement shall not be interpreted ta eonfer any right of

action at law or in equity upon any parties except the
parties heretn.

20
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties here to have caused these
Presaents to be executed in duplicate, and their corporate
seals to be affixed thereto by the respective officers
th;reuntc duly authorized, cn the day and year first above
written, .

-

Memphis Light, Gas & Water Divisio
Power Distributoer Nanme

Byt%ﬂ/
’ itle: President

Witness: Zyzﬂ_ i | ‘
=%

South Central Bel]l ™

elephone Company

By: ‘7& . bt

Title: General Manager-Network Provisioning

. Witness: 577‘5% M

21
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APPENDICES A, B & C
These Appendices, effective as of 7 20,/%99¢

consisting of four pages, will be used t5 deternine the
cost responsibility and amounts to be billed for

Notirication forme required to carry out the provisions of
this Agreement will be furnished as needed. Annhually
after the executien of this Agreement, all Appendices
shall be escalated in accordance with Article X,
Subparagraph E set forth abgve. '

Approved: .- :
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
Name of Power Distributeg

By: .
Titla: President

Date; (=2 6~F

South Central Bell
elephone Conpany

i LW

Title: ~feneral Manager-Network Provisioning
Data: [C=30~FO

jeintuse.ent

pap

22
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ADPENDIX A
PRESENT IN-PILACE VALUZS OF POLES
2i¢ wl Pole In Yeypry
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Payment for one half cost of anchor and rod shall be as follows:

3/4" ROD -~ $38.00 Double Eye, 8" Single Helix Anchor

1" or larger ROD =- $54.00

Triple E
or Larger pre Eye,

8" Double Helix Anchaor

Payment under Article VII, Section

F, Paragraph 8, shall be the
e plus an attachm

ent cost of .Q0 b
cable, conductor, or neutral wire. $25 for each
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AFPPENDIX B

The current cost of treated poles for emargency conditions as
discussed in Article V11, paragraph B is as follows:

Beight of Qlass Class cClaas Clasa cClass Class

Class Clas=g
Poles 1 . 2 3 4 5 é 7 9
25! J3s 320 305 293 283 271 261 2424
30! + 342 322 303 27%
35t 380 370 349 322
40! 493 468 425 385
45! 560 525 494 464
50! 699 655 629 575 533
551 ~— B66 797 752 688 .644
60! 1170 1101 996 821
65! 1304 1212 1i04
70! 1587 1395

JU-ary
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MINUTES OF MEETING
of
BOARD QF LIGRT, GAS AND WATER COHHISSIONERS, CITY OF MEMPHIS
held
November 8, 1973

*********************
The Internal Auditor submitted for consideration of the Board an

Agreement for the Joint Use of Wood Poles between the Memphis Light, Gas

and Water Division and the Millington Telephone Company, Inc,
This agreement will replace an outdated Joint Use Agreement between

the Memphis Light, Gaa and Water Division and the Millington Telephone
Company, Ine., dated August 1, 1963,

The principal difference in the agreements 13 the annual ad justment
payment rate per pole., The adjustment payment rate in the existing
agreemeut is $1.00 in comparison to $3.00 for the proposed agreement. The
uev rate ia to be retroactive to Jaoguary 1, 1973. The proposed agreement
also provides for review of the ad justment paymeat rate every three (3)

years ratber than the present five (5) year period.

. ent Winkelman
It was moved Ly Vice Presid s seconded

by Commissioner Whittington and unanimously carried:

THAT, The Agreement for the Joint Use
¢f Wood Poles between the Memphis Lighe,
Gas and Water Division and the Millington

Telephone Company, Inc. be and the same 1
hereby appraved; and

THAT, The President or General Manager
be and is bereby authorized to executa thig
agreement as cutlined above.

| beoenhyy gn-2t, Fant ‘Yo fronma e = & ity Ammy nf
R T T T T I L |
Yoo QL Yy sy LA €2 e - '_..—n [HER D
o oea 5 L I N) _’75‘ ot

LA IR ATEY SE N I

Gl

Sacrataiy=teas

26
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THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of , 19 y

by and between Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division, created under Chapter
381 of the Private Acts of the State of Tennessee for the year 1939,

hereinafter called the “"Electric Company*, and Mi1lington Telephone Compaﬁy,
a corporation organized and existing under and hy virtue of the Taws of the

State of Tennessee, hereinafter called “Telephone Company".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Electric Company and the Telephone Company desire to
cogperate in accordance with the “Principles and Practices for the Joint
Use of Wood Poles by Supply and Communication Companies" as contained in the
report of the Joint General Committee of the Edison Electric Institute and
the Bell Telephone System dated July 1945, and amendments thereto, and to
establish joint use of their respective poles when and where joint use shall
be of mutual advantage: and

WHEREAS, the conditions determining necessity or desirability of
jeint use depend upon service requirements to be met by both parties,
including considerations of safety and economy, and each of them should be
the judge of what the character of its circuits should be to meet its
service requirements and as to whether or not these service requirements
can be properly met by joint use of poles;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual
covénants herein contained, the parties hereto, for themselves, their
successors and assigns, do hereby covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this agreement, the following terms when used
herein, shall have the following meanings:

A. NORMAL SPACE--means sufficient space on a joint use pole for
the use of each party. taking into consideration requirements of the National
Electrical Safety Code. Except only as to the portion of its said space
which, by the terms of the National Electrical Safety Code, may be occupied
by certain attachments therein described of the other party, this space is
specifically defined as follows:

(1) for the Electric Company, the uppermost six (6) feat;

(2) for the Telephone Company, a space of four (4) feet
at sufficient distance below the space of the Electric
Corpany to provide at all times the minimum clearance
required by the specifications referred to in Article
IV, and at sufficient height above the ground to
provide proper vertical clearance for the lawest

horizontally run line wires or cables attached in
such space.

B. NORMAL JOINT USE POLE--means a pole which meets the requiremen t:
of the.Nat1ona1 Electrical safety Code for support and‘clearance of supply an¢
communication conductors under conditiens existing at the time joint use is
estainshgd, or is to be created under known plans of .either party. Specifica’
a normal joint pole under this agreement shall be a 40 foot class 4 wood pole
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The foregoing definition of "a nermal joint pole" is not intended
to preclude the use of joint poles shorter or of less strength than the
normal joint pole in locations where such poles will meet the known or
anticipated requirements of the parties hereto.

C. ATTACHMENTS--mean materials or apparatus now or hereafter
used by eithar party in the construction, operation or maintenance of its
. plant carried on poles.

D. CLEARANCE ATTACHMENTS-~-mean any attachment made to a pole of
the owner for the purpose of obtaining clearance between plant of the
Licensee and that of the Owner, where, in general, a pole for the purpose
of supporting the Licensee's attachments would not be required if it were
not for the presence of the other (Owner's) route. Guy Poles are considered
as part of the anchor and guy structure, and, as such, guy attachments are

not considered as units to be counted but are given the same treatment as
clearance attachments.

E. SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS--mean attachments made.on poles which,
in general, relieve the Licensee of the necessity of provi@tng a pole at or
near the same location for the purpose of supporting its wires or cables.

F. OWNER--means the party owning the pole to which attachments
are made. :

G. LICENSEE--means the party having the right under this

agreement to make attachments to a pole of which the other party is the
. Owner,

ARTICLE II
TERRITORY AND SCOPE QF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be in effect and shall cover all wooden poles
of each of the parties now existing, hereinafter erected or acquired, within

the common operating areas served by the parties hereto, when said pales are
brought hereunder, excepting:

A. Poles which, in the Owner's Judgment, are necessary for its
own sole use; and

B. Poles which carry, or are intended to carry, circuits of a
character that in the Owner's Judgment proper rendering of its service now
or in the future makes joint use of such poles undersirable.

C. Poles located in rural areas which are covered by a separate
agreement dated The dividing points
between the areas covered by this agreement and the above referred to
separate agreement are described as follows: None

It is understood and agreed that the division points may be changed at any
time during the lifa of this agreement, when such changes are mutually
agreed to by designated representat{ves of both parties, and thereupon, the
division pofints will be changed accordingly, and will be made a part of this
contract by an exchange of letter or appropriate addendum,

ARTICLE III
PERMISSION FOR JOINT USE
Each party hereto hereby permits joint use by the other party of

any of its poles when brought under this agreement as herein provided,
subject ta the terms and conditions herein stated.
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ARTICLE IV
SPECIFICATIONS

Joint use of poles covered by this agreement shall at all times
be in conformity with terms and provisions of the c¢urrent issue of the
National Electrical Safety Code as to minimum requirements, and such
revisions and amendments thereto from time to time as may be necessary by
reason of developments and improvements in the art as may be mutually
agreed upon and approved in writing by the Director of the Eleetric

Division of the Electric Company and the Chief
Engineer of the Telephone Company, )

Edison Electric Institute Publication M-12, a report of the
Joint Committee on Plant Coordination of the Edison Electric Institute
and the Bell Telephone System, based on the National Electrical Safety
Code, and such revisions and amendments thereto as may be made from time
to time is to be used as a guide in the administration of this agreement.

ARTICLE ¥
RIGHT OF WAY FOR LICENSEE'S ATTACHMENTS

A. The Owner and Licensee will cooperate as far as may be
practicable in obtaining rights of way for both parties. When a written
easement is secured it shall be in sufficient detail for identification
and recording, where required, and shall be subject to inspection by the
other party upon request. However, no guarantee is given by the Owner of
permission from property owners, municipalities or others for the use of
poles by the Licensee, and if objection is made therete and the Licensee
is unable to satisfactorily adjust the matter within a reasonable time,
the Owner may at any time, upon thirty (30) days notice in writing to the
Licensee, require the Licensee to remove its attachments from the poles
involved, and the Licensee shall, within thirty (30) days after receipt
of said notice, remove its attachments from such poles at its sole expense,
Should the Licensee fail to remove its attachments as herein provided, the
Owner may remove them at the Licensee's expense, without any liability
whatever for such removal or the manner of making it, for which expense
the Licensee shall reimburse the Dwner on demand.

B. Where the property owners will allow it, the owner of the
line shall obtain a right of way swath extending up to 7 1/2 feet on each
side of the center line of the line. Where property owners abject to
this swath each party will be responsible for obtaining permission for a
swath satisfactory for its own requirements. After permission of property
owners is obtained, the owner of the line will provide the initial clearance
of the swath to meet the requirements of both parties, up to a maximum of
7 1/2 feet on each side of the centerline of the line. However, in cases
where the right of way clearance, including tree trimming, is more than
indicated above, due to the reaquirements of the Licensee, the extra
clearance costs shall be borne by the Licensee.

C. It is agreed that the cost of maintenance of right of way
and recurring trimming should be borne jointly to the extent that each of
the parties will benefit by the joint endeavor. Due to varying conditions
expected to be encountered, the division of cost of maintaining right of
way and tree trimming shall be agreed upon after a joint inspection by
representatives of both parties of the work operations required to provide
necessary clearances. The division of cost as provided in this section
shall be based on mutually agreeable predetermined divisions of cost and
shall be subject to revision at the request of either.party upon ninety
(90) days written notice. The Division of Cost, as agreed to. shall then
be evidenced by an exchange of letters as provided under Article XXIl1. As
hetween the parties to this contract. the company performing the work shall
assume all responsibility of claims and suits which may arise from this work.
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ARTICLE VI
PLACING, TRANSFERRING OR REARRANGING ATTACHMENTS

A. HWhenever either party desires to reserve space on any pole
of the other, for any attachments requiring space thereon, not then
specifically reserved hereunder for its use, it shall make written
application therefor, specifying in such notice the location of the pole
in question, the number and kind of attachments which it desires to place
thereon, and the character of the circuits to be used. Within ten {10)
days after the receipt of such notice, the Owner shall notify the Applicant
in writing whether or not said pale is of those excluded from Joint use
under the provisions of Article I1. Upon receipt of notice from the Owner
that said pole is not of ‘those excluded, and after completion of any
transferring or rearranging which is then required in respect to attachments
on said poles, including any necessary pole replacements as provided in
Article VII "A", the Applicant shall have the right as Licensee hereunder to
use said space for attachments and circuits of the character specified in
said application in accordance with the terms of this agreement., Service
wire attachments or emergency construction can be placed in accordance with
the specifications, upon verbal approval, subsequently approved in writing.

B. Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, each party
shall place. maintain, rearrange, transfer and remove its awn attachments,
and shall at all times perform such work promptly and in such a manner as
not to interfere with work being done by the other party.

€. In any case where one party provides at the request of the
other party double thimble guy rods for the use of both parties, the party
requesting the double thimble guy rod shall pay to the party placing the
guy rod a sum equal to half of the cost of the anchor and guy rod in
place. In cases where existing anchors are adequate for the needs of
either party, the party desiring additional guys will, where necessary,
install double thimble guy rods at no expense to the other party, and
the other party will, at its own expense, transfer its guys to the new

rod. The ownership of the double thimble rod will be vested in the owner
of the pole.

ARTICLE VII
ERECTING, REPLACING OR RELOCATING POL:S

A.. Whenever any jointly used pole, or any pole about ta he so
used under the provisions of this agreement, 1s insufficient in size or
strength for the existing attachments and for the proposed immediate
additional attachments thereon, the Owner shall promptly replace such pole
with a new pole of the necessary size and strength, and make such other
changes in the existing pole line, in which such pole is included, as may
bg made necessary by the replacement of such pole and the placing of the
Licensee's circuits as proposed.

B. Whenever it is necessary 1o change the location of a jointly
used pole, by reason of any state, municipal or other governmental require-
ment, or the requirements of a property owner, the Owner shall, before
making such change in location, give notice thereof in writing (except in
cases of emergency when verbal notice will be given, and subsequently confirmed
in writing) to the Licensee, specifying in such notice the time of such
proposed relocation, and the Licensee shall, at the time so specified, transfer
its attachment to the pole at the new location. [In the case of a pole along
subdivided property which is not set opposite a lot line, the owner of such
pole will, if conditions require, move same at the request of the Licensee,
each party bearing the cost of moving its faciiities.
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C. Whenever either party hereto is about to erect new_pgles
within the territory covered by this agreement, either as an additional
pole line, as an extension of an existing pole line, or as the
reconstruction of an existing pole line, it shall notify the other in
writing at least thirty (30) days before beginning the work (shorter
notice, including verbal notice subsequently confirmed in writipg, may
be given in cases of emergency), and shall submit with such notice its
plans showing the proposed location and size of the new poles and the
character of circuits it will use thereon. The other party shal!.
within twenty (20) days after the receipt of such notice, reply in
writing to the party erecting the new poles, stating whether such other
party does, or daes not, desire space on the said poles, and if it does
desire space thereon, the character of the circuits it desires to use
and the amount of space it wishes to reserve. This notice of desire to
establish joint use should include detail plans of any changes in the
plans of the other party which are desired in order to permit the
establishment of joint use. If such other party requests space on the
new poles, and if the character and number of circuits and attachments
are such that the Owner does not wish to exclude the poles from joint
use under the provision of Article II, then poles suitable for the said
Joint use shall be erected in accordance with the provisions and the
payment of costs as provided in paragraphs "D", “E" and "F" of this Article.

0. In any case where the parties hereto shall conclude arrangements
for the joint use of any new poles to be erected, the ownership of such poles
shall be determined by mutual agreement, to the end that each party hereto
shall at all times own approximately one-half of the total number of poles
Jointly used under this agreement, due regard being given to the desirability
of avoiding mixed ownership in any given line. In the event of disagreement
as to ownership, the party then owning the smaller number of joint poles

under this agreement shall promptly erect the new joint poles and be the
owner thereof.

E. The costs of erecting joint poles coming under this agreement,
either as new pole lines, as extensions of existing pole lines, or to
replace existing poles, either existing jointly used poles or poles not
previously involved in joint use, shall be borne by the parties as follows:

1. A normal joint pole, or a joint pole shorter or
smaller than the normal pole, shall be erected
at the sole expense of the Owner, except as
provided in Section “F" of this Article.

2. A pole taller or stronger than the normal pole,
the extra height and strength of which is due
wholly to the Owner's requirements, shall be
erected at the sole expense of the Owner.

3. In the case of a pole taller or stronger than
the narmal pole, the extra height and strength
of which is due wholly to the Licensee's
requirements, the Licensea shall pay to the
Owner a sum equal to the difference between the
cost in place of such pole and the cost in place
of a normal joint pole, the rest of the cost of

D cane et ~>  erecting such pole to be borne by the Owner, _
o e except as provided in Section "F" oF this Article.

4. In the case of a pole taller or stronger than the
normal pole, the extra height and strength of
which is due to the requirements of both parties,
the Licensee shall pay to the Owner a sum equal
to one-half the difference between the cost in
place of such pole and the cost in place of a
normal joint pole, the rest of the cost of erecting
such pole to be borne by the Owner.
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5. In the case of a pole taller or stronger than
the normal pole, where height and strength in
addition to that needed for the purpase of either
or both of the parties hereto is necessary in
order to meet the requirements of public authority
or af property owners, one-half of the excess cost
of such pole due to such requirements shall be borne
by the Licensee; the rest of the cost of such pole
to be borne as provided in that one of the preceding
paragraphs 1, 2, 3 or 4, within which it would
otherwise properly fall,

F. In any case where a pole is erected hereunder to replace another
pale solely because such other pole is not tall enough, or of the required
strength, to provide adequately for the Licensee's requirements, or where
such pole, whether it carry space reserved for the Licensee's use or not,
had at the time of its erection, been pronounced by the Licensee as
satisfactory and adequate for its requirements, the Licensee shall, upon
erection of the new pole, pay to the Owner, in addition to any amounts
payable by the Licensee under paragraphs. 3, &4 or 5, of Section “E" of this
Article, a sum equal to the sacrificed life of the pole which is replaced
(then value in place of the pole replaced plus cost of remaval less salvage},
and the pole removed shall remain the property of the Owner. In any case
where the other party by mutual consent erects and owns a joint pole to replace
an existing pole of the Owner (instead of the Owner doing so as it is
contemplated by Sec¢tion "A" of this Article that the Owner will do), such other

- party shall pay to the Owner of the replaced pole a sum equal to the then
value in place of the pole which is replaced, and the pole removed shall’
thereupon become the property of such other party which has erected the
replacing pole.

G. When replacing a jointly used pole carrying aerial cable
terminals, undergraound connections or transformer equipment, the new pole
shall be set in the same hole which the replaced pole occupied, unless

special conditions make it necessary or mutually desirable to set it in a
different Tocation. .

H. Any payments made by the Licensee under the foregoing provisions
of this Article for poles taller than normal shall not in any way affect the
ownership of said poles.

[. Any payments as provided in the foregoing provisions of this
Article may be based on mutually agreeable predetermined amounts. The
amounts agreed to shall be subject to revision at the request of either
party at the end of each three year period, or at other times as may be
mutually agreed to, and may be cancelled at any time by ejther party by a
‘written notice. The amounts agreed to shall be evidenced by an exchange
of letters, as provided under Article XXII.

ARTICLE VIl
MAINTENANCE OF POLES AND ATTACHMENTS

A. The Owner shall, at its own expense, maintain its joint poles
in a safe and serviceable condition, and in accordance with Article IV of
this agreement and the requirements of the National Electrical Safety Code,

and shall replace, subject to the provisions of Article VII, such of said
poles that become defective.

) B. Each-party shall, at its own expense, at all times maintain 611
of its attachments in accordance with Article IV of this agreement and the

Nati?nal Electrical Safety Code and keep them in safe condition and in thorougt
repair,




83/98/2000 14:17 9915284991 M_GW

PAGE 33

-7
ARTICLE IX
PROCEDURE WHEN CHARACTER OF CIRCUITS IS CHANGED

When either party desires to change the character of its circuits
on jointly used poles, such party shall give sixty (60) days notice to the
other party of such contemplated change, and in the event that the party
agrees to joint use with such changed circuits, then the Joint use of such
poles shall be continued with such changes in construction as may be necessary
to meet the requirements of the National Electrical Safety Cede, being made
at the expense of the party desiring to make the change, In the event, however,
that the other party fails within thirty (30) days from receipt of such notice
to agree in writing to such change, then both parties shall cooperate in
accordance with the following plan:

A. The parties hereto shall determine the most practical and
eccnomical method of effectively providing for separate lines, and the-

party whose circuits are to be moved shall promptly carry out the necessary
work.

B. The cost of re-establishing such circuits in the new location
as are necessary to furnish the same business facilities that existed in the
joint use at the time such change was decided upon, shall be equitably
apportioned between the parties hereto.

Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, ownership of any new line
constructed under the foregoing provision in a new location shall vest in
the party for whose use it is constructed. The net cost of establishing
service in the new location shall be exclusive of any increased cost due to
the substitution for existing facilities of other facilities of a substantially
new or improved type or of increased capacity, but shall include, among other
items, the cost of the new pole line, including rights of way, the cest of
removing attachments from the old poles to the new 'location, and the cost of
placing the attachments on the pales in the new location.

ARTICLE X
BILLS AND PAYMENTS FOR WORK

Upon the completion of work performed hereunder by either party,
the expense of which is to be borne wholly or in part by the other, the
party performing the work shall present to the other party, within thirty
(30) days after the completion of such work, a statement showing the amount
due, and such other party shall, within thirty (30) days after such statement
is presented, pay to the party doing the work the amount due.

ARTICLE XI
ABANDONMENT OF JOINTLY USED POLES

A. If the Owner desires at any time to abandon any jointly used
pole, it shall give the -Licensee notice in writing to that effect at least
thirty (30) days prior to the date on which it intends to abandon such pole.
If, at the expiration of said period, the Owner shall have no attachments
on such pole but the Licensee shall not have removed al] of its attachments
therefrom, such pole shall thereupon become the property of the Licensee,
and the Licensee shall save harmless the farmer Qwner of such pole from all
obligation, liability, damages, cost, expenses or charges incurred thereafter,
because of, or arising out of, the presence or candition of such pole or any
attachments thereon; and shall pay the Owner a sum equal to the then value in
place of such abandoned pole, or poles, or such ather equitable sum as may be
agreed upon between the parties. Credit shall be allowed for any payments
which the Licensee may have made under the provisions. of Article VII, Sections

“E" and "F", when the pole was originally set, provided the Licensee furnishes
proof of such payment. i

.
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B. The Licensee may at any time abandon the use of a joint
pole by giving due notice thereof in writing to the Owner and by removing
therefrom any and all attachments it may have thereon.

ARTICLE XII
ADJUSTMENT PAYMENTS

The parties contemplate that the use or reservation of $pace on
poles by each party, as Licensee of the other under this agreement, shall be
reciprocal and mutual insofar as this may be practicable.

A. Adjustment payments per pole due from either party as Licensee

to the other party as Owner shal), subject to the provision of Article XIII,
be $3.00 per annum.

B. On or about December 1st of each year, each party, acting in
cooperation with the other, subject to the provisions of the following
paragraph of this Section, shall have ascertained and tabulated the total
number of poles in use by each party as Licensee for which an adjustment
payment shall be made to the other party as Qwner. For the purpose of such
tabulation, poles shall not be included where the use by the other party
consists only of attaching thereto guys, customer service leads crossing
routes of either party, span wires supporting street lights, messenger not
supporting cables or conductors, and the attaching thereto of wires or
cables of the Licensee for the purpose of clearance between the poles and

said wires or cables and not for the primary purpose of supporting said
wires or cables.

C. The total adjustment payment due each party shall be determined
by multiplying the poles owned by each party, tabulated as indicated in the
first paragraph of Section "B" of this Article, by the adjustment payment
in Section "A" of this Article, The smaller total amount covered above shall
be deducted from the larger amount and the Electric Company or the Telephone
Company, whichever shall owe the larger amount, shall pay to the other the
difference between said twg amounts as the net adjustment payment due for the
year involved: Within ten (10) days after the first day of December next .
ensuing after the date of this agreement, and within ten (10) days after the
first day of December each year thereafter during the time this agreement
shall be in effect, the party to which said adjustment payment is owed, as of
said first day of December, shall submit a written statement to the other
party giving the correct amount owed by the other party. The adjustment
payment herein provided for shall be paid within ten {10) days after the bill
has been submitted, unless said party disputes the amount of such bill
within five (5) days from receipt thereof. Any recurring cost incurred by the
Owner, beyond the control of the Qwner, solely because of the use of the

" Owner's poles by the Licensee, shall be paid by the Licensee.

D. At intervais not exceeding five (5) years an actual inventory
of attachments shall be made by representatives of the parties. If there
is any difference in the number of attachments found by the inventory and
the number arrived at by tabulating those reported, correction will be made
by retroactive billing for any attachments identified as being responsible
for the difference, and any remaining difference will be spread evenly over
the years since the last inventory, and billing adjusted accordingly,

ARTICLE XIII
PERIODICAL REVISIGN OF ADJUSTMENT PAYMENT RATE

A. At any time after January 1, 1974 , and at intervals of nat
less than three (3) years thereafter, the adjustment payment rates applicable
under this agreement shall be subject to joint review and revision, as
provided for under Section "B of this Article, upon the written request of
eithgr party. In case of revision of the adjustment payment rates as herain
provided, the new adjustment payment rates agreed upon shall apply, starting
with the annual bill next rendered and continuing until again adjusted.




83/88/2800 14:17 9815284391 M_GW PAGE 35

-9-

B, Revisions of the adjustment payments shall be based on
experience resulting from previous administration of this agreement.
Any changes shall take into account the original cost factors pertinent
to the establishing of the pole facilities involved in all joint use
existing under this agreement at the time of the said review. If, within
ninety (90) days after the receipt of such request, by either party from
the other, the parties hereto fail to agree upon a revision of such rate. -
then the adjustment payment per pole 50 to be paid shall be an amount equal
to one-half of the then average annual total cost per pole, based on average
in-plant cost factors, of providing and maintaining the joint poles covered
by this agreement. In case of a revision of the adjustment payment as
herein provided, the new rate shall be appiicable until again revised.

ARTICLE XIV
DEFAULTS

A. If either party shall make default in any of its abligations
under this agreement, and such default shall continue thirty (30) days
after notice thereof in writing from the other party, all rights of the
party in default hereunder pertaining to the establishment of future Joint
use shall be suspended, and if such default shall continue for a period of
ninety (90) days after such suspension, the other party may forthwith
terninate the right of both parties to make additional attachments. Any
such termination of the right to make additional attachments by reason of
any such default. shall not, however, abrogate or terminate the right of
either party to maintain the attachments theretofore made on the poles of
the other, and all such prior attachments shall continue thereafter to be
maintained pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of this agreement,
which agreement shall, so long as the attachments are continued, remain in
full force and effect solely and only for the purpose of governing and

controlling the rights and obligations of the parties with respect to said
attachments,

B. If either party shall make default in the performance of any
work which it is obligated to do under this contract, at its sole expense,
the other party may elect to do such work, and the party in default shall
reimburse the other party for the cost thersof. Failure on the part of the
defaulting party to make such payment within thirty (30) days upan
presentation of bills therefor shall, at the election of the other party,
constitute a default under Section “A" of this Article.

ARTICLE Xxv
LIABILITY AND DAMAGES

Whenever any liability for damages is incurred by either or both
of the parties hereto for injuries to the employees, or for injury to the
property of either party, or for injuries to other persons or their
property, arising out of the joint use of poles under this agreement, or
duc to the proximity of the wires and fixtures of the parties hereto
attached to the jointly used poles covered by this agreement, the liability
for such damages, as between the parties hereto, shall be as follows:

A. Each party shall be liable for all damages for such injuries
to persons or property caused solely by its negligence or solely by its
failure to comply at any time with the specifications as provided herecin.

B. Each party shall be liable for all damages for such injuries
to 1;5 own employees or its own property that are caused by the concurrent
nenligence of both parties hereto, or that are due to causaes which cannot
be traced to the sole negligence of the other party.

C: Each party shall be liable for one-half (1/2) of all damages
for ¢uch injuries to persons other than cupluyees ul either party, and Tur
one-half (1/2) of all damages for such injuries to property not belonging to
either party, that are caused by the concurrent negligence of both parties

hereto, or that are due to causes which cannot be traced to the sole
negligence of the other party.
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D. Where, on account of injuries of the character described in
the preceding paragraphs of this Article, either party hereto shall make
any payments to injured employees ar to their relatives or representatives
in conformity with: (1) the provision of any workmen's compensation act
o any act creating a 1iability in the employer to pay compensation for
personal injury to an employee by accident arising out of and in the course
of the employment, whether based on negligence on the part of the employer
or not, or (2} any plan for employees' disability benefits or death benefits
now established or hereafter adopted by the parties hereto, or either of them
such payments shall be construed to be damages within the terms of the ‘
preceding paragraphs numbered "A" and "B" and shall be paid by the parties
hereto accordingly.

13

: E. A1l claims for damages arising hereunder that are asserted
arjainst or affect both parties hereto shall be dealt with by the parties
hereto jointly; provided, however, that in any case where the Claimant
desires to settle any such claim upon terms acceptable to one of the parties
hereto but not to be other, the. party to which said terms are acceptable may,
al its election, pay to the other party one-hailf (1/2) of the expense which
siuch settlement would {nvolve, and thereupon said other party shall be
bound to protect the party making such payment from all further liability
and expense on account of such claim.

F. In the adjustment between the parties hereto of any claim
for damages arising hereunder, the Tiability assumed hereunder, by the parties,
shall include, in addition to the amounts paid to the Claimant, all expenses
incurred by the partjes in connection therewith, which shall comprise costs,
altorneys' fees, disbursements and other proper charges and expenditures.

ARTICLE xvI
EXISTING RIGHTS OF OTHER PARTIES

If either of the parties hereto has, prior to the execution of this
ayreement, conferred upon others, not parties to this agreement, by contract
or otherwise, rights or privileges to use any poles covered by this agreement
nuthing herein contained shall be construed as affecting said rights or
privileges, and either party hereto shall have the right, by contract or
otherwise, to continue and extend such existing rights or privileges; it
being expressly understood, however, that for the purpose of this agreement,
the attachments of any such outside party shall be treated.as attachments
belonging to the Grantor, and the rights, obligations, and liabilities
hereunder of the Grantor in respect to such attachments shall be the same as
if it were the actual Owner thereof. Where municipal regulations require
either party to allow the use of its poles for fire alarm, police or other

Tike signal systems, such use shall be permitted under the terms of this
Article,

»

ARTICLE XVII
SERVICE OF NOTICES

. Wiherever in this agreement notice is provided to be given by
either party hereto to the ather, such notice shall be in writing and
given by letter mailed, or by personal delivery, to the [Clectric Company
at its office at 220 S. Main Street, Memphis, Tennessee 38145 or to the
Tclephone Company at its office at 4870 Navy Road, Millingtun, Tennessee
38053 as the case may be, or to such other address as either party may,
from time to time, designate in writing for that purpose.

ARTICLE XVIII
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
This agreement shall contfnue in full force and effact until

the 31st day of December, 1977 , and shall continue thereafter until
terminated, insofar as the making of additional attachments is concerned,
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ARTICLE XVIII
(continued)

by either party, giving to the other one (1) years notice i1 writing of
intention to terminate the right of making additional attacimnents. Any

such termination of the right to make additional attachments; shall not,
however, abrogate or terminate the right of either party to maintain the
attachments theretofore made on the poles of the other, and all such prior
attachments shall continue thereafter to be maintained, pursuant to and

in accordance with the terms of this agreement, which agreenent shall, so

Tong as said attachments are continued, remain in full forc: and effect solely
and only far the purpose of governing and controlling the rights and
obligations of the parties with respect to said attachments.

+ ARTICLE XIX
ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS

Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, n:ither party
hereto shall assign or otherwise dispose of this agreement, in whole or
in part, without the written consent of the other party: ex:ept that
either party shall have the right to mortgage any or all of its property,
rights, privileges and franchises, or lease or transfer any of them to
-another corporation organized for the purpose of conducting a business of
the same general character as that of such party, or to enter into any
merger or consolidation; and, in case of the foreclosure of such mortgage,
or in case of such lease, transfer, merger, or consolidation, its rights
and obligations hereunder shall pass to such successors and assigns; and
provided, further, that subject to ail of the terms and conliticns of this
agreement, either party may permit any corporation conductiitlg 3 business of
the same general character as that of such party, with which it is affiliated,
or connecting with it, the rights and privileges of this ag-eement, in the
conduct of jts said business; and for the purpose of this ajreement, all
such attachments maintained on any such pole by the permission as aforesaid
of either party hereto shall te considered as the attachments of the party
granting such permission, and the rights, obligations and liabilities of
such party under this agreement, in respect to such attachm:nts, shall be
the same as if it were the actual owner thereof.

ARTICLE XX
WAIVER OF TERMS OR CONDITIONS

The failure of either party to enforce or insist itpon compliance
with any of the terms or conditions of this agreement shall not constitute
4 general waiver or relinquishment of any such terms or comlitions, but
the same shall be and remain at all times in full force and effect.

ARTICLE XXI
EXISTING CONTRACTS

A1l existing agreements between the parties hereto for the joint
use of wood poles upon a rental basis within the territory covered by this
agreement, except the one dated day of
which covers attachments in None

-— . ———

. —t— ——

areas as described in Articie 11, Section "C" are, by mutual consent, hereby
abrogated and annulled. ‘

ARTICLE XXII
_ SUPPLEMENTAL ROUTINES AND PRACTICES

. . Nothing in the foregoing shall preclude the parties to this
agreement from preparing such supplemental operating routines or working
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ARTICLE XXII
(continued)

practices as they mutually agree to be necessary or desirable to
effectively administer the provisions of this agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these
presents to be executed in dupl{icate, and their corporate seals to be

affixed thereto by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized,
on the day and year first above written, ’

ATTEST: . . MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION

/ 9 d . By Z) i NS
.7 Secrétaty avoroved tf Board df Tight, Cas
or 1 E_ 23

& Water Comnissloners

ATTEST: : . MILLINGTON TELEPHONE COMPANY




RESPONSE TO:

TCTA — Appendix 14
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MLGW Wire Transfers to Memphis Networx

11/10/1999 $20,000.00
11/14/1999 $36.300,00
Nov. Total $56,300.00
12/13/1999 $113,000.00
12/29/1999 $ 27,000,00
Dec. Total $140,000.00
1/13/2000 $26,000.00
1/27/2000 $186.000.00
Jan, Total $212,000.00
2/16/2000 $42,000.00
21242000 $202,000.00
Feb. Total $244,000.00
3/9/2000 $119,000.00

Total

$771,300.00



RESPONSE TO:

TCTA - Appendix 17 ----eeeee-



iKNOX WALKUP - hiring practice (1).doc T ’-- ) —

Memphis Networx hiring practice:

a Develop Job Descriptions or Contract Requirements

Advertise vacancies in recruitment sources appropriate to the position noting that
Memphis Networx is an Equal Opportunity Employer.

Utilize Diversity Program being developed by Fitch Williamson and Cartwright and the
Uniform Certification Agency Directory produced by the Mid-South Minority
Business Council

Appoint committees to review and evaluate applicants bidders

Call candidates in for interview

Candidate completes an employment application

Conduct fair and impartial interviews of candidates

Interview committee reviews, discuss, analyzes candidates skill level

Interview committee identifies best-qualified candidate

References are checked

Offer is made

Non- Disclosure contract is signed by future employee




RESPONSE TO:

TCTA - Appendix 21
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF LOCAL FINANCE
SUITE 500 JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
505 DEADERICK STREET
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0274
PHONE (615) 7414276
FAX (615) 532.9237

February 4, 2000

Mr. John McCullough
Vice-President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
PO Box 430
Memphis, Tennessee 381 01-0430

Dear Mr. McCullough:

On November 24, 1999 we issued our letter pursuant to the provisions of TCA 7-52-402(2)
authorizing the execution of an inter-division loan in an amount not to exceed 35,300,000 from
the Electric Division to the Telecommunications Division of the Memphis Light, Gas and Water

In accordance with Mr. Smith’s request, this constitutes a revision of our November 24, 1999,
letter to approve this inter-division loan to be in the amount of approximately $5,500,000. The

loan should be retired within the time pericd indicated in the information previously submitted to
this office,

d \
avid H. Bowling ES

Acting Director

Cec: Mark Smith
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yPan-1eds

JOMN & FLETCHER
187@-.IROY

JOHN 5. CARMIORN
1OQR-10AS

JOHMN 8. FLEYCHNEN, aR.
11974
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181018687

P THOMNTON BTRANG
10R0- i8S
t——
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* ALBD LICRNERS M ALABAMS,
e Apal LISENEED 1N ARBONA

The Honorable David H. Bowling
Acting Director

State of Tennessse

Comptroller of the Treasury

Division of Local Finance

500 James K. Polk State Office Building
505 Deaderick Street

Nashville, Tenmessee 37243-0274

Re:  Memphis Light, Gas & Water Division / Telecommunications
Inter-division Loan

Dear Mr. Bowling:

By .Ie:*tter dated November 24, 1999, to Mx. John McCullough of Memphis Light, Gas &
Water Division, a copy of which is enclosed, your office approved an inter-division loan in an
amount not to exceed $5,300,000.

In reviewing our file materials, it appears that the requested approval amount should have
been approximately $5,332,800, rather than the amount stated in the request to your office. We
apologize for this oversight, and respectfully request that your office revise its approval to permit an
inter-division loan in an approximate amount of $5,500,000.

Should you have any further questions or require further information, please feel free to
contact me or John McCullough in Memphis [{901) 528-4311]. As always, thank you for your

assistance in this and other matters.
%wl ZE §

Mark W. Smith
For the Firm

Enclosure

cc:  Mr. John McCullough «

J. Maxwell Williams, General Counsel
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF LOCAL FINANCE
SUITE 500 JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
503 DEADERICK STREET
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0274
PHONE (615) 741-4276
FAX (618) 532-9237

November 24, 1999

Mr. John McCullough
Vice-President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
PO Box 430
Memphis, Tennessee 38101-0430

Dear Mr. McCullough:

You have submitted letters dated September 30, 1999, and November 19, 1999, together with supporting
documentation, concerning a plan which has been approved by the Board of Commissioners of the Memphis Light,
Gas and Water Division to develop, construct and operate a telecommunications system pursuant to the authority of
Tennessee Code Armotated, Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 401, Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 402(2) provides that inter-
division loans may be executed to provide funds for such projects, and requires that such loans be approved in
advance by this office. Pursuant to this requirement, you have requested approval for the execution of an inter-
diviston loan in the amount of $5,300,000 from the Electric Division to the Telecommunications Division of the
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division. The information you have submitted provides that the loan will be
completely repaid in approximately six (6) years, and that the rate of interest on the loan will not be less than the
highest rate eamed on invested electric system funds, as required by Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 402(2).

Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 103(d) provides that a municipality, acting through the supervisory board of its municipal
clectric system, may enter into a joint venture with a third party for this type of projoct, provided that any contracts
or agreements with such third parties are first approved by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority (TRA). You have
advised us that since this project involves such a joint venture, this plan will be submitted to the TRA for their
review and approval in accordance with this statute. ' :

Subject to your receipt of approval for this project by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, as required by Title 7,
Chaprer 52, Part 103(d), this constitutes approval by this office, pursuant to Title 7, Chapter 52, Part (402)(2), tor an
inter-division loan in an amount not to exceed $5,300,000 from the Electric Division to the Telecommunications
Division of the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division. We are hereby requesting that you provide this office
with a copy of the report issued by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority.

GZ{B&‘BM%

David H. Bowling
Acting Director

JM 0001

B4
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COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF LOCAL FINANCE
SUITE $80 JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
503 DEADERICK STREET
NASHVILLY, TENNESSLE
PHONE (615) 741427
FAX (615) $32.9237

274

November 24, 1999

Mr., Jolm McCullough
Vice-President, Finznce and
Chisf Financial Officer
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
PO Box 430
Memphis, Tennsaaee 38101-0430

Dear Mr. McCullough:

You heve submitted letters dated September 30, 1999, and Ngvember 19, 1999, together with supporting
documentation, codcerning & plan which has besn approved by the of Commissioners of the Memphis Light,
Ges and Water Division to develop, construct and operate 2 wlecomfnunications system pursuant to the suthority of
Tennessee Code Annotsted, Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 401, Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 402(2) provides that inter-
division. loans may be executed to provide funds for such projects, and requites that such loans be spproved in
advance by this office. Pursuent to this requirement, you have sted approval for the execution of an inter-
division loan in the amount of 55,300,000 from the Electric Divisipn to the Telecommunications Division of the
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division. The informstion you have submitted provides that the Joan will be
completely repaid in approximately six (6) years, and that the rate oT intecest on the loan will not be less than the
highest rate camexd on invested electric system funds, as required bry [Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 402(2).

Title 7, Chapter 32, Part 103(d) provides that a municipality, acting|trough the supervisery board of its municipal
elsotrio system, may enter into & joitit venturs with a third party for this type of project, provided thet any contracts
or agreements with such thind parties are first approved by the Tengessee Regulatory Authority (TRA). You have
advised us that since this project involves such 8 joint venture, this plan will be submitted to the TRA for their
review and approval in accordance with thiy statute,

Subject to your roceipt of approval for this project by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, as required by Title 7,
Chapter 52, Part 303(d), this constitutes approval by this office, pwsjiant to Title 7, Chapter 52, Part (402)X2), for an
inter-divigion Joan in an smount not to exceed $5,300.000 from the Electric Division to the Telacommunications
Division of the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division. We ar¢|hereby requesting that you provide this office
with a copy of the report issued by the Tennessce Regulatory Authorgty.

O:»B?i B@mﬁﬁ

[uvid H. Bowling
Acting Director

JM 0002
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MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION

JOHN W. McCULLOUGH., PE.

Vice Presiosnt, Finance
and Secretary-Traasurer

November 15, 1999

The Honorable David H. Bowling, Acting Director
State of Tennessee

Comptroller of the Treasury

Division of Local Finance

James K_ Polk State Office Building, Suite 500

505 Deaderick Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0274

Dear Mr. Bowling:

It was my pleasure to meet with you on October 19, 1999 to discuss the inter-division loan. This
letter responds to the issues raised in your October 11, 1999 letter and follows our subsequent
discussion in your office, Please note that the businass plan has changed and the equity investment
has been reduced to $5,300,000 and ¢an be repaid within six years. We are seeking TRA approval

in the near future and it would be helpful to have your approval of this [oan to attach to our
application.

1. Minimum Interest Rate. Enclosed is a revised revolving line of credit note that references
the applicable statutory minimum rate of interest. MLGW utilizes several money managers
to manage its investment accounts, and each account js comparable in size to the face amount
of the inter-division loan. These accounts traditionally eamn higher returns than the cash that
the Divigion itself invests in shorter term, lower yielding investments. On a monthly basis
we will compare the returns on each of these accounts with the prime rate minus 3 percent.
In the event that the retumns on any of the accounts is higher than the prime rate minus 3
percent for any calendar month, the highest account rate will apply for that month.

2. Amortization Schedule. In accordance with your request, enclosed are the amortization
schedule and a narrative of our discussion which outlines the benefit to MLGW ratepayers
in having a back loaded prepayment amortization.

JM 0005

P.O. BOX 430 MEMPHIS, TENNESSEE 38101-0430 TELEPHONE (901) 528-4311  FAX (901) 528-4321
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The Honorable David H. Bowling
November 19, 1999
Page 2

3. Approval Conditioned Upon Regulatory Approval. Inaccordance with your request, MLGW
hereby requests that your approval of this inter-division loan be conditioned upon MLGW
obtaining the Tennessee Regulatory Authority’s approval under Chapter 481 of the Public
Acts of 1999 of the underlying joint venture transaction.

Thank you for your consideration of these additional materials. Should you have questions or
require further information, please feel free to contact me at 901/528-4311.

Sincerely,
John McCullough

il

Encs.

JM 000§
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REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT NOTE

$20,000,000.00 Memphis, Tennessee
September 30, 1999

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, TELECOMMUNICATIONS
DIVISION OF THE ELECTRIC DIVISION QF THE MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND
WATER DIVISION, OF THE CITY OF MEMPHIS (hereinafter referred to as
"Maker"), promises to pay to the order of THE ELECTRIC DIVISION OF
THE MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION, OF THE CITY OF MEMPHIS
(hereinafter referred to as "Payee"), the sum of Twenty Million and
No/100 Dollars ($20,000,000.00), or so much thereof as shall be
advanced from time to time by the Payee to the Maker, together with
interest as follows: The interest rate for each calendar month
shall be the monthly average of the prime lending rate posted by a
majority of the nation’s largest banks that appear daily in The
Wall Street Journal less three (3) percentage points (the "Index
Rate"), but in no event shall the interest rate for any calendar
month be less than the highest rate of interest then earned by the
Payee on its invested electric plant funds, in accordance with the
requirements of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 7-52-402(2) (the
"Minimum Rate"). In the event the Index Rate in any calendar month
is less than the Minimum Rate, the interest rate for that month
shall be the Minimum Rate.

Interest on all advances outstanding shall be paid semi-
annually with such payments being due and payable on January 1 and
July 1 each year.

On the maturity date, January 1, 2010 (the "Maturity Date")
the entire outstanding principal balance, together with all accrued
and unpaid interest, shall be immediately due and payable in full.

Prior to the Maturity Date, Maker may borrow up to the
principal amount of this Note and repay (without premium or
penalty) and re-borrow funds so long as the principal amount of the
funds disbursed hereunder at no time exceeds Twenty Million and
No/100 Dellars ($20,000,000.00).

Time is of the essence of this Note. It is hereby expressly
agreed that in the event that any default be made in the payment of
any part of interest or principal in accordance with the terms
hereof, or upon failure of Maker to keep and perform all the
covenantg, promises, agreements, conditions and provisions of this
Note, or any other instrument or document new or hereafter
evidencing, securing or otherwise relating te the indebtedness
evidenced hereby; then, in any such case, the entire unpaid
principal sum evidenced by this Note, together with all accrued
interest, shall, at the option of the Payee, without notice, become
due and payable forthwith, regardless of the stipulated Maturity
Date. Upon the occurrence of any default as set forth herein, at
the option of Payee and without notice to Maker, all accrued and
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unpald interest, if any, shall be added to the outstanding
principal balance hereof, and the entire outstanding principal
balance, as so adjusted, shall bear interest thereafter until paid,
regardless of whether or not there has been an acceleration of the
payment of principal as set forth herein. All such interest shall
be paid at the time of and as a condition precedent to the curing
of any such default. PFailure of Payee to exercise this right of
accelerating the maturity of the debt, or indulgence granted from
time to time, shall in no event be considered as a waiver of saigd
right of acceleration or stop Payee from exercising said right.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Note has been duly executed by Maker
the day and year first above written.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS DIVISION OF THE
ELECTRIC DIVISION OF THE MEMPHIS LIGHT,
GAS AND WATER DIVISION, OF THE CITY OF
MEMPHIS

By:

He Morris, . ./ President
a Chief Executdve Officer

102621.03

Page 2
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ESTIMATED INTEREST ADVANCE
AND PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Principal Interest Accrued Principal and Interest
Advance 6% ——Repayment

January 17, 2000 $5,300,000
March 1, 2005 $1,012,000 $1,500,000

March 1, 2006 $ 265,000 $4,677,000

In addition to the above investment, it is expected that MLGW will incur expenses less
than $100,000 per year that will be allocated to the Telecommunications Division.

JM 0003
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MLGW Telecommmnications Division
Financing for Memphis Networx

MLGW Telecommunications Division will be 53% owner of Memphis Networx, LLC
(MNet)-a competitive local exchange carrier (CLEC) serving the Memphis and Shelby
County areas-along with A&L Networks, LLC which holds 47% of the CLEC. Both
partners will contribute a total of $10 million in capital to the venture. MLGW’s share of
capital contribution will be approximately $5.3 million and A&L $4.7 million. The
remaining $105 million in project financing needed for this capital intensive business will
be secured as private debt. This debt will cost approximately 11% and be non-recourse in
nature. Memphis Networx plans to service this debt with the most aggressive payback
schedule it can afford as to not constrain the business in latter years. Dividend payments
from MNet will be available to the owners beginning in year five.

The loan from the MLGW Telecom Division (Electric Division) to Memphis Networx
will be in the amount of approximately $5.3 million dollars of paid in capital. In addition
to the 53% ownership, MLGW’s equity in MNet is senior to that of AZL in that A&L
will absorb any losses first. MLGW's request for the $5.3 million loan approval also
includes charges and fees of approximately $1.5 million for the year of pre-work and
business planning that have preceded this request. The loan request is for a 12-year term
at an interest rate that represents the highest rate eamed in MLGW’s portfolio

(approximately 6.0%). Graduated cash repayments will begin in year five and conclude
in year six,

Because of the capital intensive nature of the business, the plan defers distribution to
members until positive cash flow is achieved to avoid additional debt expense,
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" EXCERPT
from
MINUTES OF MEETING
of
BOARD OF LIGHT, GAS AND WATER COMMISSIONERS
CITY OF MEMPHIS
held
AUGUST 19, 1999
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The President submitted for approval of the Board authorization for a loan in ag amount not
to exceed $20 million from the alectric system to the Telecommunications Division, a subdivision
of the Electtic Division,

WHEREAS, the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division of the City of Memphis MLGW)
has completed its preliminary investigations into the feasibility of developing a telecommunications
oetwork through a telecommunications division of the electric division of MLGW (the
"Telecommunications Division") as authorized by the Board on March 4, 1999; and

WHERBAS, certain capital investments and certain expenditures will be required by the
Telecommunications Division; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Light, Gas and Water
Comunissioners, THAT:

1. The President and Chief Executive Officer is authorized, but not required, to execute
such documents and to take such further action as may be necessary to consummate a loan
in an amount 1ot to exceed $20 million from the Division’s electric system funds to the
Telecommunications Division for the initial development, construction and operation of a
telecommunications system and to provide the wdrking capital necessary to provide such

scrvices, upon receipt of all regulatory approval.

2, The inter-division loan authorized under Section ] of this resolution shall be made

in accordance with the requirements of T.C.A. § 7-52-402 and the requirements of the TVA

Wholesale Power Contract, and this authorization shall not create any further obligations or
. liabilities of the Division in favor of the Telecommunications Division,
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3. Any increase in the mox\xetary authorization above the amount specified in Section |
heteof is reserved to the Board, * .

4, Pending the receipt of all regulatory approvals, the President and Chief Executive

Officer shall be authorized, but not required, to make such expenditures as are prudent and

necessary in furtherance of the powers granted in Section 3 of this resolution. Upon the

receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, such expenses shall be reimbursed from the
* inter-division loan authorized under Section 1 of this resolution,

It was moved by Vice Chairman Guinri

Commissioner . Graves

, seconded by

A)

and unanimously carried:

THAT, Authority to loan an amount not to exceed $20 million from the electric system to
the Telecommunications Division, a subdivigion of the Electric Division is granted.

1 hereby certity that wha ftorsgoing & & true o W
a resclution adesgcted by th

Water f
neld
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF LOCAL FINANCE
SUITE 500 JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
$0S DEADERICK STREET
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0274
PHONE (615) 7414276
FAX (515) 532-9237

October 11, 1999

Mr. John McCullough

Secretary-Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division

PO Box 430

Memphis, Tennessee 38101-0430

Dear Mr. McCullough:

We have reviewed the information you submitted with your letter of September 30 concerning an
interdivisional loan in the amount of $20,000,000 from the Electric Division to the
Telecommunications Division, pursuant to Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 402. This statute provides
for such loans to be made for purposes authorized in Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 401, subject to the
advance approval by our office. Before we can consider approving this loan, however, there are
several items in this proposal that must be addressed.

First, the revolving line-of-credit document specifies that the applicable interest rate shall be
three (3) percentage points less than the prime-lending rate posted in the Wall Street Journal.
The statutes require the interest rate must be at least equal to the highest rate earned on invested
municipal electric plant funds. Documentation must be submitted to us which clearly indicates
compliance with the statutory provisions.

Second, for similar proposals submitted to our office, our policy has been to require that the
amortization provisions in these interdivisional loans correspond to the provisions of Title 9,
Chapter 21, Part 604, under which local governments may finance traditional capital projects
through interfund borrowing. This statute requires that the loan may not be outstanding for a
period of greater than nine (9) years and repayment must be pursuant to a level debt service plan
or a level principal repayment plan. If construction is involved, amortization may begin after
construction is final, but complete repayment must be made within the remainder of the nine (9)
year period after initiation of the loan. The amortization schedule included with this current
proposal does not correspond with our policy. This proposal indicates that periodic loans will be
made up to the $20,000,000 limit through the 2002 calendar year; however, principal repayments
will not commence until the year 2008, with the loan being completely repaid in 2010. Some

JM 0018
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John McCullough

October 8, 1999
Page 2

explanation must be provided to us which supports the necessity for the proposed amortization
plan and our deviation from the policy we have applied to other similar {oans.

Finally, Chapter 481 of the Public Acts of 1999 requires involvement by the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority prior to the execution of contracts or agreements with third parties for an
authorized project, Has approval been granted by the Authority? If not, we must require a
statement from your legal staff indicating that the project for which this interdivisional loan is
being requested is authorized by Chapter 481, Public Acts of 1999,

We look forward to hearing from you regarding these matters,

Sincerely,

Davxd H. Bowhng
Acting Director

JM 0017
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STATE OF TENNESSES
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DIVISION OF LOCAL FINWNCE
SUITE 300 JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
505 PEADERICK STRELT
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 272430174
PHONE (615) 741427

PAX (615) 8310237

October 11, 1999 |

Mr. John McCullough
Secretary-Treasurer & Chicf Financial Officer f
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division J
PO Box 430 |
Memphis, Tennessee 381010430

|
|
Dear Mr. McCullough. |
|

We have reviewed the information you submitted with yﬁur letter of September 30 conceming an
interdivisional loan in the amoumt of 520,000,000 from the Electric Division to the
Telecommunications Division, pursuant to Title 7, Chapiter 52, Part 402. This statute provides
for such loans to be made for purposes authorized in Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 401, subject to the
advance approval by our office. Befors we catt considerjapproving this loan, however, there are
several items in this proposal that must be addressed. |

First, the revolving line-of-credit document specifies that the applicable interest rate shall be
three (3) percentage points less than the prime-lending frats posted in the Wall Street Journal.
The statutes require the interest rate must be at least equal to the highest rate earned on invested
municipal electric plant funds. Documentstion must be submitted to us which clearly indicatas
compliance with the statutory provisions.
|

Second, for similar proposals submitted to our office, our policy hes been to requirc that the
amortization provisions in these interdivisional loans c¢rrespond to the provisions of Title 9,
Chapter 21, Part 604, under which local governments :ray finance traditiopal capital projects
through interfund borrowing. This statute requires that!the loan may not be outstanding for a
period of greater than nine (9) years and repayment must kbc pursuant to a level debt service plan
or a level principal repayment plan. If construction is jnvolved, amortization may begin after
construction is final, but complete repayment must be made within the remainder of the nine (9)
year period after initiation of the loan. The amortization schedule included with this current
proposal does not correspond with our policy. This proppsal indicates that periodic loans will be
made up to the $20,000,000 limit through the 2002 calendar year; however, principal repayments
will not commence until the year 2008, with the loan beirg completely repaid ln 2010. Some

JM 0013
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John McCullough
October 8, 1959
Page 2

explanation must be provided to us which supports the necessity for the proposed amortization
plan and our deviation from the policy we have applied ta other similar Joans.

Finally, Chapter 48] of the Public Acts of 1999 requires involvement by the Tennaessce
Regulatory Authority prior 10 the execution of oontract:Tor agreements with third parties for an
authorized project. Has approval been granwed by the Authority? If not, we must requirc a
statement from yYour legal staff indicating that the projest for which this interdivisional loan is
being recjuested is auttiorized by Chapter 481, Public Actq of 1999.

We look forward 1o hearing from you regarding these

Smu:rcl) .

Davad H. Bowlmg
Acting Director

JM D014
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l}kﬁ MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION

JOHN W. McCULLOUGH, P.E.

vice President, Finance
and Secretary-Treasurer

September 30, 1999

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

The Honorable David H. Bowling

Acting Director

State of Tennessee

Comptroller of the Treasury

Division of Local Finance

Suite 500 James K. Polk State Office Bldg.
505 Deadrick Street

Nashville TN 37243-0274

Dear Mr. Bowling: s

On August 19, 1999 the Board of Commissioners of the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division of the City
of Memphis adopted a Resolution authorizing a loan in an amount not to exceed Twenty Million Dollars
($20,000,000) from its Electric Division to its Teleccommunications Division, subject to the approval of your
office in accordance with the requirements of T.C.A. §7-52-402.

Under the authority of Section 3 of Chapter 481 of the Public Acts of 1999 and Title 7, Chapter 52, Part 4
of the Tennessee Code, these funds will be used (i) to acquire a fifty percent (50%) or greater interest in a
Tennessee limited liability company that will develop, construct, and operate a telecommunications system,
and (ii) to cover operating expenses that the Telecommunications Division may incur in connection with this
vetiture,

On behalf of the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division, we request your approval of this inter-division
loan. In support of this request, we have enclosed for your review:

1. Resolution authorizing an InterDivision Loan not to exceed $20,000,000 to the
Telecommunications Division;

2. The proposed form of the REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT NOTE;
3. A table reflecting the anticipated principal advance and principal repayment scheduls;
4. Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division 1998 Annual Report;

a. Unaudited Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division Balance Sheet dated June 30, 1999.

P.O. BOX 430 MEMPHIS, TENNESSEE 38101-0430 TELEPHONE (901) 528-4311  FAX (801) 528-4321
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Ltr. to Mr. Bowling
September 30, 1999
Page 2

Should you have any further questions or require further information, please feel free to contact me at (901)
528-4311.

Singerely,

r & Chief Financial Officer
IM:iew
Encls.
r
bowding] jiw
JM 0101
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EXCERPT
from
MINUTES OF MEETING
of
BOARD OF LIGHT, GAS AND WATER COMMISSIONERS
CITY OF MEMPHIS
held
AUGUST 19, 1999
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The President submitted for approval of the Board authorization for a loan in an amount not
to exceed $20 million from the electric system to the Telecommunications Division, a subdivision
of the Electric Division.

WHEREAS, the Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division of the City of Memphis (MLGW)
has completed its preliminary investigations into the feasibility of developing a telecommunications

4
network through a telecommunications division of the electric division of MLGW (the
"Telecommunications Division") as authorized by the Board on March 4, 1999; and

WHEREAS, certain capital investments and certain expenditures will be required by the
Telecommunications Division; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Light, Gas and Watet
Commissioners, THAT:

1. The President and Chief Executive Officer is authorized, but not required, to execute

such documents and to take such further action as may be necessary to consummate a loan

in an amount not to excéed $20 million from the Division’s electric system funds to the

Telecommunications Division for the initial development, construction and operation of a

telecommunications system and to provide the working capital necessary to provide such

services, upon receipt of all regulatory approval.

2. The inter-division loan authorized under Section 1 of this resolution shall be made

in accordance with the requirements of T.C.A. § 7-52-402 and the requircments of the TVA

Wholesale Power Contract, and this authorization shall not create any further obligations or
liabilities of the Division in favor of the Telecommunications Division.

JM 0103
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3. Any increase in the monetary authorization above the amount specified in Section |
hereof is reserved to the Board.

4. Pending the receipt of all regulatory approvals, the President and Chief Executive
Officer shall be authorized, but not required, to make such expenditures as are prudent and
necessary in furtherance of the powers granted in Section 3 of this resolution. Upon the
receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, such cxpenses shall be reimbursed from the
inter-division loan authorized under Section 1 of this resolution.

It was moved by Vice Chairman Guinn

Commissioner . Graves

and unanimously carried:

THAT, Autherity to loan an amount not to exceed $20 million from the slectric system to
the Telecommunications Division, a subdivision of the Electric Division is granted.

 J
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REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT NOTE

$20,000,000.00 Memphis, Tennessee
September 30, 1999

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, TELECOMMUNICATIONS DIVISION OF
THE ELECTRIC DIVISION OF THE MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION, OF
THE CITY OF MEMPHIS (hereinafter referred to as "Maker"), promises to pay to the order of THE
ELECTRIC DIVISION OF THE MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION, OF THE
CITY OF MEMPHIS (hereinafter referred to as "Payee”), the sum of Twenty Million and No/100
Dollars ($20,000,000.00), or so much thereof as shall be advanced from time to time by the Payee
to the Maker, together with interest as follows: The interest rate for each calendar month shall be the
monthly average of the prime lending rate posted by a majority of the nation’s largest banks that
appear daily in The Wall Street Journal less three (3) percentage points.

Interest on all advances outstanding shall be paid semi-annually with such payments being
due and payable on January 1 and July 1 each year,

J
On the maturity date, January 1, 2010 (the "Maturity Date") the entire outstanding principal
balance, together with all accrued and unpaid interest, shall be immediately due and payable in full,

Prior to the Maturity Date, Maker may borrow up to the principal amount of this Note and
repay (without premium or penalty) and re-borrow funds so long as the principal amount of the funds
disbursed hereunder at no time exceeds Twenty Million and No/100 Dollars ($20,000,000.00).

Time is of the essence of this Note. It is hereby expressly agreed that in the event that any
default be made in the payment of any part of interest or principal in accordance with the terms
hereof, or upon failure of Maker to keep and perform all the covenants, promises, agreements,
conditions and provisions of this Note, or any other instrument or document now or hereafter
evidencing, securing or otherwise relating to the indebtedness evidenced hereby; then, in any such
case, the entire unpaid principal sum evidenced by this Note, together with all accrued interest, shall,
at the option of the Payee, without notice, become due and payable forthwith, regardless of the
stipulated Maturity Date. Upon the occurrence of any default as set forth herein, at the option of
Payee and without notice to Maker, all accrued and unpaid interest, if any, shall be added to the
outstanding principal balance hereof, and the entire outstanding principal balance, as so adjusted,
shall bear interest thereafter until paid, regardless of whether or not there has been an acceleration
of the payment of principal as set forth herein. All such interest shall be paid at the time of and as
a condition precedent to the curing of any such default. Failure of Payee to exercise this right of
accelerating the maturity of the debt, or indulgence granted from time to time, shall in no event be
considered as a waiver of said right of acceleration or stop Payee from exercising said right.

JM 0105
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Note has been duly executed by Maker the day and year first
above written.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS DIVISION OF THE

ELECTRIC DIVISION OF THE MEMPHIS LIGHT,
GAS AND WATER DIVISION, OF THE CITY OF

v Ul

Md@dh e Officer
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UTILITY PLANT
Less Doprociation
Total Plant Net

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS (See Page 24)

NOTES RECEIVABLE-LONG TERM (Note A)

CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS
Cash and Investments-Construction Funds
Cash and Investments
Cash and Securities-Interest Funds
Accrued Interest Roceivablo
Acerts. Rec. (less allowance for doubtfu] acets.)
Matenials and Supplies
Propayments-Taxes
Other Currenit and Accrued Aasets
Qther Current and Accrucd Aszcts-TVA Purchased Power
Total Current and Accrued Assets

DEFERRED DEBITS
Unamortized Debt Discount, Premium & Expentes
Extension Notes Receivable
TVA Loans
Other Deferred Debits
Total Deferred Debits

TOTAL ASSETS

92 3ovd

June 30, 1999

ASSETS
June 1989 Decembear 1858

$911,238,573.48 $896.777.073.02
320,675,2456.73 311,801 427.15
560,861,328.13 584,085,548.47
73,040,735.79 37,837,552.22
1,208,110.75 1,268,110.75
0.00 0.00
53,051,438.17 62,103,598.10
247 T722.04 268,902.80
414,783.00 00,783.00
65,829,784.08 80,584,521.75
10.845,430.34 10,886,108.22
0.00 0.00
10,158,329.55 344,154 .03
27,846,199.00 24,511,800.00
1588,263,888.18 158,787,737.90
1,238,255.08 1,400,382.38
0.00 0.00

292074 .80 339,130.85

774,887.34 (25,822.44)
2,304,117.20 1,713,670.79
838,497 978.14 754,322 718.13
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MLGW Network Services {MNet)
Jodat Ownership Interest

For the Years 1999 Through 2008
Dty [ reed 2008 200) pL 1 2084 1888 26 ol 2008

MLGH Egwity Cantriistion 31%]
MGH Cvmer shap Imserv Casie Flow Spiin) 214
Coxtof Drbe 11
MLGH Hrerdle Rave 154
MLGH Drwdend 1o Citp of Memghia 1.
MLGW
Dividerals 3000 [] ] ¢ ¢ ) i s 14754 [11.214 prl ¥l
Equity Contribution 30005 4SJo0) 300 BXxa ] ¢ 0 [ [ [} 0
Payments o the City (dinidends above axsct tax) w00y ] [} 0 [ [] W @) ] W L 18]
Casgh Flow S0 £5.3001 {$,300) (5.3¢01 [] [] 3m 14,53 14164 17,901 b7 11373
Cash Flow Perspective

NPL of Cash Flows @ MLGW Hurdie Rate $00y 30426

Tateraal Rate of Return (basod om cark fivws) B3N
A&L Networks
Dividends S000's 0 [] [ o ] ThS 10,099 15488 16537 20346
Bquity Comtribution 3000s [k H (4.30h o0y ] 0 ] ] [] 0 L]
Cash Flow 3000 2k ] [Ch ] 14.200} J L} 1416 10.099 15084 16537 PR Y7
Cash Flow Perspective

NPVof Cash Flows @ 25% sI1m

NPV of Cash Flows (@ 20% 3360

NPV of Cask Flaws (@ 25% 0027

Infornaf Rate of Retarn bared om caxk fTews) 4%
Chy
Ad Valorem Texes for City of Manplus @32.77% SO0y [k 473 1100 1353 1] 1360 1130 1,9 ur Los9
City of Memphis Frandhisc Fec $ootrs . ii 0 t&s1 238 29% 1438 4004 432 S4%0
Dividend 10 Crty of Memphus $000s . - . . . nm 456 wo 244 e
Tots! Cash Flow Sooby (k- 4 o1 2100 3008 p k0t ] 4836 5aM sa60 L] 147
Cash Flow Perapective

FV of Caste Flows ever 30 Years 000s 213,771

FV' of Cazk Flows in Perpetiity Kors G428
Connty
Ad Valonem Taees @ 3.55% of Physical Asaets 2000y -0 e L5 (A1) L% 1L L& L 1400 13
Other Mumicpalitien
City of Bastlett @ | 25% of Net Plant Amcts 000y L] m 389 L1 ) [<}] 323 £ ™ P
City of Gemnantown ) 1 45% of Nct Pisnt Assets $00C's 23 253 &7 n® 70 T2 w5 .2 51 [75)
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MLGW Network Services ([VMNet)
Statement of Cash Flow
For the Years 1999 Through 2008

Caits 1999 1800 ] 002 1008 2004 1008 1006 007 2083
Cash flow from operating activices
Net income. $000's (908)  (€315) (6353 397 11,775 20,186 28,649 3L 46513 81120
Depreciation 3000's 353 2,591 4,100 6,566 7853 8684 9426 10.081 10,551 11,062
Cash flow from operations $000's (850 2113) (2,653} 6,962 19,628 18,369 38075 47,198 57,510 55,783
LCash flow from Investing activitics
Capital expenditures $000s {12,057  (21,063)  (S1,695] (16,751 (9.240) (1,605 (7457) (5.836) (4,738) (3,356)
Decr. (incr.) in working capital 1000 (1.234) (s45) (1,672 167N (1.708) (1,500} (L3sm {1301} (L3 (1,35
Decr. (incr.) in marketable securities 5000 (,159) (659) 1020 3314 L320 7s 2266 2229y (1.218) (785)
Cask flow from investing S00M:  (14430)  QZITH  (5AMT) (21%2) (628 2,730} (6509) (93603  (7315)  (SA)
Total ¢ash flow from opersting and investing $000's  (15008) (250080  (35,000) (15,000) 10,000 0,138 3437 37,838 LI €290
Cash flow from finxach tivi
Increase (decrease) in debt $000's 5,000 15,000 45,000 15000 {10,000) {5,000 (10000) (10,000  (I5000)  (20,000)
Cash fiow from aon-equity financing $000's 5,080 15,000 45,900 13,008 {10,008} {5000) (10080) (100805  (I15008) (20,000
Common cquity financing 0o 10,000 EO000 19,000 - - . . . .
Dividend payout $000's ° ] 0 0 0 (15,0135 QLT (278338)  Qs185)  (*3.290)
(assumes all excess cash paid out as dividend)
Total cask flow from fimanciag S000s 15,908 25,008 55,000 15000 {10,080y 20,139 OLET)  B7535)  (MIIS)  (83,.290)
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ABOUT MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION
Founded in 1939, MLGW sorves Mcm.rz.rd.s and Shell 5 Coun.ia,
Tonn. and is the largest three-service munieipal whility system
inthe nation. Owr P-mi-&[t.n’l: and five-m.:mccr board a{:

commissionsrs are appointed by the ciby mapor. The Tennessee
Valley Authority &u.f;t:.[ie.s electricity to MLGW. Nabural g s
'Era..n_iror'(:ea[ thro ..6[‘, bo open accoss Pif:.e&n.e companics:
Texas Gas Transmission Corporation and Trunkline Gas
Company. MIGW owns and operates one of the IK.FA
artesian water ssbems in the world,

rd of Commissioners s of December 31, 1998
L Jawaes Netbers, Chairmain

R.Jalenak, Vice Chatrman

u‘wr William Graves

franketta Guinn

Olin Morris

r

Executive Officers s of December 31, 1998

Herwan Morris Jr

Presidant and CEO

Kenmneth O, Cole
Vice President. Cisbones Service and Muk:ﬁns

Curtis Dillthuunt
Vice President. Human Resonrces

Vice President, nance an&[.s::rt.ﬁura/ Trecsurer

Kaneth, ), O[L
Yice Prastdont. E.\s{m.-'ms

Wade Stisan
Vice Pegsidant, Construstion amd Maintrnance

Larry Tho
""a m-r*on
Senior Vice Peesident. O’nﬂ.ﬁmu

A{O H1S Wwe"

V:cc phr.sh[e-uk. ormﬁau

. Ml‘-guo([ Willtawy

Geoneral Counael
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Ofle;rrd:iom( eaccc[[cngé -

Throughout the company, in all three di\'isiéi;s the chaﬂé;ngc of

achieving opcra.nonal excelience_xs put. to the test every day at

AN w emmy

MLGW. Whethen:lt’s : response o thc exUQnufwcama oL
proactively seeKing innovative improvements, our employees are
commitied to providing outstanding customer service in all that they
do. This service is provided in such a way that it leaves no room for
doubt or debate regarding MLGW’s unequalled dedication to its

customers.

Records were shattered during the 1998 heat wave when electric
and water demands peaked on July 7. With 3 high temperature of 101
degrees, MLGW?s all-time high electric demand reached 3,160
megawatts, and water demand reached an all-Gme daily pumpage high

of 231 million gallons, with a system demand of 325 million gallons a

day.
?’ e

As the relentless heat drove consumpton to
record highs, MLGW responded by strengthening
1ts rehab1hty A temporary substation was buijt i 1n just two short
weeks, increasing capacity to the Bartlett area. And a new $4.1 million
substation came on-line in Collierville, the fastest growing city in
Tennessee. Work was also completed in late 1998 on a third substa-

tion, set to serve the Pidgeon Industrial Park.

Managing the company’s electric, gas and water systems is a new,
$1.76 million Supervisory Control Data Acquisition (SCADA) systemn
which was installed in 1998. In an unprecedented move, MLGW
joined four other utlites in purchasing the system, saving $1 million

on equipment and an additional $250,000 in software updates.

A
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B the SCADA upgrade, 2 massive three-year Computer

% completed this vear on the Customer Information

' unit which manages the heart of the uﬂ?ity’s daily opera-

.“'r“' ing billi t : . .j
P ey Sciostmentyand many other
critical functiops. -, T A

- N
. L : B
o~ . . - i

v ..,_.j - ki

In the water division, customer growth in eastern ShE!Ef'”édur.m’ led

to the expansion of our Patricia Walker Shaw Witer Pumping Statio
n,

doubling the water treatment capacity from 15 million gallons a day ¢
ay to




83/88/2000 16:31

915284991

PAGE 34
MLGW

Project funded n part through 3 grant from the Federy Emergency
Ma.nagemcnt Agency, an €mergency §enerator wyy installed y the

Davis Wiager Pumping Station, €nsuring electricity in the even( of

Such continuoys improvcment 15 the philosophy: behingd the Best
Practices Program, a joint T3nagement-union Initiagve that ENCoOUrages
¢mployee inpyt o how to 4o their jobs better, Through employee.
driven programs sych a5 this, we are further developing # culture thye
Is sensitive to the changing needs of oy customers and e challenges

which are before ys.

of the Company. Ope €XCIting result of this strategy will be seen in
1999 when MLGwy energy Solutiong 4 NEW energy services
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As a testament to MLGW’s long-term strategic and financial planning
efforts, the utility eamed two of the business world’s most coveted
financial ratings this year, becoming the only uglity in the nation to hold
a AAA rating fror Standard and Poor’s. And on the heels of this

announcement came an Aal rating from Moody’s Investors Service.

These upgraded ratings were applied to MLGW’s water revenue
bonds, which allowed the company to refinance some $12 million in \
bonds at a much lower rate, generating more than $1 million in savings. }
As of year-end 1998, MILGW'’s water division has reduced its long-term
debt by nearly $24 million in the past five years, and reduced its
Moody’s debt ratio from 37.3 percent to 20.2 percent.

‘With the news of these ratings, MLGW President and CEO Herman
Morris Jr. pledged to continue efforts with renewed vigor in the utilicy’s
other two divisions, and added that the radwe especially noteworthy
since they were earned while offering customers some of the
lowest rates in the nation.

However, the utility’s excellent financial perfortnance was not limited ad
to the water division. Thanks to a strategy of prudent management and
aggressive cost-containment measures, MLGW arnounced to custormners
in October 1998 that we will extend our rate freeze for another five
years, pledging stable costs in all three services. In fact, many large \
commmercial and industrial customers will recejve a gas rate decrease
beginning in January 1999, ranging from 8.7 percent to 28 percent for
certai’} classifications. The rate reduction will save area businesses more

than $4.8 million annually.

For years, MLGW customers have enjoyed some of the lowest com-

bined utlity costs in the nation, and a 1998 survey of electric, gas, water
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Whether on Beale Street o J..w;.t(g
thie Sunset Symprhony. Memphians
kinow how to celebrate. MLGW [1cs o
(ot to celebrate as well. F;nmc;a(ta,

we a..‘ 'S‘E?ongr‘ '!:Ll.ﬂ.l‘l. ever, {:[L;..‘ F)e&l’
r:ccging{:wo o{:{:{te world's l\i(gftcsf

-

. {-‘Ln.ancia.[ ra.{:inss .
i
4

%y



PAGE 37
#3/88/2080 16:31 5815284991 MLGW

and wastewater rates in America's largest cities proved this (o be true
once again. This distinction received nationa) attention this summer,
when Money Magazine acknowledged Memphis as having the lowest

utility costs of 18 comparable Southern cites.

In addition to passing cost savings along to our customers dirough
low rates, MLGW presented a 1999 operations and maintenance
budget which was $1.8 million Jess than 1998’s spending plan. What's
more, ideas and input from employees have helped strengthen this
across-the-board cost-containment strategy. “lruly, MLGW cmiplovees
are leading the way in finding more innovative and efficient witvs of

putung their hometown energy to work for our CUSLOMeErs,

For instance, through the manager-level Innovator Cluly program,

projects representing more than $3.02 million in quantifiable savings
Wwere proposed and accepted.this vear. And projects recommended by
Quality Circles, teams of front-tine management and bargaining unit

) emplovees, will generate more than $1.4 million in savings. Since this
program was implemented at MLGW saime 20 VEars ago,
employee-generated ideas have saved the company
and our custorners more than $24 million.

? Managing costs and finding more efficient ways of doing business
are fundarmenta) components of our financial strategy. But we 're not
stopping here. We're also ENgaging in opportunities 1 increase nope
traditional revenue - income generated from sources other than the
delivery of electric, gas and water senices. For instance, in 1998, more

. S . S than $1.6 million was earned by leasing space on our transmission

e e towers to cellular telephone and fiber optic service providers.
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Co m.m.uni:[:a. ‘ nve:.s{:m&n{:_s
The means by which we invest i our communigy
are s civerse as those we serve. It begins with our
caiployee base, as itis essenual that we be the
people we serve, We want 1o ook like the custom-
ers we serve, so that we can think like the commu-
niey we serve, and knosy the people we serve. And
how better to know their needs than when they are

our necedsy Ir just makes good business sense.

I keeping with this, our Supplier Diversity
- Progrant is a bottom-line business strategy inte-
grated throughout the organization. We exaumine Our procurement
heeds, explore the availability of minority-, women- and locally~owned
suppliers and work on a project-by-project basis o meet our supplier
diversity goals. In 1998, more than $20 million in goods, services and

contracts were purchased or retained through this program.

Through owr relationship with the Memphis Area Chamber of Cony-
merce, MLGW congibutes some $500,000 4 vear to local economic
developrient efforts. And as a result of this 30-vear partnership, in 1998

we saw nearly $1.4 billion in economic growth in our local economy.

In addition to these business strategies, our support for the community

1s demanstated through contributions in numerous other areas, as well.
For instance, MLGW employees lead the Mid-South region in per
person qfts to the United Way, and in 1998, their generous support

totaled more than $578,000.

Whether it be rehabilitating the homes of elderly, disabled, and low-
inconie customers, organizing food drives for the hungry, or cultivating a
lifelong interest in learning among inner-city school children - or any

one of the many other projects supported by MLGVY volunteers -

PAGE 38
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our emplovees lend their-hands 1o

@ECe lives in our CONIMUNItY.

Other initiatives include hosting imovative seminars for neighborhood
and religious leaders to help them sharpen their Jeadership skills and

berer equip them to serve their constituents.

Our relationship with those we Serve was Mrmu.,rlhcnq(l n 1948 witl
the formation of the 24-member Communin- Advisory Coumgeil. Repre-
senting educationa), business, ethnic, communiy, financial and milit
organizations, this coalition helps facilitate commmication bemween
MLGW and the community, and provides on- jomg guidance as we

address the growing needs of our very diverse customer base.
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Fw(:urc eezilacfuﬁpns

The next few years will bring dra,su'c changes within our industry, and at
MLGW, we’re working to mﬂuence the course of t}us change for the benefit oii‘ - e
our customers. For instance, \‘:e ri acﬁ\:;;iy 1:\?01\;:::1 in dcr»;;?auo‘:?egxilanon o ) .. ‘ | Faa
on the state and national levels. And N Our Ongoing ¢ontract negotiations with
the Tennessee Valley Authority, we're seeking greater flexibility so that we can

purchase a portion of our electric power from others if we choose.

We’re also expanding both within and beyond our u‘fadilioml;terdtor_v. In
1998, we entered an agreement to provide construédon'and maintenance
services for the water system of Piperton, Tenn., located in Fayette County,
and continued negotiations to purchase the Shelby ..Eo{mty Board of Public

Ugdlides.

Internally, we continue our work to ensure that all of MLGW’s processes
truly demonstrate our philosophy of hometown energy and world class excel-
lence. We've examined our call centegoperations, for instance, and
have added new technology, improved techruques and
adjusted sta.fﬁng to better serve our customers. When complete,
these improvements will increase our call-handling ability by more than

200 percent.

In short, MLGW is firmly committed to being the utility that sets
the standard by which all others are compared. Through our marure
strategic planning process and our daily commitment to customer
satisfaction, we constanty explote opportunities to IMPprove our services,

offer new products, and ways to better serve the communiry.

By remaining steadfast to this mission, we are confident of a smooth
transitzon into the new rnillennium and our ability to be a strong com-
pettor in a deregulated electric utility market. Taking full advantage of
all of the resources and capitalizing on our assets is how we will continue

providing “Hometown Energy . . . World Class Service.”
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Financial Highliofis

ELECTRIC DIVISION

Operations
Sah (thousand kilowatt hown)

MLGW

PAGE 43

Maximum system demand (ilowatt hourly use}
MNumber of customers

Average annual usage per residential custamer

(thousand kilowatt hours)

Finandials
Total revenyss

Purchased power

Net revenves...

Pant in service (at cost)

Long-term debt

1998

13,837,627
3,120,415
398,270

15.86

§ 849,124,651
$ 645,486,688
$ 51,907,629
$ 896,772,074
$ 158,970,000

159

12,781,240
2,996,245
395,807

14.25

3 747,167.9%0
§ 554,660,014
3 46541647
$ 860,838,619
$ 179,095,000

GAS DIVISION

1998 1997

Operaninig

Saley (theusand cubic feet) 37,493,925 39,984,080

Maximum system’ demand (thousand cubie feet daily) 495,010 83N

Number of customers 298,454 191,78

Average annual usage per residential customer

(thousand cubic feet) 69.27 11.54

Finangials -

Totdl revenues $ 203,352,149 § 232,458,617

Purchased gas $ 116,958,347 § 145,562,708

Net revenues $ . 27,805,072 $ 154334

Plant in service (a1 cost) ¥ 388,363,790 § 366,295 814

Long-term dabt $ - 50—
WATER DIVISION 1998 1997
Operations

Sales (hundred cubic feet) 62,650,707 §9.097,748

Haximum system demand (mikion gallons daily hourly rate) oo 322.2 113

Humber of customens . 222,794 19,249

Mverape annual wage per residential customer .

{hundred cubic feet - 138.64 9.6

Finandial :

Total revenues $ 62,813,378 3 58390138

Net revenues. §$ 14,102,301 $ 14436502

Plant in service (3t oost) $ 280,278,255 $ 269,484,304

Long-tem debt $ 59,448,374 $ 64,685,000

(REDIT RATING

Water Revenve Bonds .

Moody's
investors Services *
1998 1997

Aa A
Aal h

IR I ST TN

findard B ".~._
ik

Cérporition] -
998, 1. 9-
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& Percentage of each utility dolfar

CommerqaL"M 3
Residential 40.6
Indyistrial 8.4

pher/6.7
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL INFORMATION
| ‘ 1998 1991 199 1993 1988
Power Use-mwh )] ‘ .
Residential 3,380,910 4726458 1,864,617 4589977 4,155,643
Commercial-General Service 6,406,677 5,948 588 §.476.291 5,180,007 4,508,282
Industrial 1,775,599 1,839,864 1,734,028 -1,647.841 1620425
Other customers o, ... . - 274,44] 276353 ___265.504 9428 44480
Tetal . 13,837,627 12,791 240 2,540,442 ! IJH‘ZO. ) 10,528 839
System demand-kw maximum hoarly use...oure_ '3. 120,415 2,996,249 1942.13] 2,198,634 248825
Numbar of Cﬁstomars .
Residential - 340,618 33414 M 320,431 302,083
Commertial-General Service .. 40,820 40017 39,250 Jedn2 33209
Industrig) 154 ] 173 187 02
Other - 18,678 16495 16,20 15,240 13,708
 Total 398,270 390,307 38459 o4 © 348,282
Revenues )
Residential $344,621,240 $291,112,649 $295.855,033 $277.189 446 $242.47 93¢
Commerdal-General Saryice 376,263,549 334181083 -325.895,678 199,843 542 152,144 88)
. Industrial 71,154,540 86,313,386 64,400,504 87,935,108 14044237
Other 57,085,322 55,560,902 56898232 46,109,360 30,448 047
Total 849,124 651 T47,167,990 743,049,547 §91,396,59¢ 604,087,106
Expenses - .
Elettric power cast ... 645,484,688 $$4,660,074 556,292,811 520,227 483 477,156,842
Other operating expenses 98,721,807 94,081,537 94814276 91,280,758 $7,198.022
Total o rating expense; 744,208,495 648.741,6!] 651,207,087 612,508.241 544,954,864
Payments in lieu of taxes 20,184,361 19,550,968 21,614,999 20,015,508 14531 410
Depreciation and amonization 22,891,501 22,200,845 " 21,150,885 19,425,884 14701,15¢
Interest 9,932,665 11,058,006 12,139,569 15,780,245 14,692,134
- _!___; 1 r 3 1 ] + y )
Total 797,24 7,022 TOLSSESi4 706,712,54) 667.72!!7_! 588,879,564
Net Revenues
Net revenues before extraordinary item ... 51,907,629 45,616,476 34,331,008 1686718 15,207,542
Extraordinary loss) (2) — — — {1.962.891) —

Reinvested in system, bond rerirement

or 1o working capinal during year.... .

+
Other Finaneial Statistics

'$ 51,907,629

3 45616476

¥ 38,337,006

— T,

———

§ 15,703,826

$ 15,207 542

—_—

—

Plant in service (at cost) $896,777,074 $860,834.419 $832,679,714 $750,587,348 $590.748,562

Bonds gutstanding - $158,970,000 5179,095,000 $438,145,000 $248,150,000 $20%.880,000

Bond anticipation notes -_— ~ — —_ —
Crudit Rating .

Moody’ Investors Sarvices —_ _ Aa A Aa

Standard and Poor’s Corporation rtr st e AA M A

Construction During 1998

From renewal and replacemeat fund ooy
From curvent year net revenyes sttt oo

Tota) construction

5 16,040,017
26,372, 484

I. Mweh equals thousand kilowart hours

§ 42413,501

-2 1n 1993 the Division ixsuad bonds to refund portions of existing bongs,

The refunding resulted in an extraordi
however, this loss wil be offser by reduced

hary loss recogrized in 1993:

future ineerest cost.
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Bonds outstanding

Credit Rating
Moody' Investors Service
Standard and Poor's Corporation s evets e e et

Construction During 1998 :
From renewal and replacement fund ettt e
From current year mt revemees
Total construction

1. Thousand” cubic feer @@ 14.73 piia
L. Includes varied off-peak sales to elecric genenating smation,
3. Does not include plant held for futore uge. :

$ 22,739,717

1,519,759

$ 24,269,476
—_—

9915284991 MLGW
‘ L 2 &
qa.s Division
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL INFORMATION
1998 1997 1996 1993 | 988
Gas Use-mef (). -

Residential 19,044,)2% 20,454,795 22,975,071 11499438 19,502 866
Commercial-General Service C 1LT98,008 13,314,124 14385114 10,692,442 16,868,099
Industral 3,375,317 - 3514948 4081727 1,798,245 4,625,883
Other customers {2) 3,276,475 1,509,211 3642560 © 00240 8.098.433

.Told ] 37,493,915 39.934.0}_0 45 084,40 42,009,90§ 43‘49?.25I
System demand-mef waximum daity we .. 495,010 37 521,930 454,070 436356

Number of Customers :

Residential 177,074 271851 267,138 155,194 231,358
(ommercial-General Service 21,230 10,765 20346 19464 inme
Industria) 69 14 Bi 106 i1
Oeher 84 8 51 6 4

Tonal 298!454 292152 28?.6!_6 274,830 265,237

Revenues : -

Residential '$105,542,70¢6 $I2.073214 SBMN.I” $100.482,045 $ 85,846,300
Commeraal-General Service 56,578,430 §1,700942 71,499,131 46,624,141 44131293
Industrial 31,385,977 29,758,812 34336282 38233618 38814602
Other 9,845,056 13116899 13,703,085 8,404 43¢ 11,800 460

Total ... 203,352,”9 132,658,617 . 251,032.737 194.014,240 180,595,455

'Exptnses

Natural gy cont 116,958,347 8xtios 543 120,989,891 123,768,461
Other operating o1penses —— 47.780,466 42,658,100 43 245, 158 39,7857 31.621.209

Total operating expamys .. l64,73_8,8|3 188,220,608 194,699,026 160.725,118 152,395,870
Payments in fiev of taves 2,001,238 2.001,238 2,000,238 2.001,237 2,010,238
Depreciation, depleticn and amortization R, 8,792,414 6,959,168 6,459,185 5,888,393 6,181,452
Interest ...... 14,632 38,839 14411 345,930 1,077,330

otal..oo..... | 75,547,097 197 220,053 203,234,726 189,030,678 (66,664,887

Net Revenues . . . .

Net revenyg . 17,805,072 35,438,624 47,793,001 14,993,562 13,930,768
Used to pay diridends to ity of Memphis or _ '

reimvested in System and working apital..... e 3 27,805,0Mm $ 35438604 3 47,199,001 s 24.99@ i 13,930,768

Other Financial Statistics . '

Plant in servia (at cosl) (3) - 5388,363,790 $366,295 814 $343.703.929 $ 264,677,854 3184473049

3 8875000
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Water Division
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: Pereemtage of each utlhty dollar '

W[u';r’e {:Ll.e oue C,ocs

Percentage of each utility doflar

BT T

Opemtions 36.8

Capital Additions 26.5

Production 5.9

Debt Service & Related Expenses 143
Maintenance §.7

Available for Additions § Replacements .8
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16:31 9915284991 MLGW
* * -
WG.":C.Y‘ DL‘V 18100
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL INFORMATION
1998 1997 1996 1993
Water Use-cef (1)
Aesidential : 27,515,795 25,341,003 %2833 15.154.407
Commercial-General $ervica ..., 29,965,102 18,942,059 29,884 498 29.054,85¢
Free water, metered ) 1,553,892 1,984,318 1,558,641 1.649.032
Other customers 3,615,918 1,830,368 __13n3e L 4esim _
Total 62,650,707 _ 58091748 __60.071.867 oedsig T
Pumpage to City-mgd (3) - - e T —
maximum hourly rate 3222 m.} 2571 195.0
_ — et = P e ==
Number of Customers
Residential 199,201 196,124 193852 191,544
Commercial-General Service 19,311 18871 18,607 18.230
Other 4,282 e n LLm
Total 222,794 219,269 T T
Revenues
Restdential ...., $ 27,370,127 3 24993711 $ 15917391 § 21442.845 A TS
Commercial-General Service 22,043,484 21,069,350 21,459,648 17,983 899 1,
Other - 13,399,767 12,334,674 11,846,485 . 8531360 &
Tetal, R 62,813,378 38.397.13§ _ 58213544 L 47.964.104 3
Expenses
Production 9,978,846 8,857,833 5178538 8.119.059 82
Ocher operating expenses . 26,725,580 . 2531938 . 13,032,045 19,756,432 IR
Total operating expenses 36,704,426 ' 3379768 37110584 21875 49 R
Depreciation and amertization ... . 6,404,917 5826238 5,346,001 5,066,960 3.4
IRETRSt e 3,601,734 3.945.217 _. 4217838 .. 5.544968 3
Totat 46,711,077 43761213 _ima _laelay hE
Net Revenues -
Net revenies before extraordinary item ... . 16,102,301 14,636,512 12,449,121 9,476,688 5.9
, Extraordinary (loss) (4)........_ —_ — — (3.166,283)
Minvested in systm, bond retivement | ————— T ___ - T ’
or to working capital during year.._.. - § 16,102,304 § 148385012 1 17.449,121 §_s3l04n § 5%
Other Finuncial Statistics
Plant in service (at cosy) - $280,278,25% $269.484 304 $256.413,75¢ 312778121 $180,3¢
Bonds outstanding ... 5 59448374 § 64,685,000 § 69,925,000 $ 83,140,000 § 71,68
Bond antitipation notes — — —_ — $ 20,00
Credit Rating
Hoody’s Investors Service Aal A Aa Aa
Standard and Poor's Corporation ... . AAA A M Ll
Construction During 1998
From renewal and replacement fund ... $ 16,657,670
Total construction § 16,657,670
=_

{. Hundred cubic feet.

2. Does not include unmetered free wager provided for firefighting, stroes sprinkling, ere,

3. Mpd equals million galions daily,

410 1993 the Division issued bands 1o refung portiots of the existing bonds, The refunding
resulled in an extraordinary log recogtized in the current year; hawever, this loss will be

Offet by redured future interest costs.
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Ba.(a.nac Sru:fe:ts
DECEHBE; 11, 1998 AND 1997 (IN THOUSANDS) .
Assetls
-
€lectric Division Gas Division Weater Division
1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 1w
Utility Plant, at cost (Notes | and 2).oen_. ~ $B96,7T7 860834 $391,534 349466 $280,278 5163484
Less acumulated depreciation and amortiation . 311,891 294,847 126,998 118,139 90,224 89,345
Utility plant - net 584,886 565,989 264,534 251307 190,054 180,139
Restricted Funds (Notes 1, 3, 5, 6..7 and 1)
Construction 1,001 1,088 3,040 15.306 t4,131 11,084
Insararce reserves - injuries and damages ... 3,842 4261 1,508 i - 1,203 634
Insurance reserves - casuaities and Brerl . 10,244 9,785 6,796 8213 4,272 4.071
Mediaal benefit : - — 10,567 1528 —_ —
Customer cammon depasits i —~— — 14,544 15121 —_— —
Bond reserve and debt service ot ettt 1ovenen 22,550 23553 —_— — 9.019 9.612
Toual restricted fynds 37,637 38,687 36,477 47,408 28,625 15413
Current Assets )
CGish and cash equivaients (Notes | and 3)....... e 62,368 18434 78,008 51,036 34,808 28,138
Accounts receivabie, ints allowance for doubthul acouns 60,584 55,407 24,388 11,880 13,119 11476
Deferred purchased powsr and gas cost (Note 1)...... 24,512 25,738 8,208 1,89 —_ —_
. Materials and supplies - ot average cost.—_.___ 10,886 11,080 6,588 4.807 1,344 1536
Misceltaneous 435 956 283 i — 4
Total current asan 158,785 Iﬁl.dl'r' 117,475 103,890 49,291 44,201
Other Assets
Deferred charges — —_ 2,329 2495 - —
Unamortized debt expense (Notes | and ) F— 1,400 1,85 —-— — 1,137 1089
Notes recervabia i,298 1,298 — 1.954 2,015 2018
Notes recetvable from customers -
energy comervation Jaans (see contra-TW) ..., 339 533 - — —_ —
Hiscellansous {35) 149 — — — —
Total sther auet 3,012 1765 2,329 4459 3,152 3,081
TOTAL ASSETS ' $784.320 '3750.0%0 $420,817 $407,081 $271,122 $259,840

-
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Balance Sheels

DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997 (1N THOUSANDS)

C“":u'.{:u[{.z. ation and Lia.Li[!'.":‘Las

-uLO . .
€leatvic Division Gas Division Weter Divisi
- 1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 E
Capitalization ) :
Long-term debt (Note &) $158,970 3179098 s —_ 5 $ 59,448 5
Accamuated wet revenues (Kote 10) ... 546,725 494021 357,33 331,925 199693 g
Yol capitakzation , , 705,695 673,918 357,330 331.92% 159,141 248
Current Liabilities <
Accourts payable - purchased power and B s 43.B66 . 44,066 15,701 13,20 —_
Other accaunts payable, accrued expenses, and deferrals 20,212 20,000 13,587 051 $.424 0.
Tl Ut Habbbis oo 64,078 4,084 34,288 @7 ©o9424
Other Liabilities - w
Customer advances for construction et eese 4,075 307 302 36 9
Customer common depesits ... . —_— — 14,566 15,217 —_ -
Insurance reserves - injuries and damages . .
(Motes 1,7 and 11) 3,842 4261 . 1,508 (4 1,203 6
Hedical benefit acerual . —_ —— 10,567 1.5 — -
Payable to TVA - energy conservation joans :
(see contra-customer motes) .. 1,272 1,510 _ — -_— -
Miscellaneous 5,358 1008 2,256 1,258 1,345 I
Total other liabilities S 14,547 12076 29,199 15,440 2,557 1,3¢
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES __. $784,320 $750,058 $420,187 $402,081 $271,122 $259,84:
1

See notes to fimancial statements,
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Statements of Cash flows
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997 (IN THOUSANDS)
L ]
€lectric Division 'Ga_s Division Weater Division
1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 197
Cash Flows from Operating Activities - .
Net operating revenues , . $ 34,857  $3247 $ 19437 14 $ 14,568 514084
Adjstments to reconcile net operating revenues 1o
net cash provided by operating actvities .
Depreciation of utity plantouweroe— ... 22,891 12,201 8,793 6,959 6,405 5.828
Transmission credits 19,121 18,544 —_ — —_ —
Other income 1,149 798 1,961 1,534 650 168
{Incredse) decrease in assets
. Defarred compensation -_— 16,346 — — - -
Sceoumtyoreceivable : . 077y (1814 7,492 §3% (1,643) 565
Deferred purchased power and gas cost .ovoveens - 1,226 (8.448) 5,488 454 san —
Materials and suppRes 194 587 119 (600) 172 in
Miscellneous asses 695 - I 154 U7 54 8%
Increase (decrease) in liabities -
Aczounts payable - purchased power and gas ... (100) {6.692) (7,504) 3.42¢) - —
Other accounts payable and a¢eryed expemses ... 212 00 (1,924) (398) (738) 2
Customer advances for construction ... ___..... - 778 1,012 (14) 18 — —
Customer deposits - -— —_ {461) {170) — -
nsurance. reserves r 419) 185 394 ] 569 {154)
Deferred compensation —_ (16,546) —_— — — —
Medical benefit accrval — . — 3042 1,599 — —
Payable 10 TYA net of notes receivable -
energy conservation kans _____.................. . (44) {8 -_ — — —
Misceltaneous liabilities 1,350 (36) 998 ) 589 (3%
Total adjustments 42,776 16,750 18,638 6,933 6,058 6N
Net cush provided by operating actvities ____ 77,633 51,987 38,075 34,820 20,626 10881 °
Cash Flows from Investing Activities . g
Payments received on notes receivable .o § - § M $ 1,964 5 1400 S 3 I —
Purchase and comstruction of utilty plant.............. - (41,788)  (8.356) (22,002)  (5.261) (16320)  (1433))
Intarest earned 0n iMvestmNES ... X 5,046 6,419 6,056 4,484 4330
Purchase of restriced investments ................ — —_ {19.983) - (11.493) —_ {4.999)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of
resmricted investments 10,051 15,924 23,658 8,857 4,999 5118
Increase in netes receivable -— — —_— —_ — (2.018)
Net cash used in (provided by) investing
activitis . (25.249) (36045 10,039 (037} (6,834}  (11902)




PAGE 53
83/08/2008 16:31 9815284991 MLGW

Statements oF CM[\, F[o ws

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997 (X THOUSANDS)

I ) e[m'b'i.c Division Gas Division Weter Divig
l ' 1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 r

Cash Flows ﬁm Capital and
Related Financing Activities _ .
Proceeds for issuance of bonds ... $ S S $ - 3

- Increase in onamortized gebr DNt e — — -_— -~ {230)
Principal payments on long-temm debt ... - (20,125)  (19.050) - — (17.813)
Dividands paid to Gy of Hemphis S — — (8,397) (8397) —_
Interest expense on other debt... ... s —unms 3l) {82) {19s) (19) - (9
Interest axpense on bonds (9,517)  (i0s3) — —~ @4y ¢
Net cash used in financing actvities_____ (29.673)  (v4s9) 8412)  @ay (8.908) s
Increase (Decrease) in Cash ' '
and Cash Equivalents 227101 {1.718) 39,702 6,014 4,884
Cash and Cash Equivalents, )
Baginning of Year ‘ 67,140 T4 y 74,783 6406 58,549 38
Cash and Caxh Eqﬂﬂents, End of Year_._........ § 89,851 367,140 314,488 $ 74,783 $ 63,431 358
mpe———— porar—— . — — e} _
Reconciliation of Cash ang
Cash.Equivalents Per Statements of
Cash Flows to the Balance Sheets ’
Restricted funds $ 17,637 $ 18,407 $ 35,477 3 47405 $ 28,625 335
tess noncash equivalents indudsd in nsthicted funds ... 10,154 19,983 -— 13,658 . - _A5
Total 27,483 18,704 36,477 13,14 28,625 304
Current Assets - Cash and .
Cath Equivalents __. .. _ 62,368 48434 78,008 51.036 34,808 28.}1
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... _ $ 89,85) AL §$1i4,485 74,782 $ 63,433 §sas

St¢ notes to financial statements,
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Sfafcmn{:s o-F N c{ Rcvén.ues aM_c[ A.c.c,um»u[a{:ec[ Nc{: Rcvcuucs

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997 (IN THOUSANDS)

Operating Revenues (Notes 1 and 9) ...

Operating Expensas
Purchased pawer and gas for resale (Notes ) and 8)...
Production ;

Operation
Maintenance
Depreciation (Nate 1)
Payments in liew of taxes (Note 10) . ........ _~

Total operating expenses

Net Operating Revenues

Other Income
Transmission credits
Iterest
Hiscelaneoys

Total other income

[

Net Revenues before Debt Expense

Debt Expenses (Note 1)
Interest on fomp-term debt
interest an other debt
Amortization of debt expense

Toml debt expense

Net Revenues

Accumulated Net Revenues,

Begmning of fear
Dividends to City of Memphis (Note 10) ____.

Accumulated Net Revenues,
End of Year :

See votes fo financial scatemens,

€lectric Division Gas Division Water Division
1998 199 1998 1997 1998 1997
$822.141  $121.041 $194,969  $225.060 § 57,477 553899
648,487  $54.440 116,958 145564 — —
- — 2,047 1,368 8,554 7495
70,532 85475 38,273 34,587 23,144 20,653
28,190 29,406 7,460 4,105 5,006 5,441
22,891 7,201 8,793 495 6,405 5.026
20,184 19582 2,000 2om - —
787,284 30491 175,532 1918 43009 19415
34,857 31,47 19,437 27497 14,558 14,084
19,121 18,544 — — — —
6,488 5,886 6,419, 6,056 4,484 4330
1,371 98 1,961 1,534 650 i68
26,980 15428 8,380 - 7590 5,134 adn
61,837 56,675 27.817 35,477 19,702 18582
9.517 19,536 - — 3,431 119
3l 8 15 3 9 B
385 39 —_ — 162 10
9,933 11,087 15 18 3,602 1845
51,904 15618 27,802 35439 16,100 14437
494,821 _ 449203 337,925 310,883 183,593 168,956
- — (8.397) a9 - -
$546,725.  $i94811 $357,330  $337.0%5 $199,693  $i81593
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YEAKS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997

instruments has been determined by NLGW using available market infarmation. )’

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division ("MLGW™), 2 division of the City of
Memphis, Tennessee (the “City™), was crazted by an amendment to the City Charter by Chapter 381 of
the Private-Acts of the General Assembly of Tennessee, adopted March 9, 1939, as amended. MLGW is
managed by its President and a five member Board of Commissioners which are nominated by the Ciry
Hayor and approved by the Nemphis City Counail (the “Council”). HLGW, through its three distingt and
financially separate divisions, provides dlectridity, gas and water to customners in Shetby County, Tennessee
which includes the City. MLGWs annual budget and electric, gas and water rates require the approval of
the Councll. MLGW must alio obzin the approva| of the Council before incurring certain obhigations,

Basis of Accounting - HLGW is required by state statute and the Charter of the Gty of
Memphis, Tennessee to maintain separate accounting for each division and to allocate among the
divisions, on an equitable basi, joint expenses, including those related to common facilities. Each division
is separately financed, and its indebtednass is repayable from its net revenyes.

MLGW's aecounting policies are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Where
applicable, the Faderal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (Electric and Gas divisions) and the Rational
hssociation of Regulatory Utility Commissioners” (Water division) Uniform System of Accounts are ased,
MLGW is not subject to the jurisdiction of federal or state regulatary commissions.

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB™) Statement No. 20, “Accaunting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting,” the Division has elected 1o apply all Finangial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™)
Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict with or
cantradict GASB pronowncements, to M accounting and finangial reporting.

+ MLGW adopted GASB No. 25, “Financial Reperting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans™ during the year ended December 3(, 1997,

HLGW adopted GASB Statement No. 31, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments
and External Investment Pools,” in 998, This statement provided guidance for the valuation of
investments. In accordance with his statement, investments at December 31, 1998, are reflected at their

MLGW will adopt GASB Statement No. 32, "Accounting and Finangial Reporting for Internai Revenve
(ode Section 457 Deferreq (ompensation Phans™ in fiscal 1999, Management has not yet determined the
effects, if any, that the adoption of the statement will have on MLGW’ financial statements,

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires Management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and fabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periud. Actual resufts could differ from those estimates,

fair Yatue of Financial Instruments - In accordance with the Yequiremens
107, “Disctosures About Fair Valye of Financial Instruments™, the estimated fair val .

g
T
‘r' (ons s N
Judgment is necessarily required in interpreting market darg to develop the egffdtes qf’girl,m‘,‘kl N
Accordingly, the fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amounes g .ﬁ could reafize in 19
current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions may .;*' ‘matenal effet on the :
estimated fair value amounts. The arrying amounts of cash and cash @8 -
investments, accounts receivable, 2nd accounts payable are 3 reasonable WM
Management was not abie to practicably estimate the fair valve of MLGYWEY
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Notes to financial Statements, cont.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 21, 998 AND 1997

Property = The costs of additions and replacements of umits of property are capitalized, Costs
indude: contracted work, direct [abor and materials, allocable overhead and, where applicable, an
allowance for borrowed funds used during construction and are reduced by contributions in aid of .
construction, When property units are retired, onginal cost, plus removal cost, less salvage is charged to

An allowance for borrowed funds used during construction is computed at actual interest rates to
the extent major projects are financed by specific long-term debe. In 1998 and 1997, no construction
projects were financed with specific long-term debt. Interest on other debt is not capitalized as it it
recovered through current revenues,

Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method based on estimated service lives of various
classes of property at rates equivalent to annual composite rates of approximately 3 percent for the
Electric and Gas Divisions and 2 percent for the Water Division.

Unamortized Debt Expense - Unamortized debt expense is amortized by the interest
method over the lives of the applicable bond issves.

Reserves and Related Restricted Funds - The insurance reserves for injuries and
damages are maintained for estimated liabifities incurred and risks assumed on dlaims for injuries and
damages and on recurring property losses. Costs and expenses for such daims and losses are paid from
the related restricted funds and charged to the reserves as incurred, Increases in the reserves are

charged to operations.

Insurance reserve funds for casualties are self insurahce reserves maintained at discretionary
amounts 1o partially cover losses of 2 catastrophic nature which are not ordinarily insurable o which
are not insurable on an economically feasible basis. These amounts are induded s a restriction of
accomulated net revenves. [ :

Futures Contracts and Swap Agfeementé - The Gas Division enters inte futures
contracts for the purchase-of gas to manage the risk of increases in the market price of gas on
anticipated purchase transactions, Futures contracs are contracts for delayed delivery of gas in whith
the seller agrees to make dlivery at a specified future date of a specified quantity ar a specified price.
Open futures contracts for the purchase of gas are reported at cost, based on the contract price, in the
balance sheet. Gains or losses on futures contracts are deferred until the month the gas is delivered. At
that time, any gains or losses are recognized in gas costs or in the case of futures contracts entered
into on behalf of specific customers, charged to that specific customer.

The Gas Division enters inta swap agreements as a means for managing the Division’s expoture to
changes in gas prices, fixing the cost of sterage refil, recovering fixed costs, and having the ability to
offer prime customers prices which are competitive with gas marketers and producers. A swap is 2
financial agreement with characteristies Similar to futures and options that is custom wilored to meet
the needs of the counterparties. The counterparties typically exchange a floating and a fixed price of 2
commodity such as gas. No amounts related to swap agreements are retarded in the finandial
statements until the transactions are closed out. Once the underlying purchase transaction is closed out,
the obligation to purchase the gas is recorded and the related gain or doss is recognized as a charge
to gas costy and is passed through to the customer.

Revenues - Revenues are recognized on monthly cycle billings ta customers. Ravanues are not
accrued for power, gas and water delivered but unbilled at the end of a fiscal period.

Deferred Purchased Power and Gas Cost - The purchased power.and gas cost
applicable to power and gas delivered to customers but not yet billed is deferred until the associated '
revenues are recogtized. ;

Statements of Cash Flows - For purpotes of the statements of cash flows, MLGW

considers all highly Fiquid investments induding restricted assets with 2 maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivaients,
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AKD {997

NOTE 2 - UTILITY PLANT ‘
Uiy plant at December 31 indudes construction werk in progress of the following ameunts:

{3000)
1998 1997
" Electric Division $37.124 $33918
- Gas Division 15,100 14,946
Water Division 18,256 9.960

HLGW's construction program expenditures for 1999 are estimated as follows: Electric Division - ©
$52,902,000; Gas Division - §32,821,000; and Water Division - $28,355,000.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

NLGW has 2 cash management. program which provides for the investment of excess cash balances
in short-term investments and the investment of debt serviee funds in instruments maturing 2 the
related debt maturss. The policy is authorized by the Charter of the City of Memphis, Tennessee, the
Board of Commissioners of MLGW, and as set forth in the bond resolutions of each divitien. Accordingly,_
MLGW's investments are classified as held-to-maturity. Restricted funds and cash and cash equivalents

. consist of the following at of December 31: -
(3000)
1998 1997
ELECTRIC DIVISION
Restricted funds
Tommon account,., ... $ 15,087 $ 15,13
Mutua) funds i 12,396 15n
US. Govenment agencies : 10,154 19.963
Total restricted funds $37,637 . §im
Cash and cash equivalents
Common accoung _ $62,004 § 48,195
Mutwal funds 267 112
Gsh ; 97 109
Total @sh and cash equivalents $ 62,3468 $ 48436
GAS DIVIStON
Restricted funds . ‘
. Common account $11,344 $ 37
Commercial paper 23,408 11,662
US. Treasury notes — 11996
(ash 1,721 —
Total restricted funds ......, $36477 3 42405
Cash and ¢gsh equivaienss
Common actount $75.775 $ 48,906
Nutual fungs = 2,233 1,130
Tetal cash and cash equinltpﬂ ' $76,008 351,036
WATER DiIVISION
Restricred funds
{ommon account
U5, Gevernment agencies -
) Mutwal funds
Gash

Tota restricted funds

Cash and cash equivalems
{ommon account
Mutual funds

o 1 ' " Total ash and cash equivalents
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-YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997
b ' ($000)
- . December 31

: ’ ' : Interest Rates 1998 kil
o Water Division .
Southeast Nemphis Suburban Uity

District Waterworks Revenue Bonds,

Series |964, due serially 1997-1999 5.25% b 1 50 s 100

Water Division Revenue - Boads:

Series 1989, due serially [997-1998 6.60-6.80% —_ 1,045

Saries 1992, due seriafly 19447.2008 4.90-6.00% 17,335 19.325

Series 1992-A, due serially 1997-2011 4.60-6.00% 3710 16,600

Series 1993, due serialty 1997-2008 3.95.5.20% 26,005 7616

© Series 1998, due serially 2000-2012 3.30-5.25% 12,578 —

59,675 64.68¢

Unamortized deferred amount on bond refunding (227) o

: " Total Water Division $59,448 § 84,684

Current maturities of long-term debt are not shown a5 3 current liability because sufficient funds
are accumulated in escrow accounts or in the bong reserve and debt service funds to meet current
maturities. Principal maturities are as follows:

($000)
Electric Divisian  Water Division

{999 $ 21195 § 5,800
2000........ ' i 0,343 6,095
1001 13.720 6420
200 4190 6150
2003 14500 6,055
Thereafter 52420 18,555

Tora) $158,570 $59475
- HLGW, at its option, may redeem bonds prior to mavurity at premiums and prices specified in the
indentyres,

In December 1998, MLGW issued $12,575.000 in Refunding Bonds, Series 1998, to refund

) , $12.075,000 of the Water Division Revenue Bonds, Series 1991-A. The net proceeds of $12,820,000
(afier an original premium of $404,000 and payment of $159,000 in underwriters fees and other issue
costs) plus $341,000 of existing funds were used to wurrently refund Seres 1992-A As a result, the
Series 1992-A bonds are considered defeased and the liability for thase bonds has besn removed from
the accounts of the Water Division, The refunding resulted in 2 difierence between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $227,000. This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a decrease to bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through. the year 2012 using the effective-interest method. The Water Divislon refunded these bonds 10
reduce’its total debt service over the next 14 years by $1.232,000 and to obrain an economic gain of

$652,000.
At December 31, 1998, the zmounts of bonds and nates which are not recorded as liabilities of
MLGW but remain outstanding with escrow agents are as follows: .

Electric Division
Revenue Bonds, Series 1976
Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1976
Revenue Bonds, Series 199!

Totad

© Water Division :
Revenue Bonds, Series 1992-A
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997

The HLGW Pension Plan provides retirement, disabiity and death benafiss to participants ang their
beneficiaries, The MLGW Pension Plan also provides for a cost of fiving adjustment beginning at age 56
for retired, disabled and surviving spouses on 2 graded saale up to 5 percent per znmum based on -the
Department of Labor consumer prices index.

Basls of Accounting - The financial statements of the MLGW Pension Plan are prepared
, using the-acerual basis of accounting, Contributions are recognized in the period in which the
. contributions are dut. Benefits and refunds are recopnized when due and payable in accordance with
‘the terms of the MLGW Peasion Plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Al investments of the MLGW Pension Plan are
reported at fair value. Short term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, All
other investments are valued based upon by quoted market prices except for real estate investments,
which are valued at estimated fair vaiue based on independent appraisals The MLGW Pension Plan has
ro dwestment in any one organitation which represent more than 5 percent of plan assets.

Contributions - All members under the MLGW Pension Plap are required to contribute 8
percent of the benefit compensation to the MLGW Pension Plan. During 1999 and 1997, MLGW was
required to contribute 10.5 percent and 11 percent respectively, of the benefit compensation of alf
active participants, |nvestment costs of the NLGW Pansion Plan are financed through investment
earnings. Other administrative costs are induded in the annual required contribution amount.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The aset valuation method used is the §-
year weighted index method, The aggregate actuarial cest method is nsed in determining the funding
requirements. Significant actuarial assumptidngInclude (3) 2 rate of return on the investment of

* present and futere asets of 8.0 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases
of 4.5 percent par year compounded annualy, and (c) pensioner cost of fiving adjustments of 2,55
percent compounded annuatly, :

Schedule of Funding Progress - The apgregate cost method does not identity or
separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilties. These liabilities are amortized through the normal cost.
Under the aggregate cost method, the actuarial accrued liability equals the actuarial value of assets. At

‘ Oecember 31, 1998 and 1997, the actvarial value of assets was $859,684,000 and $804,193.000,
" fespectively. , .

Schedule of Contributions From All Sources - Employee and employer contribu-
tions for the past six years are shown biiow:

(¥000) : (5000)

Plan Annual Required Percentage Annual Required Percentage
Year Empioyee Contribution Contributed Employer Contribution  Contributed
1998 $ 801 100% $ 10631 100%

1997 A)?] 100% 10,763 100%

1996 1,654 fo0% 10,711 100%

1995 - 7,620 (00'/.' 1410 100%

1994 1547 100% 1,523 100%

1993 7461 o 100% - 11385 - oy
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND (997

NOTE 5 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND OTHER POS‘I‘-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS .

MLGW offers its employess a deferred compeniation plan created in accardance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all MLGW employees, permits them to defer 2 portion
of their salary unel future years. The deferred compensation is not available to empioyees until
tertinatian, retitement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

During 1997, the plan was amended to mest the recently enacted requirements of Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The Amended Plan provides that asters or income of the Plan shall be used for the
exclusive purpose of providing benefits for Participants and their beneficiaries or defraying reasonable
expenses of administration of the Plan. Since the assats of the Amended Plan are held i custodial and
annuity accounts’ for the exciusive benefit of Plan participants, the related assets of the Plan are not
reflected on the Electric Division balance shests.

MLGW has post-mir;ment major medical and life insurance benefits available to all employee
groups 2572 continuation of those berefits that were available prior to retiremant. Currently, 2,314
retirees and beneficaries are eligible for post-retirement benefits. Life insurance premiums are paid
monthly and medical coverage is paid 23 daims are fled through the medical benefit fund (2 restricted
fund). The costs of future post-retirement benefits are provided for through the imurance reserves for
employee benefits to the extent recovered thraugh current revenues. MLGW has established a grantor
trust to accumulate funds which will be used to pay fisture post retirement medical benefits. The value
of assets in the fund ai December 31, 1998 is $78,570,000.

Post-retirement benefit costs for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as follows:

($000)
1998 1997
Electric Division > :
Benelit payments $ 5,545 5541
Contribution to grantor trust _— 619
Total $5,545 3 6091
Gas Division
Benefit payments $ 2,627 $ L0
Contributicn to grantor trust ) —_— 193
Total $ 2,627 § 14885
Water Division . .
Beneht payments $ 1556 $ 153
Contribution o grantor trust ' — 174
Total . $1,5% 3 1210
NOTE & — DEBRT
Long-term debt comiists of
(5009)
December 31
Interest Rates 1998 1997
Electric Division -
Electric System Revenve Bands:
Series 1991, due serially 1997.19%9 4.10-6.40% $ 2,945 3 505
Series 1992, dus serially 1997:1006 4.90-6.00% - 90,435 102,125
Series 19924, due terially 1997-2000 4.560-5.25% 10,635 15,570
Seric} 1993, due ur_i:lly 1997-2010 3.60.5.00% 54,955 55,685
* Total Efectric Division : $158,970 57909
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-YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997

(s000)
December 3!
. Interest Rates 1998 1987
Water Division .
Southeast Memphis Suburban Uity
District Waterworks Aeverwe Bongs,
Series 1964, due serially 19971999 8.25% $ 50 $ 1oe
Water Division Revenue « Bonds:
Series 1989, due serially 1997.1998 6.60-6.80% —_— 1,045
Series 1992, due serially 1997.2005 4.90-6.00% 17,338 19328
Series 19924, due senally 19922011 4.60-6.00% 3,710 16,600
. Series 1993, due serjally 1997.2008 3.95.5.20% 26,005 11616
Series 1998, due serially 2000-20)2 3.30-5.25% |2|575 —
59,675 64,686
Unamortized deferred amount on bond refunding {227) —
" Total Water Division §$ 59,448 § 64.80

Current maturities of long-term debe are not shown as 2 current liability because sufficient funds
are accumulated in eserow accounts or in the bond reserve and debt service funds to meer current
maturities. Principal maturities are as foflows:

(S000)
Etectric Division  Water Division
199¢ 32198 § 5,900
2000 -~ 22,345 6,095
. 200 13,720 6.420
00 ... 479 4,750
001, 14,500 6,055
Thereafter . 52,420 28,558
Tota) $158.970 359475
< MLGW, at its option, may redeem bonds prior o maturity at premivms and prices specfied in the
indentures.

In December 1998, MLGW issued $12,575,000 in Refunding Bonds, Series 1998, to refund
$12.075,000 of the Water Division Revenye Bonds, Series 1992-A. The net proceeds of $12,820,000
(after an original premium of $404,000 and payment of $159,000 in underwriters fees and other issue
(osts) plus $341,000 of existing funds were used to currently refund Series [992-A As 2 result, ghe
. + Series 19924 bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from

: the accounts of the Water Division. The refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $227,000. This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a decease to bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the year 2012 using the effective-interest method. The Water Division refunded these bends to
reduce’ its total debt service over the next 14 years by $1,232.000 and ta obain an economic fain of
$692,000. :

At December 31, 1998, the amounts of bonds and notes which are not ucnr.ded a1 kabikrier of
MLEW but remain outstanding with escrow agents are as follows: :

Electric Diviston
Revenue Bonds, Series 1976 -
Special Obligation Rehmding Bonds, Series 1976
Revenwe Bonds, Series 1991
Totad

- Water Division .
Revenue Bonds, Series 19924

‘.
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND 1997 - |
NOTE 7 ~ INSURANCE RESERVES FOR MEDICAL BENEFITS AND INJURIES AND J
DAMAGES : : - . .

MLGW is selt-insured for health -and medical benefits, workers compensation and general hability ‘
claims. MLGW has established insurance reserves for the estimated liabilities, including a8 acerual for H
- incurred but not reported daims, resulting from- medical benefits, workers compensation and general :
liability claims. The medical benefits resarves are recorded on the Gas Division and the costs and charges
to the reserve are allocated to each Division.

The changes in the insurance reserves for medical benefits and injuries and damages for the years
ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 are s follows:

(5000) _ (5000)
Medical Benefits Injuries and Damages

* Gas Electric Gas " Water
Division Division Division Division
Balance - December 31, 1996 $ 5926 $ 4,006 $ 1,043 $ 188
Payments (18,908) {1,400) (558) {521
Incutred claims 20,505 1,655 §19 368
Balance - December 31, 1997 1,325 4,24) 4 - 634
Payments (20299 (1239) {115) (584)
lncuried daims 13,341 .- Bl . 889 1,153
Balance - December 31, 1990 $ 10,567 $ 3842 - §1.508 § 1,208

_—

NOTE 8 — ENERGY SUPPLIES

MLGW is committed to purchase al of ity power from TVA under a contract, subject to termination by
tither NLGW or TYA, on not less than ten yean' prior written notice, HIGW purchases gas supplies
directly from producers and marketers. In addition, MLGW has transportation agreements with Texas Gas
Transmission Corporation and Trunkline Gas Company. o
NOTE 9 — RATES ‘

Electric. gas and water rates are established by MLGW and approved by the Gty Counl of Hemphis,
Tennessee, except for pass through increases in electric rates from TYA and gas cost increases from
suppliers. Electric rates are established in coordination with TVA,

NOTE 10 « COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ' R ‘ ‘
As related to futures contracts and swap agreements, ritks arise from the possible inability of ST \

counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts and from movements in gas prices. The Gas Division's ——

exposure .to credit loss in' the event of nonperformance by the ather party is represented by the - ;-’J

contractual notional amount of the financial instrument. There were ns open futufes contracts or wap
agreements at December 31, 1998,

Under the Charter of the City of Memphis, the City is entitied to dividends (6 perceni annual rate for - ""#'?“’_Wt“““"d

e @ awe s

the Electric Division and the Gas Division and 3 percent for the Water Division) based upon accumulated
net revenues, but not ta exceed one-half of the annual net revenues for the Electric Division and the Gas
Division, unless approved by the MLGW's Board of Commissianers. Under the power contract signed with
TVA apd ynder the [958 Basic Bond Resolution of the Water Division, the City of Memphis-has waived its
rights to dividends from the Electric Division and the Water Division. Payments in lieu of taxes and
dividends to the City of Memphis are ako limited by laws established by the State of Tennessee.

= .In the normal course of operations, the Division. is subject to claims and litigation. Management is of
the opinion that, based on information presently available, such matters will not have a material adverse
ehect on the financial position or results of cperations of the Division,

NOTE |1 - SELF-INSURANCE

MLGW is self-insured under the Tennesset Governmental Tort Lability Act. This coverage applies to all
tort liability coverage and holds harmless commissioners, officers, and general counsel making decisions as
authorized by the Board of Commissioner’s policies. Yarious liability Gimits are in foree as established by
the acts except as increased by resolution of the Board of Commitsioners, The more signifieant_coverage

relates to gas leaks, gas explosions and electrical shocks with maximum limits of $130,000 per person
and §350,000 for two or more peryons per accident )

3
1
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Year zooo Disclosures

1 The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other electronic equipment that could adversely

affect the Division's operations a3 early as fiscal year 1999. '

HLGW has completed an inventory of their computer systems that may be affected by the Year 2000 issue and that are necesiary to conduct their
operatioms. The following systems requiring Year 2000 remediation or validation and testing have been identifiad:

Service Delivery Systems - The mission critical systams for delivering electricity, gas and water were agsessed by December 31, 1998.
MLGW has analyzed the service delivery processes end to end, identified embedded components, and has begun testing them for compliance. In mast
cases, HLGW has performed in-house testing to verify vendor certification and upgrades. Using the existing Emergency Response Plan as 2 guide, MLGW
is developing 2 Year 2000 contingency plan by June 30, 1999, MLGW has evaluated their supply chain and critical suppliers, such a5 TVA, gas companies
(producers and wransporters), and component vendors to state their Year 2000 reaginess.

Customer Delivery Systems - NLGW crifical customer delivery systems have been identified, corrected, unit tested snd integrated with
the production systems. Testing and validation began in the first quarter of 1999 and is scheduled for completion by September 30, 1999. These
systems are used to respond to MUGW's customer inquiries and requests and do pot directly affect or control the defivery of electrioty, gas and water.

Support Systems (internal operations) - NLGW critical internal systems have been identified, converted, unit tested and integrated
with the production systems. Testing and validation began in the first quarter of calendar year 1999 and are scheduled for completion by Seprember
30, 1999,

addition to the above critical systems, MLGW has completed the assignment of embedded-chip applications throughout the Division, and has begun

orrection and testing of these applications. MLGW has related commitments of approximately $2.5 million as of March 29, 1999.

eatise of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success or related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable
il the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that MLGW is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the remediation efforts will be suceessful
whole or part, or that parties with whom MLGW conducts business wil be Year 2000 ready.

]ux.{ala.cm[en“: A:uc[i{:;:rs ' Rc:.p.o vt -

I
Board of Commissioners
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
Memphis, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Electric, Gas and Water divisions (the “Divisions") of Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division,
a division of the City of Memphis, Tennessee, as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of net revenues and accumulated net
revenues and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of Memphis Light, Gas and Water
Division. Qur responsibility is to eXpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audis,

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standargs require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
Significant estmates made by management, a3 well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audis provide 2
reasonable basis {or our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Electric, Gas and Water
drvistons of Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of operations and cash flows for the years then
ended for each of the Electric, Gas and Water divisions of Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division in conformity with generally accepted accounting pringiples,

The year 2000 supplementary information abave is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do aot express an opinion on such information. Furth e pnabie to
apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the unprecedented nature of the Y
effects, and the fact that autharitative measurement critetia regarding the status of remediation efforts have not been establis ./Irfaddin' b we-do,
Aot provide assurance that the Divisions aré or wil become year 2000 compliant, that the Divisions' year 2000 remediagon diorts wil pe st ssfulJin
whole of in part, or that parties with which the Divisions do business are or will become year 2000 compliant. /. 1) 0°

As mare fully discussed in Note | to the financial statements, the Divisions adopted the provisions of Government A3
(“GASE") Staternent No. 31, "Accounting and Financial Reparting for Cerwain Investments and Extarnal lnvestment Pools B

Alotl. + Toprke 2op

' March 29, 1999
’ Hemphis, Tennessee

B

<
e
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MLGW Telecommunications Capital Budget

Add two channels to the Mobile Radio System

Mobile Radio System spare parts

Backup power for Operations Center Radio Tower

Replace VHF paging transmitter

Optical ground wire between Substations 69 and 34

Fiber optic multiplex equipment

Backup power for fiber optic equipment

Replace lead jacketed telephone cable with polyethylene jacketed telephone cable - various

locations

. Gas remote telemetry equipment - various locations

10.  Redundant communications for Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition (SCADA)
remote terminal units - various locations

1. SCADA data concentrators

12, 6 GHz microwave system spare parts

13, Replace North Community Office telephone systetn

14, Replace Millington Community Office telephone system

15 Spare parts for Information center Automatic Call Distribution {ACD) unit

16.  Cable TV installation at South Service Center

17.  Replace BARCO display unit at System Operations

.""."P‘!-"Pf"’?":—‘g

Fiber optic cable between Water Lab and Sheahan main building

Replace lead jacketed telephone cable with polyethylene jacketed telephone cable - various
locations

Gas remote telemetry equipment - various locations

900 MHz master radio at Substation 66 radio tower

Telephone headsets - various locations

Redundant communications for SCADA remote terminal units - various locations
Upgrade Information Center ACD

Upgrade Information Center Interactive Voice Response (IVR) unit

Optical ground wire between Substations 39 and 21

Fiber optic cable between Substation 21 and Administration Building

Fiber optic cable from Highway 64 & Germantown Pkwy. to Brunswick Service Center

—oe D 00 NN L B G NHE
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1997
1. Upgrade mobile radio systemn software

2, Fiber multiplex equipment at Substations 6, 21, 32, 33 and 39

3 Fiber optic connection between Substation 34 and Hickory Hill Service Center

4 Replace lead jacketed telephone cable with polyethylene jacketed telephone cable - various
locations

5 Surge suppressors for Operations Center

6 Telephone cable protector blocks - various locations

7 900 MHz master radio at Allen Pumping Station radio tower

8 Telephone headsets - varioys locations

9. Upgrade Administration Building telephone switch (PBX)

10.  Expand Call Accounting system in Administration Building

1. Optical ground wire between Substations 39 and 79

12.  Optical ground wire between Substations 35 and 82

Fiber optic multiplex equipment at Substations 32 and 33

Fiber optic ring multiplex equipment - various locations

Replace lead jacketed telephone cable with polyethylene jacketed telephone cable - various
locations

Convert leased telephone lines to fiber ring - various locations

Telephone headsets - various locations

1998

1 Upgrade mobile radio system software
2,

3

4

5

6

7 Miscellaneous telecom software

Replace 2 GHz microwave between Substations 35 and 32 with 6 GHz microwaye
Upgrade mobile radio system software

Replace lead jacketed telephone cable with polyethylene jacketed telephone cable - various
locations

Telephone headsets - various locations
Miscellaneous telecom software
Replace Information Center ACD

1999
1. Replace 2 GHz microwave between Substations 31 and 34 with optical ground wire
N
3
4
S
6
7
8 Replace Information Center IVR

C:\TWAR.NER\CA.H'TALWPD
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- FRNOX WALKUP - Pre Bid CONTRACTORS. doC i T T Page

03/02/00

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS
PRE-BID MEETING

Memphis Networxs is a telecommunications provider that is building a fiber optic network in the
city of Memphis.* We will need to employ contractors to assist in the placement of fiber. The
majority of this project is aerial with a small amount of underground construction. The route will
be from the Bell South Germantown Central Office located at the intersection of Germantown
and Poplar Ave. continuing North along Germantown Road to the intersection of Highway 64.
West on Highway 64 to Memphis Networx Central Office. Memphis Networx is hosting a pre-
bid meeting to discuss the specifics and hand out bid packages for Ring Number One/ Phase
One.

Contractors are urged to bring a statement of qualification to the pre-bid conference. Listing five
previous fiber projects along with references. ‘

The pre-bid hearing for Ring Number One
Date: 03/09/00
Time: 9:00 AM
Location: Memphis Networx
7555 Appling Center Drive
Memphis, TN 38133-5069

* Memphis Networx is currently seeking approval from the Tennessee Regulatory Authority to
commence construction and operations. The hearing is scheduled for March 29 & 30.
Construction is expected to commence soon thereafter.
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IRU AGREEMENT

THIS INDEFEASIBLE RIGHT OF USE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and
entered into as of the Effective Date, as defined in Section 1.1 below, by and between MEMPHIS
LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION, a Tennessee municipal corporation, hereinafter
“MLGW?”, and ENTERGY TECHNOLOGY COMPANY » @ Delaware corporation, hereinafter
“ETC".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, ETC and MLGW have proposed to design, construct and install
approximately twenty-five miles of fiber optic cable (the "Fiber Cable™) in Memphis, Tennessee,
along the Route as defined in Section 1.1;

WHEREAS, ETC and MLGW, through a primary contractor mutually agreeable to ETC
and MLGW, plan to design, construct and install Fiber Cable along the Route to be utilized by
ETC and MLGW as part of their respective telecommunications Fiber Networks as hereafter
provided;

WHEREAS, the Fiber Cable will be installed and attached to existing MLGW facilities
and plant, and ownership of the Fiber Cable will reside with MLGW;

WHEREAS, as part of the consideration for this Agreement, ETC desires to be granted
the exclusive, indefeasible right to use certain optical fibers in the Fiber Cable; and MLGW
desires to grant ETC an exclusive indefeasible right to use those certain optical fibers in the Fiber
Cable, all upon the terms and conditions set forth below;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE L
DEFINITIQNS

1.1 The following terms shall have the stated definitions in this Agreement.

(a) "Acceptance Date" shall mean the date MLGW accepts the Fiber Project, as set
forth in Section 7.3. :

MLGW Comments to GAMD-NO-90634-6 (February 23, 2000)
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(b)  “Dark Fiber” means fiber provided without electronics or optronics, and which is
not “lit” or activated; provided that such fiber may be used in any manner and for any purpose
permitted under this Agreement.

(¢)  “Effective Date” means the date on which both parties have executed this
Agreement or if the parties execute this Agreement on different dates, the date on which the last
party has signed the Agreement.

()} "ETC Fibers" shall mean the twenty-four (24) Dark Fibers contained in the Fiber
Cable which are specifically designated and tagged as ETC Fibers.

(¢)  "Fiber Acceptance Testing" shall mean the testing of the Fiber Cable and each
individual fibet contained therein in accordance with the Testing Requirements and Standards for
Pigtail Tetmnination and Field Splicing, attached hereto as Exhibit D.

@ “Fiber Cable” shall mean the fiber optic cable and the Fibers contained therein to
be installed by ETC along the Route. The Fiber Cable shall be deemed to include forty-eight
(48) Dark Fibers and any additional MLGW Fibers, the associated cable splicing connections and
the associated mounting hardware,

(8)  "Fiber Cable Associated Property" means the tangible and intangible property
needed for the operation of the Fiber Cable, including, but not limited to, any associated
Transmission Sites, Rights-of Way, easements and conduit, but excluding any electronic or
optronic equipment.

(h)  "Fiber Project" shall mean the design, engineering, installation, construction and
testing of the Fiber Cable in accordance with the construction specifications and plans set forth in
Exhibits B, B-1, B-2, B-3 and C, and the testing specifications set forth in Exhibit E.

@) “Impositions” means all taxes, fees, tolls, levies, imposts, duties, charges or
withholdings of any nature (including, without limitation, franchise, license and permit fees and
fees for the use of public Rights-of-way), together with any penalties, fines or interest thereon

arising out of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and mmposed upon the Fiber
Project or Fiber Cable by any federal, state or local government or other public taxing authority,

€)} "Indefeasible Right of Use” or “IRU” means (i) an exclusive, indefeasible right of
use in the ETC Fibers, and (i) an associated non-exclusive right of use, to the extent that MLGW
can grant such a right of use, in the Fiber Cable Associated Property; and (iit) an associated non-
exclusive right of use and access to MLGW transmission towers and related facilities along the

a7
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Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the use of the word
“indcfeasible,” whether as part of the tenms “Indefeasible Right of Use” or “IRU” or as otherwise
used in this Agreement, shall not alter, minimize, diminish or in any other way impair MLGW’s
rights of termination under this Agreement and under otherwise applicable law.

(k)  "MLGW Fibers" shall mean the twenty-four (24) Dark Fibers contained in the
Fiber Cable which are specifically designated and tagged as MLGW Fibers, plus the additional
Dark Fibers and Cable specifically identified by MLGW pursuant to Section 6.1.

I  “Rights of Use” shall mean, to the extent of MLGW’s rights along the Route, the
IRU and quiet enjoyment in and to the ETC Fibers being granted to ETC by MLGW along the
Route.

(m}  “Rights-of-way” shall mean the rights to access, use and occupy the real property
along the Route upon which the transmission line structures are located pursuant to subsisting
grants, easements, leases, licenses, or other agreement.

(n)  “Route” shall mean the proposed area depicted and described on Exhibit A,
generally from the vicinity of Florida Street and E.H. Crump Blvd. in Memphis, Tennessee,
through MLGW's distribution conduit system and along MLGW's transmission route to the
Allen Generating Plant, and terminating at the Freeport Substation in Memphis, Tennessee.

(0) "Scheduled Delivery Date” for the completion of the Fiber Project shall mean the
applicable date shown in Section 4.6, as extended o the extent permitted hereunder.

(®}  “Splice” shall mean a point where two independent sections of the Fiber Cable are
physically joined.

ARTICLEII.
L

21 MLGW hereby grants to ETC an Indefeasible Right of Use. Upon completion of
construction and installation as herein described, the ETC Fibers shall extend along the Route
generally from the vicinity of Florida Street and E.H. Crump Blvd. in Memphis, TN, through
MLGW'’s distribution conduit system and along MLGW'’s transmission route to the Allen
Generating plant, and terminating at the Freeport substation in Memphis, TN, as more
particularly described in Exhibit “A.”.

22  MGLW further grants to ETC the non-exclusive rights to occupy its underground
conduit bank along the Route as is reasonably necessary to complete the Fiber Project and afford

MLGW Comments to GAMD-NO-90634-6 (February 23, 2000) =3~
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ETC’s rights of use under this Agreement. ML.GW does not suggest, imply or guarantee that
ETC will have sole occupancy of an underground conduit bank.

ARTICLE I1I,

CONSIDERATION FOR GRANT

3.1  Inconsideration of the grant for the ETC IRU in the ETC F ibers, ETC agrees to
coordinate, administer and pay for the actual costs associated with the Fiber Project (hereinafier,
*Construction Costs"). Said Construction Costs include only the cost of materials, labor, design,
enginecring, installation, construction and any other miscellaneous items, such as construction
permits and licenses, as might be required to install the Fiber Cable and complete the Fiber
Project according to generally accepted industry practices, Construction Costs will also include
the time of one full time MLGW e¢mployee who might be assigned as a project manager to
support the project in an engineering or consulting role or to coordinate with ETC and the
Contractor the efforts of MLGW’s internal support personnel. Additionally, ETC acknowledges
that MLGW’s employees and or contractors will be required to undertake certaity actions in order
for ETC to install the Fiber Cable. Thus, as Additional Construction Costs, ETC shall reimburse
MLGW for the reasonable expenses of having MLGW'’s personnel or contractors perform these
tasks and when necessary to observe the installation of the Equipment. Such expenses shall
include ali direct labor, material, equiptuent and transportation used to observe ETC’s work, to
be inclusive of all loading, interest and administrative charges and shall be at MLGW's
prevailing wage rate. Payment for such work shall be made within thirty (30) days after receipt
of invoice,

3.2 Construction Costs specifically exclude pole attachment or related fees for the use
of MLGW transmission towers and poles, distribution conduit and riser poles along the route
described in Section 1.1 and any and all costs not specifically designated as a Construction Cost
in this Agreement.

ARTICLE1V.

4.1  ETC, or its contractors, shall design, engineer, transport, deliver, install and
construct the Fiber Cable on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, However,
solely with regard to the underground portion of the Fiber Project, MLLGW shall install the Fiber
Cable in the underground conduit and/or inner duct along the Route, in accordance with Section
4.2.

4.2 Subject to the limitations set forth below, with regard to the underground portion
of the Fiber Project, ETC shall bear the eéxpense of preparing the conduit, installing any

MLGW Comments to GAMD-NO-90634-6 (February 23, 200) =4~
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additional conduit, installing the pull rope and any other make ready cost necessary to prepare
said conduit for installation of the Cable. The parties acknowledge that all costs of the make
ready work necessary for the installation of innerduct and cable cannot be known prior to the
actual performance of the work. ETC shall obtain all Cable and splice enclosures at its own
expense, ahd will reimburse MLGW for all direct, out-of-pocket expenses (including loading)
incurred by MLGW for providing access to the underground conduit system. Loading shall not
exceed 123% of MLGW'’s direct labor cost, Splice enclosures and slack Cable shall be located in
MLGW manholes, as space permits. Splicing shall be performed by ETC or its contractors
outside MLGW manholes. ETC shall procure all materials to be incorporated in and to become a
permanent part of the Cable, and an ETC representative shall be present during all MLGW
installation of underground fiber cable, splice enclosures and accessories. The ETC
representative shall be knowledgeable and experienced in underground fiber cable, splice
enclosures and accessory installation and shall be authorized by ETC to answer questions and
make decisions on ETC's behalf regarding problems and questions that occur during MLGW
installation of underground cable, splice enclosures and accessories. The ETC representative
shall be furnished at ETC's expense.

4.3 ETC, ot its contractors, shall engineer and design the Fiber Cable consistent with
the construction plans and specifications set forth in Exhibits B and C, including preparation of
construction drawings, bills of materials, materjals specifications and materials requisition. ETC,
with prior notice to MLGW, may alter the construction plans and specifications in order to
facilitate actual construction needs. Any such alteration shall be consistent with standard
telécommunications practices.

44  ETC, or its contractors, shall perform, in accordance with standard commercial
practices, all supervisory and inspection services relating to construction of the Fiber Project
including, without limitation, performing construction inspection prior to completion of the Fiber
Project to assure that all construction shall be in accordance with the specifications, drawings,
provisions of this Agreement, and applicable construction codes. MLGW shall have the right,
but not the obligation, to inspect the installation, splicing and testing of the Fiber Cable during
the course and at the time of the relevant design, construction and installation periods for each
portion of the Fiber Project. MLGW will inspect all phases of construction and obtain and
release all orders from MLGW’s electric dispatcher.

45  Upon written request by MLGW, ETC shall make available for inspection by
MLGW, copies of all information, documents, reports, construction permits, drawings and
specifications generated, obtained or acquired by ETC in performing its duties pursuant to this
Article IV (to the extent that the terms of each such documnent or the legal restrictions applicable
to such information or document permits disclosure to MLGW).

MLGW Comments 1o GAMD-NO-00634-6 (February 23, 2000)  =5-
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4.6  Subject to reasonable extension for delays pemmitted hereunder, the Scheduled
Delivery Date for completion of the Fiber Project shall be March 15, 2000. As of the Scheduled
Delivery Date, the ETC Fiber shall be available for use by ETC, and the remaining fibers
contained in the Fiber Cable shall be available for use by MLGW. In the event that the
construction, installation, Fiber Acceptance Testing and other work is not completed by the
Scheduled Delivery Date, said Scheduled Delivery Date shall be extended without penalty for
such reasonable time as may be required by ETC to complete the Fiber Project.

47 (a)  Subject to reasonable extension for delays permitted in this Agreement,
ETC shall use commercially reasonable efforts to complete all construction and testing
obligations by the Scheduled Delivery Date. Upon written approval of MLGW, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, ETC may rove up or extend the Scheduled Delivery Date,

(b)  Ifthe Scheduled Delivery Date has been extended as a result of some delay as
provided herein, for ninety (90) consecutive days, and at the end of such period, there is in the
judgment of MLGW and/or ETC no reasonably apparent probability of the cessation, termination
or resolution of the event or occurrence causing the delay within thirty (30) days after the end of
the delay period, then MLGW and/or ETC shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with
respect to the affected portion of the Fiber Project. In the event that MLGW elects to terminate
this Agreement or the action or inaction of MLGW results in the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to this section 4,7(b), ETC and ML.GW shall share equally all costs expended to date by
either party on the Fiber Project or the affected portion of the Fiber Project, as the case may be.
In the event that ETC elects to terminate this Agreement or the action or inaction of ETC results
in the termination of the Agreement pursuant to this section 4.7(b), ETC shall remain responsible
for all costs expended to date op the Fiber Project or the affected portion of the Fiber Project, as
the case may be.

48 Inorderto facilitate the timely completion of the Fiber Project, MLGW will
timely provide to ETC or its representative contractor Plan and Profile Drawings of all Rights-of-
Way, Load Tree Drawings and Specifications of the MLGW structures along the Route and all
other structural or other data required to calculate design tensions and conduct vibration and/or
structural analyses required as part of the Fiber Project. Any structure modifications, such as
"V", Knee and/or Cross Braces, Anchors and Guys, member additions and/or structure
changeouts requested by ETC or its contractor and designated as necessary to the Fiber Project,
shall be undertaken by ML.GW and/or ETC and shall be included as part of ETC's Construction
Costs. Further, all engineering, installation and installation materials within MLGW substations
and terminals shall be provided by MLGW at its cost. Any stress analysis shall be done by ETC
ot its contractor using the “Tower” analysis program by Powerline Systems, Inc. Electronic data
files shall be provided to ML.GW at o cost.

MLGW Comments to GAMD-NO-90634-6 (Februaty 23,2000) -6~
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4.9  In order to facilitate the timely completion of the Fiber Project, MLGW will use
reasonable efforts to coordinate with ETC and ETC’s contractor on a weekly basis to obtain
electrical outage windows necessary and appropriate for the timely completion of the Fiber
Project. Should MLGW fail to provide electrical outage windows in a reasonable and timely
manner, and thereby cause ETC ot its contractor or subcontractors downtime, whether due to
timing or adequacy, charges will be assessed equally to ETC and ML.GW in accordance with the
downtime charge determined and assessed by contractor. Any construction delays caused or
resulting from incomplete or inadequate plans provided to ETC or ETC's contractor by MLGW,
or which are directly attributable to existing MLGW plant and facilities, will be the sole
responsibility of ETC’s contractor.

ARTICLE V.

5.1  Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, MLGW does
not make any warranties or representations with respect to the sufficiency of its Ri ghts-of-way or
other property rights to allow ETC’s contemplated uses under this Agreement. In the event a
dispute arises with respect to the ability of ETC to use the Rights-of-way or other propetty of
MLGW, MLGW shall perform, at its sole cost and expense, in accordance with standard
practices, all necessary right-of-way, easement and land acquisition activities necessary to install,
construct, test, deliver and use the Fiber Cable in accordance with the provisions hereof, free
from interference by, ot infringement of the rights of third parties. ML.GW shall obtain and
provide to ETC all permits, licenses, grants, leases or other authorizations or clearances relating
to said right-of-way, easement and/or acquisition activities, including but not limited to those for
ingress and cgress along rights-of-way, easements, and railroad, state and interstate roadway
crossings. ETC shall have the right but not the obligation, to inspect all right-of-way, easement,
land acquisition and other documents pertinent to the Fiber Project and/or Fiber Cable. Nothing
in this Agreement shall operate to relieve ETC of the obligation to obtain al] necessary franchises
and other state and local regulatory approvals to use the Fiber Cable in accordance with the
provigions hereof,

3.2 Subject to the limitations of liability for MLGW set forth in Section 15.3, damage
to property caused by the negligence of MLGW, ETC or ETC's Contractor shall be assessed to
each according to its fault. The parties acknowledge and understand that work on interstate
roadway crossing is typically allowed for a limited number of hours on a Sunday by the State of
Tennessee. The parties acknowledge and understand that obtaining permits for railroad crossings
can involve lengthy time delays.

ARTICLE VI.

ADDITIONAL MLGW FIBERS

MLGW Commonts o GAMD-NO-90634-6 (Fcbruary 23, 2000) =7~
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6.1  MLGW has requested that ETC include as part of the Fiber Project certain
additional fibers, and to install as part of the Fiber Project additional Fiber Cable, all as
specifically identified and described in Exhibit D hereto. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein, MLGW shall pay to ETC over and above any other consideration set forth as
part of this Agreement, all incremental costs associated with the design, engineering, installation,
construction, splicing, testing and delivery of said additional MLGW fibers and/or additional
MLGW Fiber Cable. Said incremental costs shall include the additional costs of labor and
materials.

ARTICLE VII.

7.1 ETC, orits contractor, shall test all fibers in the Fiber Cable, including any
additional MLGW Fibers, in accordance with the procedures specified in Exhibit E ("Fiber
Acceptance Testing”) to verify that the Fiber Cable is installed and operating in accordance with
the specifications described in Exhibit E. Fiber Acceptance Testing shall progress span by span
along the Route as Cable splicing progresses, so that test results may be reviewed in a timely
manner. ETC shall provide reasonable advance notice of the date and time of each Fiber
Acceptance Testing such that ML.GW shall have the right, but not the obligation, to have a
PCIS0ON or persons present to observe the Fiber Acceptance Testing. ETC shall promptly provide
MLGW with a copy of the test results.

72 Inthe event the results of the Fiber Acceptance Testing show any fibers not to be
operating within the parameters of the applicable specifications, ETC will expeditiously take
such action as shall be reasonably necessary to bring the operating standards of the subject fibers
to acceptable condition.

7.3 Ifand when ETC notifies MLGW that the test results of the Fiber Acceptance
Testing are within the parameters of the specifications in Exhibit E, MLGW shall provide ETC
with a written notice accepting the Fiber Cable. IFMLGW fails to notify ETC of its acceptance of

notice of such test results, MLGW shall be deemed to have accepted the Fiber Cable. The date of
such notice of acceptance (or deemed acceptance) of the Fiber Cable shall be the “Acceptance
Date”. Ownership of the Fiber Cable shall thereafler vest and reside with MLGW,

ARTICLE V111

DROCUMENTATION

8.1  Not later than ninety (90) days after the Acceptance Date, ETC shall provide
MLGW with the following documentation:

MLGW Comments ts GAMD-NO-30634-6 (February 23, 2000 -8
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(@)  As-built drawings in accordance with standard telecommunications practices (“As
Builts”).

(b)  Technical specifications of the Cable and associated splices and other equipment
placed in the Fiber Cable.

()  Stress analyses as described in Section 4.8

ARTICLE IX.
TERM.

91  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall become effective as of
the Effective Date and shall continue in effect through the Expiration Date (the “Initial Term”)
(the Initial Term and Renewal Term, as hereafter defined, may be collectively referred to as the
“Term™).

92  Unless extended pursuant to Section 9.3 below, the “Expiration Date” of this
Agreement shall be the earlier of: (a) the date which is five (5) years after the Acceptance Date;
(b) the date this Agreement is terminated pursuant to the terms hereof or by mutual agreement of
the parties; or (c) the date the Fiber Cable is abandoned by ETC in accordance with Section 9.4.

93 Subject to the provisions of clauge (b) of Section 9.2, ETC and its successors and
permitted assigns shalt have the absolute right and option to renew the Term of this Agreement
from the date upon which it would otherwise expire for four (4) additional and consecutive five
(5) year periods (the “Renewal Terms”). Unless ETC is in default under this Agreement at the
expiration of the Term, ETC’s option to renew the Agreement shall be deemed 1o have been
exercised by ETC automatically and without the need for written notice to MLGW prior to the

Agreement by providing written notice of its intention to renew to MLGW, pending resolution of
the default, but subject always to MLGW'’s right to terminate in accordance with Articles XXI
and XXII.

9.4 In the event that ETC determines in its sole discretion that its respective portion of
the Fiber Cable has reached the end of its economically useful life within the Term of this
Agreement and desires to not retain jts Indefeasible Right of Use, ETC shall have the tight to
abandon the Indefeasible Right of Use by assigning its rights and interest in and to the
Indefeasible Right of Use to MLGW. Upon ETC's notice of abandonment, the Term shal] expire
and all rights to the Indefeasible Right of Use shall revert to MLGW, after which ETC shall have
no further rights or obligations with respect to the Indefeasible Right of Usge,
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ARTICLE X.

FIBER CONNECTION

10.1  Subject to the provisions herein, ETC shall be responsible for all costs to
construct and pull the Fiber Cable to the end points and intermediate point locations designated
in Exhibit A, at which points and intermediate points MLGW and ETC may access the Fiber
Cable.

102 ETC may thereafter, at its sole option, connect its telecommunications system
with its respective fibers at its sole cost, at any point along the Route. In order to schedule a
connection of this type, ETC shall notify MLGW not less than fifteen (15) days in advance of the
date ETC desires the connection to be performed. MLGW shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to meet ETC’s desired date subject to MLGW’s operational requirements. Neither party
shall have any limitations on the types of electronics or technologies employed to utilize its
fibers, subject to mutually agteeable safety procedures and so long as such electronics or
technologies do not interfere with or limit the use of or present a risk of damage to any portion of
the Fiber Cable.

ARTICLE X1.
OPERATIONS

11.1  Each party shall have full and complete control and responsibility for determining
any network and service configuration or designs, routing configurations, regrooming,
rearrangement or consolidation of channels or circuits and all refated functions with regard to the
use of that party’s fiber, so long as such does not interfere with or limit the use of or present a
risk of damage to any portion of the Fiber Cable.

112 Except as provided in Section 14.2 below, neither party hereto is supplying or is
obligated to supply to the other party any optronics or electronics or optical or electrical
equipment or other facilities, including without limitation, generators, batteries, and monitoring
and testing equipment, nor is either party responsible for performing any work other than as
specified in this Agreement,

ARTICLE XI1I.
E R

12.1  Upon execution of this Agreement, MLGW and ETC shall enter into and execute
the Maintenance Agreement in the form of Exhibit F hereto, providing for the maintenance of the
Fiber Cable as set forth therein.
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122 Except as provided in Section 10.2, maintenance of, and ETC’s access to the Fiber
Cable shall be on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Maintenance Agreement
to be entered into by the parties pursuant to Section 12.1; provided that if the Maintenance
Agreement expires or terminates prior to the end of the Term, those provisions of the
Maintenance Agreement relating to access by ETC to the Fiber Cable, for purposes of
maintenance, shall survive the termination or expiration thereof and continue to apply for the
remaining Term of this Agreement,

123 MLGW reserves to itself, its successors and assigns, the right to maintain its
manholes and underground conduit and to operate its facilities thereon in such manner as will
best enable it ta fulfill its own service requirements. MLGW shall exercise reasonable
precaution to prevent damage to, or interference with the operation of the ETC Fibers, but
MLGW shall not be liable for any such damage or interference which may arise out of the use of
MLGW's manholes or conduit theteunder. ETC shall exercise special precautions to avoid
damage to facilitics of MLGW or of other authotized users of said underground conduit.

ARTICLE X111,
PERMITS: PHYSICAL PLANT, REQUIRED RIGHTS AND RELOCATION

13.1 MLGW shall at its sole cost and expense obtain all rights, licenses, permits,
authorizations, rights-of-ways and other agreements necessary for the construction, installation
and continued use of conduit, Fiber Cable or other physical plant facilities, as well as any other
such rights licenses, authorizations, (including any necessary local, state, tribal or federal
authorizations such as environmental pemmits), rights-of-ways and other agreements necessary for
the continued use and operation of the Fiber Cable and completion of the Fiber Project (all of
which are referred to as the “Required Rights”) which Required Rights shall include the use of
the ETC Fibers by ETC. In the event continuing payments, or any payments subsequent to the
Acceptance Date, are necessary to maintain any of the Required Rights, MLGW shall maintain
said Required Rights at its sole cost and expense through the termination of this Agreement.

132 If, for any reason, MLGW determines in its reasonable business judgment, or is

required by a third party with legal authority to so require, to relocate any portion of the Fiber
Cable, MLGW shall proceed with such relocation, including but not limited to the right to
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limitation, under Section 13.1, and except as expressly provided in this Section 13.2, ETC shall
reimburse ML.GW for its proportionate share of all costs of cable and fiber acquisition, splicing
and testing and other costs associated with said relocation, prorated based on the number of
fibers each party operates in the affected portion of the Fiber Cable. MLGW shall deliver to ETC
updated As-Builts with respect to any relocated portion of the Fiber Cable not later than sixty

(60) days following the completion of such relocation.

13.3  In the event title to the Fiber Cable or Required Rights is contested, or if any third
party or government authority contests the property rights or the rights of the parties to use the
Fiber Cable for any reason, MLGW shall proceed to take all necessary steps to perfect title
including, but not limited to, contesting the claims of any such third party or government
authority.

ARTICLE XIV.

USE OF FIBER CABLE

14.1  The parties warrant that their use of the Fiber Cable shall comply with all
applicable governments codes, ordinances, laws, rules, regulations and/or restrictions.

142  The ETC IRU shall include, without limitation, the right to install additional
equipment, or replace existing equipment at any regenerator station or junction along the Route.
At ETC's request, MLGW shall provide ETC with sufficient space and access to afford
placement of the equipment, if sufficient space is available,

14.3  In addition to the other rights provided hereunder, but subject to the provisions of
Article X, ETC shall have the right to install additiona] equipment, ot replace existing
equipment, at any point where ETC is permitted to access its fibers under the provisions of this
Agreement.

144 The parties may use their respective fibers for any lawful putpose. Each party
agrees and acknowledges that it has no right to use the other party’s fiber, and that it shall keep
such other party’s fibers free from any liens, rights or claims of any third party attributable to
such party that adversely affects or impairs the other party’s exclusive use of its fibers hereunder,

145  ETC and MLGW shall promptly notify each other of any matters pertaining to any
damage or impending damage to or loss of the Fiber Cable that are known to such party.

14.6  Each party shall take all reasonable precautions against, and shall assume liability,
subject to the terms herein (including, without limitation, Section 15.3), for any damage
negligently or intentionally caused by such party to the other’s fibers within the Cable.
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14.7  ETC and MLGW each agree to cooperate with and support the other in complying
with any requirements applicable to their respective rights and obligations hereunder by any
governmental or regulatory agency or authority.

14.8  Except as otherwise explicitly set forth in this Agreement or in the Maintenance
Agreement between the parties, neither party shall charge the other party any maintenance, pole
attachment, right-of-way, or other charges for the Fiber Cable installed along the route as defined
in Section 1.1

ARTICLE XV.
HOLD HARMLESS

15.1  Subject to the provisions of Article XVI, MLGW hereby releases and agrees to
defend, protect and hold harmless ETC and ETC’s affiliates other than MLGW, and the
employees, officers, directors, agents, and shareholders of ETC and such affiliates, from and
against, liability for:

(a) Any injury, loss or damage to any person, tangible property or facilities of any
person or entity (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) to the extent arising out of or
resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of MLGW, its officers, employees, servants,

agents or representatives in connection with its performance under this Agreement, or its use of
the Fiber Cable

(b)  Any claims, liabilities or datnages arising out of any violation by MLGW of
regulations, rules, statutes or court orders of any local, state or federal governmental agency,
court or body in connection with its performance or failure to perform under this Agreement, or
its use of the Fiber Cable.

152 Subject to the provisions of Article XVI, ETC hereby releases and agrees to
defend, protect and hold harmless MLGW and MLGW’s affiliates other than ETC, and the
employees, officers, directors, agents, shareholders of MLGW and such affiliates, from and
against, and assurnes liability for:

(@  Any injury, loss or damage to any person, tangible property or facilities of any
person or entity (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) to the extent arising out of or
resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of ETC, its officers, employees, servants, agents or

representatives in connection with its performance under this Agreement, or its use of the Fiber
Cable.

(b)  Any claims, liabilities or damages arising out of any violation by ETC of
regulations, rules, statutes or court orders of any local, state or federal governmental agency,
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court or body in connection with its performance or failure to perform under this Agreement, or
its use of the Fiber Cable.

153  The hold harmless and indemnity obligations of MLGW under this agreement,
including without limitation those set forth in Sections 15.1, are expressly limited to the
coverages, amounts, procedural requirements and other limitations of the Tennessee
Governmental Tort Liability Act, T.C.A. § 29-20-101 et seq., or any other local, state, or federal
law or regulation limiting the liability of MLGW or its Directors, officers, employees, or agents,
and these hold harmless and indemnity obligations are expressly subject to the provisions of such
laws, as such now exist or hereafter may be amended, revised or interpreted from time to time.

ARTICLE XVL

LIMITATTON OF LIABILITY

16.1  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall
either party be Hable to the other party for any special, incidental, indirect, punitive or consequential
damages, whether foreseeable or not, arising out of, or in connection with, transmission interruptions
or problems, or any interruption or degradation of service, including, but not limited to, damage or
loss of property or equipment, loss of profits or revenue, cost of capital, cost of replacement services,
or claims of customers, whether occasioned by any construction, reconstruction, relocation, repair
or maintenance performed by, or failed to be performed by, the other party or any other cause
whatsoever, including, without limitation, breach of contract, breach of warranty, negligence, or
strict liability, all claims for which damages are hereby specifically waived,

ARTICLE XVII.
INSURANCE

17.1  Without limiting any obligations or liabilities under this Agreement, ETC may, at its
option and at its own expense, secure and maintain in force, throughout the term of this agreement,
insurance coverage on an occutrence basis and from companies reasonably acceptable to ETC in
form and amounts which ETC reasonably believes will adequately protect it. ETC and/or its
contractor anticipates obtaining insurance in amounts no less than the following:

(a)  Commercial general liability insurance including contractual liability coverage
covering liability assumed under this Agreement, products/completed opetations coverage, broad
form property liability coverage and personal injury coverage in the amount of Two Million and

No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage.

()  Commercial automobile liability insurance including all owned, hired, leased,
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assigned and non-owned vehicles, with a combined single limit of Two Million and No/100 Dollars
(32,000,000.00) per occurrence.

(c)  “All risk” property insurance in an amount equal to the replacement cost of the
property of such party.

17.2  The general and automobile liability policies referenced by this Article XVII shall be
endorsed to show ETC and its affiliated and associated companies as additional insureds. Each party
hereby waives all rights of recourse, including any right to which another may be subrogated, against
the other party and its affiliated and associated companies for bodily injury (including death),
personal injury and property damage and each party shall obtain the permission of all insurers
providing the coverages under this Article XVII to allow such party to waive such rights.

17.3 MLGW is self-insured under the Tennessee Workers Compensation Law, T.C.A.
§ 50-6-101 et seq. Without limiting any obligations or liabilities under the Agreement, it is agreed
that MLGW shall at all times provide workers compensation benefits and coverage pursuant to said
law. Further, MLGW is a self-insured governmental entity within the meaning of the Tennessee
Governmental Tort Liability Act, T.C.A. § 29-20-101 et seq., and as such is subject to the limits of
hability prescribed by the Act. MLGW shall provide self-insured coverage and respond in damages
to any claims within the amounts prescribed therein, if legally liable.

17.4  Unless agreed otherwise in writing by the other party, any subcontractor providing
services under this Agreement shall be required to carry coverages in a form agreeable to ETC and
MLGW, and certificates of itsurance evidencing such coverage shall be presented to the Parties to
the Agreement priot to commencement of services by the subcontractor,

ARTICLE XVIII,
P

18.1  The parties acknowledge and agree that it is their mutual objective and intent to
minimize, to the extent feasible, the taxes, fees and other governmental Impositions payable with
respect to the Fiber Cable. The parties further agree that they will cooperate with each other and
coordinate their mutual efforts to achieve such objectives in accordance with the provisions of this
Article, and to facilitate the preparation of any returns or reports relating to Impositions.

18.2  Itis understood and agreed by the parties that MLGW shall maintain legal title to the
Fiber Cable subject to the ETC IRU. Thus, following the Acceptance Date, MLGW shall be
responsible for and shall timely pay any and all Impositions with respect to the Fiber Cable. MLGW
shall have the right at its own cost and cxpense to challenge any such Impositions so long as such
challenge does not adversely affect the title, rights or property to be delivered pursuant hereto.
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18.3  ETC shall be separately responsible for and shall pay any and all Impositions (i)
expressly or implicitly imposed upon, based upon, or otherwise measured by the gross receipts, gross
income, net receipts or net income received by or accrued to ETC due to its use of the Fiber Cable
or the ETC Fibers. ETC shall have the right at its own cost and expense to challenge any such
Impositions, so long as such challenge does not adversely affect the title, rights or property to be
de¢livered pursuant hereto,

ARTICLE XIX.
NOTICE

19.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and communications concerning this
Agreement shall be addressed to the other party as follows:

If to MLGW:

Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
220 South Main Street

Memphis, TN 38103

Attention: Contracts Management
Telephone: (901) 528-4020

Facsimile: (901) 528-

and, if claiming an event of default, with a copy to;

Attention:
Telephone: ()

Facsimile; ( )

Ifto ETC:

Entetgy Technology Company
639 Loyola Avenue
L-MOB-7B

New Orleans, LA 70113
Attention: General Manager
Telephone: (504) 576-2807
Facsimile: (504) 576-6633
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and to:

Entergy Technology Company
639 Loyola Avenue
New Orleans, LA 70113
Attention; Leo Denault
Vice President-Corporate Development
Telephone: (504) 576-4549

and if claiming an event of default, with copy to:

Entergy Technology Company
639 Loyola Avenue

New Orleans, LA 70113
Attention: Lynda Friedman
Telephone: (504) 576-4548

Or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other party.

19.2  Unless otherwise provided herein, notices shall be hand delivered, sent by registered
or certified U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or by commercial overnight delivery service, or transmitted
by facsimile, and shall be deemed served or delivered to the addressee or its office when recejved
at the address for notice specified above when hand delivered, upon confirmation of sending when
sent by facsimile, on the day after being sent when sent by overnight delivery service, or three 3
days after deposit in the mail when sent by U.S. mail.

ARTICLE XX.

CONFIDENTIALITY

20.1  The parties agree that they will not use or disclose any Confidential Information that
they receive except as is reasonably necessary for the purposes of this Agreement or as required to
be disclosed under the Tennessee Public Records Act. Each party agrees that in the event of a breach
the other party may seek injunctive relief in addition to its other remedies. In the event of a request
made of MLGW to disclose Confidential Information, MLGW shall first notify ETC who shall have
the right to seek a protective order limiting such disclosure in a court of competent jurisdiction
within 14 days from such request. If no application for relief is made within that time, MLGW shall
have the right to disclose such Confidential Information as it deems appropriate.

20.2  Confidential Information shall be identified as such in writing by the disclosing party.
Confidential Information shall not include information which (i) becomes publicly available other
than through the recipient; (ii) is required to be disclosed by a governmental or Jjudicial order, rule
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or regulation; (iii) is independently developed by the disclosing party; or (iv) becomes available to
the disclosing party without restriction from a third party.

ARTICLE XX1.
DREFAULT

21.1 ETC shall be in default under this Agreement if it fails to use commercially
reasonable efforts to complete the Fiber Project in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
With respect to all other obligations, ETC shall be in default under this Agreement thirty (30) days
after ML.GW shall have given ETC written notice of such defauit unless ETC shall have cured such
default or such default is otherwise waived within such thirty (30) day period. Any cvent of default
by ETC may be waived in writing at MLGW’s option. Upon the failure by ETC to cure such default
within thirty (30) days after notice thereof from MLGW (provided, however, that where such default
cannot be reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day period, if ETC shall proceed promptly to cure
the same and prosecute such curing with due diligence, the time for curing such default shall be
extended for such period of time as may be necessary to complete such curing), MLGW may (i) take
such action as it determines, in its sole discretion, to be necessary to correct the default; (ii) pursue
any legal remedies it may have under applicable law or principles of equity relating such breach; and
(iii) terminate this Agreement and the IRU upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to ETC.

21.2  MLGW shall be in default under this Agreement if it fails to reasonably and timely
provide unrestricted access to its transmission network, rights-of-way, easements and other property
and facilities required by ETC to complete the Fiber Project or to otherwise comply with its (ETC's)
rights and obligations under this Agreement. With respect to all other obligations, MLGW shal] be
in default under this Agreement thirty (30) days after ETC shall have given MLGW written notice
of such default unless MLGW shall have cured such default or such default is otherwise waived
within such thirty (30) day period. Any event of default by MLGW may be waived under the terms
of the Agreement at ETC’s option. Upon the failure by MLGW to timely cure such default after
notice thereof from ETC, ETC may (i) take such action as it determines, in its sole discretion, to be
hecessary to correct the default, and (ji) pursue any legal remedies it may have under applicable law
or principles of equity relating such breach.

ARTICLE XXII.
IERMINATION

22.1 This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual written consent of the Patties.
Upon termination of this Agreement by mutual consent of the parties, the ETC IRU shall
immediately terminate and all rights of ETC to use the Fiber Cable, or any part thereof and all
obligations of ETC, shall cease and MLGW shall owe ETC no additional duties or consideration
with respect to the Fiber Cable.
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22.2  Atany time subsequent to the Acceptance Date, ETC shall have the option, in its sole
discretion, to abandon the ETC IRU. In the event ETC desires to abandon, or does abandon, the
ETC IRU, all rights to the ETC Fibers and to the use thereof shall revert to MLGW upon
abandonment and the Apreement shall terminate.

22.3  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no termination or expiration of the Agreement shall
affect the rights or obligations of any party hereto (i) with respect to any then existing defaults or (ii)
pursuant to Article XV (Indemnification), Article XVI (Limitations of Liability), Article XVIII
(Impositions) or Article XX (Confidentiality) herein, which shall survive the expiration or
termination hereof,

224 Upon termination of this Agreement, whether by agreement of the parties, by
abandonment of ETC, by MLGW for an uncured default in accordance with Section 21.1, or by
expiration of the Term, all rights of ETC in the Indefeasible Right of Use shall revert to MLGW,
after which ETC shall have no further rights or obligations with respect to the Indefeasible Right of
Use, except as provided in Section 22.3.

ARTICLE Xx111,
FORCE MAJEURE

23,1 Neither party shall be in default under this Agreement to the extent that any delay in
such party's performance is caused by any of the following conditions, and such party's performance
shall be excused and extended during the period of such delay: Act of God; fire; flood; fiber, cable
or othet material shortages or unavailability or other delay in delivery not resulting from the
responsible party's failure to timely place orders therefor; lack of or delay in transportation;
government codes, ordinances, laws, rules, regulations or restrictions (collectively, "Regulations");
law or ¢ivil disorder; failure of a third party to grant a required permit, casement or other required
authorization for use of the intended right-of-way (provided that such required authorization was
sought and pursued on & timely and commercially reasonable basis), or any other cause beyond the
commercially reasonable control of such party, provided that the party claiming relief under this
article shall promptly notify the other in writing of the existence of the event relied on and the
cessation or termination of said event, The party claiming the relief under this article shall exercise
reasonable efforts to minimize the time for any such delay.

ARTICLE XXIV.

MEDIATION/ARBITRATION

24.1 Any dispute or disagreement arising between MLGW and ETC in connection with
this Agreement which is not settled to the mutual satisfaction of MLGW and ETC within thirty (30)
days from the date that cither party informs the other in writing that such dispute or disagreement
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exists, shall be submitted to mediation or non-binding arbitration in Memphis, Tennessee, in
accordance with the commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect
on the date that such notice is given. In the event the parties select non-binding arbitration, and the
parties are unable to agree on a single arbitrator within fifteen (15) days of the notice of Arbitration,
each party shall select an arbitrator and the two arbitrators shall mutually select a third arbitrator, the
three of whom shall serve as an arbitration panel. The decision of the arbitrator(s) shall include
written findings of law and fact, and a recommended judgment. Each party shall bear the cost of
preparing and presenting its own case. The cost of the arbitration, including the fees and expenses
of the arbitrator(s), shall be shared equally by the parties hereto.

24.2  The obligation herein to mediate or arbitrate shall not be binding upon any party with
respect to requests for preliminary injunctions, temporary restraining orders or other simijlar
temporary procedures in a court of competent jurisdiction to obtain interim relief when deemed
necessary by such court to preserve the status quo or prevent irreparable injury ending resolution by
arbitration of the actual dispute. It is not the intention of the parties that such injunctive procedures
shall be in lieu of, or cause substantial delay to, any mediation or arbitration proceeding commenced
under Section 24.1 above.

ARTICLE XXV.
WAIVER

25.1  The failure of either party hereto to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement,
or the waiver thereof in any instance, shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment
on its part of any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force apd
effect. To be effective, any waiver must be in writing and signed by the party making the waiver.

ARTICLE XXVI.
GOVERNING LAW

26.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the domestic
laws of the State of Tennessee, without reference to its choice of law principles.

ARTICLE XXVII.

RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

27.1  The captions or headings in the Agrecment are strictly for convenience and shall not
be considered in interpreting this Agreement or as amplifying or limiting any of its content. Words
in this Agreement which import the singular connotation shall be interpreted as plural, and words
which import the plural connotation shall be interpreted as singular, as the identity of the parties or
objects referred to may require.
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27.2  Unless expressly defined herein, words having well known technical or trade
meanings shall be so construed. All listing of items shall not be taken to be exclusive, but shall
include other items, whether similar or dissimilar to those listed, as the context reasonably requires.

27.3  Except as set forth to the contrary berein, any right or remedy of ETC or MLGW shall
be cumulative and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, whether contained herein or not.

274 Nothing in this Agreement provides nor is intended to provide any legal rights or
benefits to anyone not an executing party of this Agreement.

27.5 'This Agreement has been fully negotiated between and jointly drafted by the parties.

27.6 Inthe event of a conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and those of any
Exhibit, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail and such Exhibits shall be corrected
accordingly.

27.7  All actions, activities, consents, approvals and other undertakings of the parties in this
Agreement shall be performed in a reasonsble and timely manner, it being expressly acknowledged
and understood that time is of the essence in the performance of obligations. Except as specifically
set forth herein, for the purpose of this Article the normal standards of performance within the

electric utility industry in the relevant market shall be the measure of whether a party’s performance
is reasonable and timely.

ARTICLE XXVITII.
ASSIGNMENT

28.1  Except as provided below, MLGW shall not assign, encumber or otherwise transfer
this Agreement or its rights or obligations hereunder to any other party without the prior written
consent of ETC, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. MLGW shall have the
right, without ETC’s consent, to assign ot otherwise transfer this Agreement (i) as collateral to any
institutional lender to MLGW subject to the prior rights and obligations of the parties hereunder, (ii)
to any parent, subsidiary or affiliate of MLGW, (iii) to any person, firm or corporation which shall
cantrol, be under the control of or be under common control with MLGW or (iv) any corporation or
other entity into which MLGW may be merged or consolidated or which purchascs all or
substantially all of the assets of MLGW; provided that the assignee or transferee in any such
circumstance shall continue to be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement, including
without limitation, this Section 28.1 (except that any lender referred to in clause (i) above shall not
incur any obligations under this Agreement nor shall it be restricted from exercising any right of
enforcement of foreclosure with respect to any related security interest or lien, so long as the
purchaser in foreclosure is subject to the provision of this Agreement, including, without limitation,
this Section 28.1), Promptly following any such assignment or transfer MLGW shall give ETC
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written notice identifying the assignee or transferee. Any such assignment or transfer shall be
conditioned upon the corresponding assignment or transfer of MLGW’s right and obligations under
the Maintenance Agreement. In the event of any permitted partial assignment of any rights
hereunder, MLLGW shall remain the sole point of contact with ETC.

28.2  ETC shall not assign, encumber or otherwise transfer this Agreement or its rights or
obligations hereunder to any other party without the prior written consent of MLGW, which consent
will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such assignment or transfer shall be further
conditioned upon the corresponding assignment or transfer of ETC’s rights and obligations under
the Maintenance Agreement. In the event of any partial assignment of any rights hereunder, ETC
shall remain the sole point of contact with MLGW.

28.3 This Agreement and each of the parties’ respective rights and obligations under this
Agreement, shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and each of their
respective permitted successors and assigns.

ARTICLE XXIX.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

29.1 Each party represents and warrants that:

() Tt has the full right and authority to enter into, execute, deliver and perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

(b) It has taken all requisite corporate action to approve the execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement;

(c) This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against
such party in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, creditors’ rights and
general equitable principles; and

(d)  Its execution of and petformance under this Agreement shall not violate any
applicable existing regulations, rules, statutes, or court orders of any local, state or federal
government agency, court or body.

292  ETC represents and warrants that the Fiber Cable shall be constructed in all material
respects in accordance with the specifications set forth in Exhibit B hereto; provided that with
respect to any failure to so construct, (i) MLGW shall have the right to inspect the construction,
installation and splicing, and participate in the Fiber Acceptance Testing during the course and at
the time of the relevant construction, installation and testing periods for the Fiber Cable, as provided
in this Agreement, (i) if, during the course of such construction, installation and testing of the Fiber
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Cable any material deviation from the specifications set forth in Exhibit B is discovered, the
construction or installation of the affected portion of the Fiber Cable shall be repaired to such

the specifications set forth in Exhibit B (which notice shall be given promptly following the date of
such discovery, but in any event not later than the last day of such 30-day period) the construction
or instaflation of the affected portion of the Fiber Cable shall be repaired to such specification by
ETC. For purposes hereof, “material deviation” means a deviation which is reasonably likely to have
material adverse affect on the operation of performance of Fiber Cable and/or F ibers affected

29.3 NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY WARRANTIES OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH
ARE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN,

ARTICLE XXX.

ARTICLE XXXI.

NO PERSONAL LIABILITY

31.1  Each action or ¢laim against any party arising under or relating to this Agreement
shall be made only against such party as a corporation, and any liability relating thereto shall be
enforceable only against the corporate assets of such party. No party shall seek to pierce the
corporate veil or otherwise seek to impose any liability relating to, or arising from, this Agreement
against any sharcholder, employee, officer or director of the other party. Each of such person is an
intended beneficiary of the mutual Promises set forth in this Article and shall be entitled to enforce
the obligations of this Article.

32.1 Neither party shall use any funds received under this Agreement for illegal purposes.
Neither party shall pay any commission, fees or rebates to any employee of the other party, or favor
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any employee of such other party with gifts or entertainment of significant cost or value intended to
influence the actions of such employee in a manner inconsistent with that employee’s duty of loyalty
to its employer. If cither party has reasonable cause to believe that one of the provisions in this
Article has been violated, it, or its representative, may audit the relevant books and records of the
other party for the sole purpose of establishing compliance with such provisions.

ARTICLE XXXI1.

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

33.1  The relationship between ETC and MLGW shall not be that of partners, agents, or
joint venturers for one another, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to
constitute a partnership or agency agreement between them for any purposes, including but not
limited to federal and state income tax purposes. ETC and MLGW, in performing any of their
obligations hercunder, shall be independent contractors or independent parties and shall discharge
their contractual obligations at their own risk

ARTICLE XXX1V,
SEVERABILITY

34.1 Ifany term, covenant or condition contained herein shall, to any extent, be invalid or
unenforceable in any respect under the laws governing this Agreement, the remainder of this
Agreement shall not be affacted thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement
shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XXXV.
COUNTERPARTS

35.1 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

ARTICLE XXXVI.

THIRD PARTY WARRANTIES

36.1 Inthe event any maintenance or repairs to the Fiber Cable are required as a result of
a breach of any warranty made by any manufactures, contractors or vendors, both parties shall pursue
any remedies either may have against such manufactures, contractors or vendors, and shall reimburse
the other party’s costs for any maintenance or repair costs such other party has incurred as a result
of any such breach of warranty to the extent the manufacturer, contracior or vendor has paid such
costs to the reimbursing party.
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extend such rights or pnvileges to subsequent licenses. The attachment privileges hereip granted
shall at all times be subject to such existing contracts and arrangements.

conditions contained in this Agreement and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties have
executed this Agreement as of the date set forth opposite the signature of each party’s aythorized

representative below.
MEMPHIS LIGHT, GAS AND WATER DIVISION
Dated: » 2000 By:
Herman Morris, Jr.,
President
ATTEST:
By:
John McCullough
Secretary
APPROVED:
By:
J. Maxwell Williams
General Counse]
Memphis Light, Gas and Water Division
ENTERGY TECHNOLQGY COMPANY
Dated: ;2000 By:
Earl Frederic
General Manager
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